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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Chairman

xfE
Shi Kancheng HEATAK

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (“Zhong An” or “the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”), | am pleased to present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 (“the year under
review”).

REVIEW OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the turnover and gross profit
of the Group were RMB2,395 million and RMB919 million respectively,
representing an increase of approximately 42% and 15% as compared
with that of 2011 respectively; core profit after tax (excluding fair value
revenue of investment property) was RMB345 million, an increase of 34%
as compared with 2011; core net profit ratio (excluding gain from fair
value of investment properties) was approximately 14%, which is similar
to that of 2011; basic earnings per share were RMB0.14. To better deal
with control measures implemented by the central government and meet
the Group’s business development needs, the Board of Directors of the
Company (“the Board”) does not recommend the distribution of final
dividend for 2012.
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MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the domestic real estate market tended to be stabilized. The
central government continued to implement control measures over
the real estate market. The recovery of the global economy was weak.
Consequently, the overall market remained challenging. The Group upheld
a prudent and stable operating principle and maintained a geographic
focus on the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region where it would enjoy
competitive advantages. Capitalizing on its advantages such as ample
experience in real estate development, an experienced and cohesive
management team, excellent brand image, solid financial position, quality
and low-cost land bank, the Group took initiative to adjust operating and
sales strategy and made prudent progress. Not only did the Group achieve
sound operating results but also received a number of distinguished
accolades and awards, such as the “Star of China Top 100 Real Estate
Developers 2012” jointly presented by Enterprise Research Institute
under the Development Research Center of the State Council, Tsinghua
University Real Estate Research Institute and China Index Academy, “Top
100 China Listed Real Estate Enterprises 2012” jointly presented by China
Housing and Real Estate Academy, China Real Estate Association and
China Real Estate Appraisal and “Top 20 Zhejiang Real Estate Brand” from
the 4th Yangtze River Delta Urban Development Summit.
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For the year under review, 3 new residential projects were launched for
sale, including Jade Mansion in Yuyao, Ningbo, White Horse Manor in
Xiaoheshan, Hangzhou and Ideal Bay in Linping, Hangzhou. In 2012, the
Group had 9 residential projects on sale located in 7 cities and districts
in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region and the overall sales result was
basically in line with our expectation. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB2.17
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 20%, and
contracted GFA sold of approximately 181,000 sg. m., representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 34%, with contracted average
selling price of RMB11,973 per sq. m..

DIVERSIFYING BUSINESS PORTFOLIO
AND REVENUE BASE

Besides devoting in residential property development, the Group
proceeded towards the development of commercial and investment
properties in a steady progress, developed urban complex to create
value for cities as well as expanded distinctive property management and
value-added services so as to build up a diversified business portfolio for
enhancing the overall competitiveness as well as dispersing operational
risks.

For the year under review, Holiday Inn of the Group in Xiaoshan, Hangzhou
was in smooth operation with steady occupancy rate. Revenue from hotel
operation was similar to that of 2011. Currently, the Group has 5 high-
end hotels under construction or in planning stage, including Doubletree
by Hilton in Yuyao, Ningbo, Zhongan Hotel in Huaibei, Anhui, Zhongan
Hotel in Qiandao Lake, Hangzhou, JW Marriott Suzhou in Jinjihu, Suzhou
and Fairmount Hangzhou in Qianjiang Century Town, Hangzhou. They
will be successively put into operation starting from 2015. Meanwhile, the
leasing of Highlong Plaza in Xiaoshan, Hangzhou was satisfactory for the
year under review. The leasing rate for shopping centre and office buildings
remained high, and revenue from leasing saw a slight increase compared
to that of 2011. At present, the Group has 4 major investment properties
under construction or planning. These include high-end shopping centres
and grade A office buildings located in Yuyao, Ningbo, Jinjihu, Suzhou,
Qianjiang Century Town, Hangzhou and the district centre of Xiaoshan,
Hangzhou, which will also be put into operation starting from 2015. Upon
commencement of operation, these commercial and investment projects
are expected to bring continuous and steady cash flow to the Group,
which would allow easier access to financing, and offer synergy effect to
the value of residential projects of the Group.

10 Zhong An Real Estate Limited
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Adhering to its principle of “Serve human life”, the Group continued to
expand property management services, which will not only enhance the
brand awareness of Zhong An and the competitiveness of its projects, but
also create a revenue source in the future. In 2011, the Group signed a
leasing contract with Yuyao Municipal Government, Zhejiang Province for
a piece of farm land of about 18,000 mu. About 1,000 mu of such land
under operation has been developed into the planting base for precious
trees. Another 1,000 mu in trial operation is also ready for development into
ecological farming. The Group obtained the national first-grade certificate
of property management. By extending its property management industrial
chain, including operating modern organic farm, seedling plantation
base and agricultural tourism visiting centers, the Group is devoted to
supply healthy and safe agricultural products and poultry for over 20,000
households and market customers, and create a harmonious, convenient,
comfortable and high-end living environment.

A PRUDENT LAND ACQUISITION
STRATEGY TO REPLENISH LAND BANK

Following a prudent land acquisition strategy, the Group has replenished
quality and low-cost land at appropriate time and optimized its land bank
structure while maintaining a sound financial position.

On 1 February 2013, the Group acquired the land use right of a site in
Longshan New Town, Cidong Binhai District of Cixi, Ningbo, Zhejiang
Province for residential and commercial uses through open tender
auction, at a total consideration of approximately RMB238 million. The
land occupies a site area of approximately 197,655 sg. m. and a total
gross floor area (GFA) of approximately 494,138 sq. m. (@among which a
GFA of 351,173 sg. m. is planned for residential properties, and a GFA
of approximately 142,965 sqg. m. is planned for commercial properties).
The average land cost is only approximately RMB482 per sq. m.. The site
is well located in the core area of Longshan New Town, Cidong Binhai
District, and is only 30-minute drive to the Cixi city centre and Ningbo
downtown area. Benefiting from the planned urban expansion of Cixi
and Ningbo, Cidong Binhai District becomes one of the new hubs in
Yuyao-Cixi District. Both Yuyao and Cixi cities are ranked in the top 15 of
National Top 100 Counties in 2012 while capitalizing on vigorous economic
development. The project is in close proximity to Lingfeng Road, the main
road of Longshan New Town, and it is adjacent to the administrative center
of Binhai District, hospitals, schools and transport hub which are currently
under construction, together with comprehensive ancillary facilities. In
addition, the area where the project is located is affluent in cultural and
natural resources, such as ancient villages, lakes, and mountains. While
bringing synergy effect to the Group’s existing projects in Yuyao, the
acquisition enhances the Group’s brand influence in the Pan-Yangtze River
Delta Region.
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As of the date of this annual report, the Group had a land bank of
approximately 7.19 million sg. m. and located in 9 cities and districts in
the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region, which is expected to support its
development in the next 5 years. The average land cost is approximately
RMBO27 per sg.m..

OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY

Looking forward into 2013, the control policies implemented by the
central government over the real estate industry are expected to continue,
which will lead the market back to a more stable and rational state in the
long run. Although the economic outlook of the US and the Euro-zone
is still not optimistic, the recent economic data showed that the Chinese
economy has been recovering mildly. Meanwhile, the central government
has implemented policies to support end-users’ demand and to advocate
urbanization, which works to push forward the long-term and steady
development of the real estate market. Therefore, the demands for value-
for-money and end-user’s products with potential appreciation remain
strong and solid. The Group will remain prudent in the near term and is
optimistic in the long term, and will proactively seize market opportunities
and adjust marketing and pricing strategies and product mix. We are
confident that we can overcome any adversity that may be brought by
control policies and measures affecting the real estate market and maintain
sustainable development of the Group.

The year 2012 marked the 15th anniversary of Zhong An, and was an
important milestone. Over the past 15 years, Zhong An has maintained
its focus on the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region, accumulated rich
experience in developing composite properties projects in that region,
and built an excellent brand recognition. Benefiting from the strong
economic growth potential of the region, we have achieved a solid and
balanced development. Therefore, the Group will continue to implement
such development strategy, explore investment opportunities in the
affluent second and third tier cities and National Top 100 counties in
the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region, as well as consider geographical
diversification at appropriate time and strengthen cooperation with
strategic partners, in order to enlarge our market share and maintain
competitive advantages.

In the past 15 years, Zhong An has achieved consistently steady growth,
laying a solid foundation for its long-term development. The 15 anniversary
represents a new starting point for the journey ahead. The Group will
actively promote its business model of ‘acquiring land and selling products
at a fair price; developing projects and receiving sales proceeds in a quick

12 Zhong An Real Estate Limited
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process’ in order to accelerate asset turnover, develop more quick-sale
products targeting end users and high value-added, low-density residential
units, as well as fully leverage on its strong brandname. We will continue to
optimize marketing strategy with active marketing as the dominant mode
complemented by traditional passive selling for more rapid growth of sales.
As regards its operational management, the Group will carry out internal
reform and adjustment, implement a series of management policies,
e.g. detailed planning management, hierarchical control and review at
critical points, further improve the standardization of product, process
and system, in order to enhance management and operation efficiency.
At the same time, the Group will continue to steadily push forward the
development of commercial and investment properties, suitably expand
downstream services in real estate industry, thereby generating stable
revenue and dispersing operational risks.

The Group will continue to uphold a prudent financial policy, further
optimize its debt structure and maintain a stable and sufficient cash flow,
S0 as to support the Group’s development with ample funds. By gradually
building highly efficient investor relations management system, the Group
can develop a long-lasting, interactive and favourable relation with the
capital markets and the media, enhance corporate transparency and
corporate governance, and promote the understanding, recognition and
support of the Group among the general public, thereby strengthening
shareholders base, expanding its financing channels (onshore and
offshore) and reducing financing cost.

Looking forward, the Group is committed to becoming one of the most
competitive real estate developers in the Pan-Yangtze River Delta Region,
as well as in China, and to building up a diversified and synergetic business
and product portfolio, in order to maintain sustainable development, and
maximize values and generate excellent return for our shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

RESULTS

The audited consolidated revenue of the Group for 2012 was
RMB2,395,625,000, representing an increase of about 42% from that in
2011. The gross profit for 2012 was RMB919,222,000, representing an
increase of about 15% from that in 2011. The profit attributable to owners
of the parent for 2012 was about RMB336,228,000, similar to that in
2011. Net core profits (excluding fair value gains in investment properties,
after tax) was RMB344,802,000, representing an increase of about 34%
from that in 2011. The net core profits margin was 14% and was similar to
that in 2011. The basic earnings per share was RMBO0.14. The Board did
not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: nil).

Industry Review

In 2012, the real estate industry in China continued to be affected by
the regulatory measures imposed by the central government. According
to National Bureau of Statistics of China, the gross floor area (GFA) of
residential properties sold was recorded at about 1.11 bilion sg. m.,
representing an increase of about 1% compared to that of 2011, which is
lower than the increment of about 6% recorded in 2011.

According to the portal site of www.tmsf.com (“FMBEREREH") in
Hangzhou of Zhejiang Province, the GFA of residential properties sold
in Hangzhou was about 498 million sg. m., representing an increase of
about 100% as compared to that of 2011, whereas the average selling
price per sq. m. was RMB18,392, representing a decrease of about 13%
as compared to that of 2011. According to Hefei Statistical Information
Public Net (“ & iE#at = B AR "), the GFA of residential properties sold
in Hefei of Anhui Province was about 765 million sq. m., representing an
increase of about 32% as compared to that of 2011. The average selling
price per sq. m. was RMB6,518, representing an increase of about 5%
as compared to that of 2011. According to Bureau of Statistics of Huaibei
(“YEIESEET ), the GFA of residential properties sold in Huaibei of Anhui
Province was about 117 million sg. m., representing an increase of about
50% as compared to that of 2011. The average selling price per sg. m. was
RMB4,186, representing an increase of about 7% as compared to that of
2011.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Sales and earnings

The area of property sold and delivered by the Group in 2012 was about
132,842 sq. m. (2011: 136,528 sqg. m.), representing a slight decrease of
about 3% compared with that of 2011.

The recognised average selling price per sg. m. achieved by the Group in
2012 was about RMB 17,990, representing an increase of about 49% from
RMB12,047 in the previous year. It is the fact that the majority of the sales
was contributed by the revenue recognized from Dragon Bay in Yuyao,
Zhejiang Province, which consists of high-value low-density residential
properties with an average selling price of RMB33,718 per sg.m..

During the year under review, the total recognised GFA sold for the major
projects of the Group and the respective recognised revenue are as
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£ o
HERBA

20124 AEBEEHERRNMYEREERE
49/5132,842F 17K (20114E : 136,528 L 5K) -
52011 FEBUR D 4I3% °

20124 - AEEEHRTHE T KRHEEENA
ARMA17,9907T - R EFERARE 12,047 T £
RAI49% o RER KD HERBMMIE R
PEENEEARA  ZEEHSEERSRER
EVEAR - FHETHKEEEARKE 33,718

JC ©

CEFEA  AEETERENCEAHEEEEM

follows: FEHMBEERRALT
Recognised

GFA sold Recognised

BHER revenue

Projects HH SHEMA BRI

2012 2012

20124 20124

sg.m. RMB million

IR AREBET
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province HIB M

Landscape Bay S 15,870 286.3

Others* H b~ 2,248 42.5
Yuyao, Zhejiang Province AIEB R

Dragon Bay 13 BE & 53,014 1,787.6
Hefei, Anhui Province ZHEAET

Green Harbour — Phases 1A and 1B GeEBE—-F1AKR 1B 5,291 33.4
Huaibei, Anhui Province ZHEEELT

Vancouver City — Phase 4 North RETE — 4 HAdL 54,304 228.0

- Phases 2 South, North and —E2Hm bk
Phase 3 %3 2,115 12.1
Total F 132,842 2,389.9

*

including: Landscape Garden, Guotai Garden, New White Horse Apartments and
White Horse Noble Mansion.

The average cost of property sold per sg. m. of the Group was RMB10,760

* B LKA - BEREE RS ABRAKEMR -
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in 2012, representing an increase of about 73% from RMB6,213 in the
previous year. The main reason was that the majority of the properties sold
during the year under review was contributed by Dragon Bay in Yuyao,
Zhejiang Province which had relatively high average cost of sales.

Progress of development on the major projects

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
Landscape Bay

This is a residential project located on the south bank of Qiantang River,
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about
319,720 sg. m.. The project includes island-style townhouses (Phase 2,
completed in 2010), high-rise apartments (Phase 1, completed in 2011)
with river view, shopping center, car park lots and clubhouse. The volume
of sales of this project is within expectation.

Hidden Dragon Land

This is a luxurious residential project in Wenyan Town, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about 242,138 sg.m..
The project includes low-rise luxurious club-houses for corporations, high-
rise apartments and shopping spaces. As at 31 December 2012, the
construction was in progress. The project is expected to be completed in
April 2013. The presale of this project has been launched and the volume
of sales of this project is within expectation.

International Office Centre

This is a large-scale integrated commercial project in Qianjiang Century
Town (5Tt 424), Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province with
a total planned GFA of about 2,369,913 sg. m. and out of which about
843,018 sg.m. has been approved. The project includes a hotel of five-
star standard, office buildings, a shopping center, serviced apartments
and underground car parking lots. The serviced apartments of Phase
A3 with a total GFA of 328,376 is now under construction and as at 31
December 2012, the building blocks had been topped out. It is expected to
be completed by the end of 2014. The presale will be launched in the third
quarter of 2013.
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White Horse Manor

This is a residential project in Xiaoheshan, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about 243,497 sqg.m..
of high rise residential buildings and low-density residential townhouses

[t consisits

situated at a hilly terrain with beautiful scenery and green vegetation.
The townhouse units are to be built with American architectural design
and on the terrain with spacious view. The project is in proximity to local
universities and Xixi Wetland. As at 31 December 2012, the construction
was in progress. It is expected that the project will be completed around
June 2015. The presale has been launched since the fourth quarter of
2012 and the result is within expectation.

Ideal Bay

This is a residential project in Linping, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province with a total GFA of 538,856 sg.m.. The project consists of
townhouses in British architectural design and multi-storey apartment
units. As at 31 December 2012, the construction was in progress. It is
expected that the project will be completed around November 2014. The
presale has been launched since the fourth quarter of 2012 and the result
is within expectation.

Hotel at Qiandao Lake

This is a hotel project in Qiandao Lake Town, Chunan County, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province with a GFA of 34,608 sg.m.. A boutique hotel will be built
at the shore of Qiandao Lake with a beautiful lake view and natural habitat.
As at 31 December 2012, the construction was in progress. It is expected
that the project will be completed in around April 2015.

Yuyao, Zhejiang Province

Dragon Bay

This is a low density residential project in Yuyao, Zhejiang Province with a
total GFA of 196,809 sg. m.. The project consists of French, European and
Spanish-style low-rise residential buildings. The construction of the project
was completed by the end of 2012. The presale during the year under
review was within expectation.
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Jade Mansion

This is a low-density residential project in Yuyao, Zhejiang Province with a
total GFA of 292,808 sq. m.. The project consists of townhouses and is
next to Dragon Bay. The construction is in progress and it is expected to
be completed around June 2014. The presale of this project commenced
in late fourth quarter of 2012 and was within expectation.

Zhong An Times Square

This is a large-scale integrated commercial project in Yuyao, Zhejiang
Province, with a total GFA of about 640,281 sg. m.. The project includes
a hotel of five-star standard, office buildings, a shopping center, residential
apartments, serviced apartments, and underground car parking lots. It is
next to Dragon Bay and Jade Mansion. The construction is in progress and
it is expected to be completed in around December 2015. The presale of
the residential apartments will be commenced in the third quarter of 2013.

Hefei, Anhui Province
Green Harbour

This is a low density residential project in Hefei, Anhui Province. The
construction of Phase 1C will be completed in June 2013. The presale of
this project was within expectation.

Huaibei, Anhui Province
Vancouver City

This is a low density residential project in Huaibei, Anhui Province. The
construction of Phase 4 North with multi-storey and high-rise apartment
units was completed during the year under review. The construction of a
hotel in Phase 6D was commenced and it is expected that the construction
will be completed in December 2014. The sale result of Phase 4 North was
within expectation.
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Contracted sales in 2012 2012FWERHE

As at 31 December 2012, the contracted GFA sold by the Group was &{Z= 2012412 31 H » AEEM A RN E@E
about 181,125 sg. m.. Set out below are the details on the contract sale  49/5181,125F /53K - T EIEB WA REEHEN

from the major projects: T
Percentage of
interest in
the project
attributable
to the Group
TEE
Contracted GFA sold (2 ES
ERKEEE ERNES L
(sq. m.)
(F7K)
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province AT BN
Hidden Dragon Land fEREE 31,838 94.5%
Ideal Bay B A8 1,551 45.9%
Landscape Bay =& 19,352 92.6%
White Horse Manor B 5L 7,855 90.0%
Others* Hipb~ 2,248
62,844
Yuyao, Zhejiang Province AT B R
Dragon Bay 1 BE & 15,997 90.0%
Jade Mansion HREE 12,374 93.0%
28,371
Hefei, Anhui Province ZHESES
Green Harbour — Phases 1A and 1B “rEEE —E1A K 1B E 7,032 84.2%
— Phase 1C —%£1CH 16,462 84.2%
23,494
Huaibei, Anhui Province ZHEELT
Vancouver City — Phase 4 North IBETEEYL — 28 4 HRdE 61,455 100.0%
— Phase 5 North — #5813k 1,727 100.0%
— other # —Efb* 3,234 100.0%
66,416

Total wet 181,125
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White Horse Noble Mansion

# including: Phases 1to 3 # BIE BE1HEEIH -

BEtR 2013 F THA M A I ERERROR
332,591 FK - FHBMT -

It is expected that the GFA available for sale from the projects to be
completed in 2013 was about 332,591 sg. m. details of which are as

follows:

Percentage of

interest in
GFA the project
available attributable
Expected for sale/ to the Group
completion leasing AEE L
date AHER EAIEL £ Usage
EREIAY HHEBREER Aok Az
(sg. m)
(FFF2K)
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province HTI&M M
Hidden Dragon Land fEaeE April 2013 242,138 94.5% For sale
20134 4 A R ERE
Hefei, Anhui Province ZREESED
Green Harbour — Phase 1C HFeEE—21CH June 2013 90,453 84.2% For sale
201346 A fEHER®
Total #st 332,591
Land bank T i EE

M2012F12 A31 B » AEE T A EHEREEER
#)56,692,000F 75K - EHRETKYIEER KR
HE SRR AR R EEETEA) B507,943F 5K i
2012512 A31H » AREEEELE + i E T IIWE
ARG T ARG ANREIS6 T ©

As at 31 December 2012, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank was
about 6,692,090 sg.m., out of which the total unsold or undelivered GFA
of the completed properties projects was about 507,943 sg.m.. As at 31
December 2012, the average acquisition cost of the Group’s overall land
bank was about RMB956 per sg.m.

R2012FFE  REFEHFATYENZELEmMBEY
782,353 F K o

During the year 2012, the GFA of properties of which the construction were
newly commenced by the Group was about 782,353 sg.m..



Other business development

The Group strives to build up a diversified business portfolio so as to
provide more stable income in the future and to mitigate operational risk.
We will broaden the scope of property services which includes hotel
operation, leasing, property management services, nursery stock and
agricultural plantation, in order to extend the downstream services of
our property development business and to maintain a steady and solid
operation of our Group.

Hotel operation

Holiday Inn Xiaoshan Hangzhou, a hotel of the Group which is managed
by the internationally renowned InterContinental Hotels Group, recorded
a revenue of RMB 58,279,000 for 2012, representing a similar level
compared to a revenue of RMB61,286,000 recorded in 2011. This
was primarily due to the reduction of revenue from room income. The
occupancy rate was about 50% (2011: 51%)).

The Group is planning to build a five-star hotel within large-scale
commercial complex at Zhong An Times Sqgaure in Yuyao. The
construction of the hotel had been commenced and it is expected to
commence operation in 2015. This will bring another additional source of
stable income to the Group.

The Group plans to build a resort-type hotel in Qiandao Lake, Zhejiang
Province and a hotel in Huaibei, Anhui Province respectively, in order to
increase the proportion of commercial properties in our portfolio and thus
bring a more stable cash flow to the Group.

Leasing

Currently, Highlong Plaza provides the main source of leasing income.
This plaza consists of office buildings, a shopping centre, serviced
apartments and underground car parking lots. It recorded a revenue of
RMD55,437,000 for 2012, representing an increase of 9% compared to
RMB50,924,000 in 2011. The leasing rate for the shopping centre is about
98% (2011: 99%) and that of office buildings is about 87% (2011: 78%).
Overall, a general increase was recorded as compared to those of 2011.
It was due to the completion of refurbishment works in 2011 which the
upgraded facilities and services in turn attract more tenants.

The Group will hold various festival activities and promotion events so as
to attract more inflow of people and to increase the income of the tenants,
thereby enhancing the rental value.
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The serviced apartments were sublet to and managed by independent
operators during the year under review. The operation was highly
satisfactory. Other investment properties also contributed to the leasing
income of the Group.

Property management

The Group provides quality property management services to the
communities located in properties developed by the Group and other
developers. The services are further enhanced by inclusion of the provision
of travel tours, housekeeping and nanny services etc.. This will further
facilitate the Group in the corporate brand management.

Other services

The Group is also developing nursery stock plantation for agricultural
purposes and managing organic plantations for producing agricultural
products. The customers are mainly the home-owners of the properties
to which property management services provided by the Group. Such
value-added downstream services will form an integral part of the Group’s
property development and management businesses. Accordingly, the
Group’s corporate branding can be enhanced and the scope of services of
the Group will be widened.

Awards and recognitions

The Group was awarded by the government and recognized authorities for
the year under review as follows:
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Awarded in Granted by Awards Recipients

PER A PRI RIFHB BiE

January 2012 Fangchan Tianxia and www. Model Residences 2012 White Horse Manor
focus.cn

201241 A FERT MR, 012 F REABRIFEER BSIE

February 2012 Beigan Street, Xiaoshan Excellent Enterprise Hangzhou Zhong An Highlong
District, Hangzhou Sizeable Contribution Commercial Building Co., Ltd.

201242 A FNER LRI FEE S RS H B MMNBLEEREARAF

Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development of PRC

R BT 55 ARk B 22 2 P

National First grade Certificate
of Property Management

BR-AMEEEEE

Zhejiang Zhong An Property Co., Ltd.

T RRYERBARRF]
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Awarded in

TRERRF

Granted by
PRI

Awards

RERM

Recipients

BRE

March 2012

201263 A

April 2012

20124 A

May 2012

201245 A

August 2012

201248 A

Hangzhou Xiaoshan Trade
Bureau

mMMBUES B

Enterprise Research Institute
of Development Research
Centre of the State Council
of China, Institute of Real
Estate Studies of Tsinghua
University and China Index
Academy

BB R A F R OB R
B BERBEMERTTAT
Ko EIE B AT

Hangzhou Xiaoshan
Commerce Bureau

mMBLUEE B

China Real Estate Research
Society, China Real Estate
Association and China Real
Estate Evaluation Center

FEEMERTE - PEEM
EE & AN B 5 4 RIET
w0

house.sina.com.cn, China Real

Estate Assessment Center
and www.fangchan.com

FORSERE - PRFHMENETD
LR A

WWW.Sina.com.cn

FRM

Top 10 Chairman/General
Manager of 2011

01 EHEEERER KR

Star of China Top 100 Real
Estate Developers 2012

2012 B EME B BDE
—HMZE

Best Organization Award of
the 4th Xiaoshan Shopping
Festival

FUERIL B R AR

Top 100 China Listed Real
Estate Enterprises 2012

2012 P EIFHIE FT A Al4AR
AENAR

Ecological Luxury Residences
of China 2012

2012 F A AEAEREEEL

Golden Medal Award of
Olympics Gold Medal for
Property Market

REETESBRSMMER

Jin Ni, General Manager of Hangzhou
Zhong An Highlong Commercial

Building Co., Ltd.

2 MMRLEEBEERAA

MR

Zhong An Real Estate Limited

REEERRAT

Hangzhou Zhong An Highlong
Commercial Building Co., Ltd.

MMBLZIEEHERRAQ A

Zhong An Real Estate Limited

RREEARAR

White Horse Manor

A &5

|deal Bay

A0
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Awarded in Granted by Awards Recipients

FRER R TREBHAE REHM BRE

August 2012 www.soufun.com Excellent Project in Hangzhou White Horse Manor

201248 A

December 2012

201212 A

BEH

WWW.Sina.com.cn

¥R

www.soufun.com

RE®

www.xafc.com

ML EER

China Real Estate Management
Associate

TREMEEREHE

Zheshang Magazine

CH RS

Zhejiang Daily and Organizing
Committee of Zhejiang
Province Overall Real Estate
Evaluation

WL AR A ERE L E
AHEEEE

2012

2012 F M e84

2012 Best Floor Plan, Internet
Media Awards of Hangzhou,

China

FR O (RN ) BB 4 {E AR K 8
2012 FERIEFREE

Excellent Project in Hangzhou
2012

2012 Fh M af A

Model Wetland Residences in
Auhui 2012

2012 F LR IR R FAE AR

Top 10 Best Commerical
Complex of China 2012

2012 F B+ AR&EMERE

=

Annual Best Habitat 2012

012 FFEREABRRESR

Top 20 Zhejiang Real Estate
Brand 2012

2012 AT B A AR 20 58

BEIE

Ideal Bay

RS

|deal Bay

TP A8

Green Harbour

g

Hangzhou International Office Center
(I0C)

FUHBIBR A H.0 (100)

White Horse Manor

ARSI

Zhong An Real Estate Limited

REEERRAT



Human resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of 1,565 staff
(2011: 1,436 staff). In 2012, the staff cost of the Group was about
RMB122,587,000 (2011: about RMB117,149,000), representing an
increase of about 5%. The increase was mainly due to the increase of the
number of staff for continuous development, additional amortization of
share-based payments under the share option scheme adopted by the
Company and the adoption of better remuneration policy to retain and
recruit staff with higher capabilities and professionalism.

The employees’ remuneration policy was determined by reference to
factors such as remuneration information in respect of the local market,
the overall remuneration standard in the industry, inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and performance of the employees. The Group
conducts performance appraisal on a yearly basis for its employees,
the results of which are applied in annual salary review and promotion
assessment. The Group’s employees are considered for the entitlement
of annual discretionary bonus according to certain performance
conditions and appraisal results. To attract talented people and solidify
the management, eligible participants (including employees of the Group)
may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company pursuant
to the share option scheme. The Group also provides continuous learning
and training programmes to its employees to enhance their skills and
knowledge, so as to maintain their competitiveness.

Dividend policy

The Board shall determine the dividend policy of the Company
according to financial condition, operating results, capital requirements,
shareholders’ equity, contractual restraint and other factors considered
relevant by the Board.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded audited gross
profit of RMB919,222,000, representing an increase of about 15% from
RMB799,035,000 in the previous year. The main reason is due to the
increase of revenue recognised in the year under review mainly attributed
from Dragon Bay.

Other income

Other income decreased by 48% to about RMB20,821,000 in 2012 from
about RMB40,004,000 in 2011. The decrease was primarily due to the
reduction in the foreign exchange gained in the year under review.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution expenses decreased by 37% to about
RMB56,708,000 in 2012 from about RMB90,499,000 in 2011. This
decrease was primarily due to the less marketing activities commenced
than those in 2011.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by 12% to about RMB237,461,000
in 2012 from about RMB212,323,000 in 2011. This increase was primarily
due to the full scale operation of new projects in 2012 subsequent to their
commencement of operations in late 2011.

Other expenses

The other expenses decreased by 47% to about RMB4,711,000 in 2012
from about RMB8,865,000 in 2011. This decrease was primarily because
of the reduction in the donations to local organisations in the year under
review.

Increase in fair value of investment properties

The increase in fair value of investment properties decreased by 62% to
about RMB 60,335,000 in 2012 from about RMB160,430,000 in 2011.
This decrease was primarily due to increase in fair value of investment
properties affected by the market conditions in 2012.
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Finance costs

The finance costs increase by 719% to about RMB 3,660,000 in 2012
from about RMB 447,000 in 2011. This increase was primarily due to the
increase in bank borrowings in 2012.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses was about RMB306,778,000 in 2012, in 2011,
similar to RMB308,671,000 of 2011.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had aggregate cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash of about RMB1,119,515,000 (2011:
RMB602,095,000). The increase was due to the increase in cash as a
result of loans obtained by the end of the year under review. The current
ratio was 1.0 (2011: 1.3).

As at 31 December 2012, the bank loans and other borrowings
of the Group repayable within one year and after one year were
RMB1,739,030,000 and RMB2,493,137,000 respectively (2011:
RMB1,064,930,000 and RMB1,990,451,000 respectively). The increase
was mainly due to the increase in loans for operation and future
development purposes.

The consolidated interest expenses in 2012 amounted to RMB3,660,000
(2011: RMB447,000) in total. Interests in the amount of RMB358,735,000
(2011: RMB212,432,000) were capitalized during the year under review.
Interest coverage (including amount of interests capitalized) was 1.9 times
(2011: 2.8 times).

As at 31 December 2012, the ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the
Group was 0.62 (2011: 0.61).

As at 31 December 2012, the ratio of bank loans and other borrowings to
shareholder’s equity of the Group was 0.78 (2011: 0.60). The ratio of bank
loans and other borrowings to total assets was 0.28 (2011: 0.22).

The net gearing ratio of the Group (defined as net debt divided by
shareholder’s equity) was 0.58 (2011: 0.48) (net debt is defined as total
debt less cash and cash equivalent, and total restricted cash).
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the capital commitments of the Group were
RMB1,794,483,000 (2011: RMB2,557,415,000), which were mainly the
capital commitments for construction costs. It is expected that the Group
will finance such commitments from its own funds and external financing
(such as bank loans).

Guarantees and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the contingent liabilities of the Group was about
RMB1,362,294,000 (2011: RMB1,238,914,000), which were mainly the
guarantee given by the Group in favour of certain banks for the grant of
mortgage loans to buyers of the Group’s properties.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2012, investment properties of the Group with net
book value of about RMB1,894,005,000 (2011: RMB1,835,806,000),
properties under development of about RMB4,298,558,000 (2011:
RMB3,214,543,000), completed properties of about RMB704,968,000
(2011: nil) and property and equipment of about RMB 168,025,000 (2011:
RMB146,617,000) were pledged to secure the banking facilities of the
Group. There were time deposits of RMB95,750,000 being pledged as at
31 December 2012 (2011: nil). The 100% equity interest of a subsidiary
of the Company with total equity of about RMB1,258,394,000 (2011:
675,560,000) was pledged to secure other borrowings for the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, deposits of about RMB28,176,000 (2011:
RMB23,130,000) were pledged to banks as guarantees to mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Foreign exchange risk

As the sales, purchase and bank borrowings of the Group in 2012 and
2011 were made mainly in Renminbi, the foreign exchange risk exposed
by the Group was relatively minor. The Group did not use foreign exchange
hedging instruments to hedge foreign exchange risks in 2012 and 2011.

Interest rate risks

The interest rates for certain portion of the Group’s loans were floating.
Upward fluctuations in interest rates will increase the interest cost of new
loans and existing loans. The Group currently does not use derivative
instruments to hedge its interest rate risks.
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Subsequent events

Successful bidding of land

As announced on 1 February 2013, Zhong An Group Co, Ltd.* (RZ £
BIRAT]) (@ 90% owned subsidiary of the Company in the PRC) made
a successful bid, through open tender auction, for the land use right of
a piece of land situated at east to the planned Lingfeng Road, south to
the planned Hengwu Road, west to the planned Pengyuan Road and
north to the planned greenbelt river course of Longshan Xincheng, Cixi,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC (the “Site”) at the total land grant price of
RMB238,080,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$293,890,000). The Site
is allowed for residential and commercial development with land use right
of 70 years and 40 years respectively. The area of the Site is approximately
197,655 sg.m. (as to approximately 57,186 sq.m. for commercial purpose
and approximately 140,469 sg. m. for residential purpose) and its total
gross floor area is approximately 494,138 sg. m. (as to approximately
142,965 sg.m. for commercial purpose and approximately 351,173 sg.m.
for residential purpose), based on the plot ratio of 2.5.

Save as disclosed above, there was no matter occurred that bears
significant effect to the Group between the year end date and the date of
this annual report.

Prospects

In view of continuous implementation of the regulatory measures by the
central government, the property market development is expected to
be on a stable manner in the short term. With the central government’s
advocation of urbanization and the steady economic growth, the demand
for value-for-money and end-use residential properties remain strong and
solid.

The Group proactively acquire land from which products to be sold at a fair
price and will develop more projects that lead to quick cash inflow. This is
in line with the prudent approach adopted for years in acquiring land for
development. By doing so, it is expected that a quick asset turnover can
be achieved gradually.

The Group still continue to focus on residential development in cities,
particulary, second and third tier cities, with relatively high GDP per capita
in Pan Yangtze River Delta. Together with the Group’s quality property
management and other value-added services to the communities of the
properties developed by the Group, corporate branding will therefore be
enhanced further.

In addition, the Group will continue to maintain sufficient cash flow and to
achieve relative low finance cost from enhancing the financing structure of
the Group.

Eventually, the Group will achieve a more fast-paced growth in sales that
lead to greater market share in Pan Yangtze River Delta.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
maintaining good corporate governance in safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and enhancing
Shareholders’ value.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted, in so far as they are applicable, the
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Former Code”) (as enhanced by the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Revised Code”), which has
become effective on 1 April 2012) and certain recommended best
practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year”), the Board
has applied the principles of the Code Provisions contained in, and
complied with, the Former Code (during the period from 1 January
2012 to 31 March 2012) and the Revised Code (during the period
from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012) with the exception of
the deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 (as the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company were not
separate and were both performed by Mr Shi Kancheng).

The Board believes that the performance of the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer by the same person provides the
Company with consistent leadership and enables the Company to
formulate its business strategies and implement its business plans
and decisions efficiently.

The Board will review the management structure of the Group
from time to time and will adopt appropriate measures as may
be desirable for future development of the operating activities or
business of the Group.
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(B) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors of the Company (the “Directors”) on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Following specific enquiries by the Company, all Directors have
confirmed with the Company that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during
the Year.

(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Lou Yifei

Ms Shen Tiaojuan

Mr Zhang Jiangang

Independent non-executive Directors
Professor Pei Ker Wei (Re-elected on 25 May 2012)
Professor Wang Shu Guang (Re-elected on 25 May 2012
and resigned on 1 January 2013)
Dr Loke Yu (Re-elected on 25 May 2012 and with professional
qualification in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules)
Mr Zhang Huagiao (Appointed on 1 January 2013)

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

—T——44% 35

REEEBRRAR

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRSE

(B) EFHEFXH

AR AERRTER R A8 10 AT
HH LT RRERETEFZSNIRETR
(MBREFR D REER - RANERARLE
EX([EB ) ETEFRINTRTA -

ARBEAMEERELRESH - MAE
EFEAARRER - tAINFASETER
ETRIRARRBEESLETES R HNT
AT RIFTEN VAR FE R -

(C) EFE

REFANERNT

HTES

HeEfAk e (R AP R )
(EEFREFERITE)

B—REL

LS g

oRER S ST A

BYFHTES

B8R (N 201245 25 BEEE)

TR IR (R 20124 5 A 25 HEERY
201341 A1 HEHMT)

BESMIE T (R2012F5 25 B EIE
TR EMRAIE310Q) REBEEER)

SRAEMBRE (R 201341 A1 BEZRT)

RAFEN  EFFEAERRBET LT
RAIZE310() R310QEMAZEE L =%
BAITERERERE D —REIEWIT
EZVAEBEENTEER - g3
NS EEERNENK o



36 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2012 Annual Report

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, the proportion of which is higher than what
is required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Board believes
there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard
the interests of shareholders.

The Board meets regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
electronic means of communication in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”).

A total of five Board meetings were held during the Year. The
individual attendance of each Director was as follows:
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Number of Attendance

HERE
Mr Shi Kancheng MO A 5
Mr Lou Yifei B—REL 5
Ms Shen Tiaojuan LGB 2 5
Mr Zhang Jiangang o EX 8 55 A 5
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHE 5
Professor Wang Shu Guang FREFHIR 5
Dr Loke Yu EEEE L 5

All Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) held on 25 May 2012.

The Board operates and exercises its power in accordance with the
Articles. In addition, the Board has also specifically resolved that all
transactions/contracts/other matters of the Group that are subject
to the disclosure requirement in accordance with the Listing Rules
should be approved by the Board in advance.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Directors had taken external trainings in the form of seminars
and courses provided by educational institutions and professional
bodies.

The Company had arranged liability insurance for Directors and
senior management officers of the Company with appropriate
coverage in respect of legal action against the Directors arising from
their duties performed.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in the annual report of the Company, there
are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to
fill @ casual vacancy in the Board or as an additional member of
the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
members of Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM, one third of the
Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened
and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director by
ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his period
of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director and may by
ordinary resolution elect another person in his stead.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees, including the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the governance committee
(the “Governance Committee”). All the Board committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available for inspection by shareholders on
the Company’s website. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

(D) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(E)

OFFICER

During the Year, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company were performed by Mr Shi Kancheng.

The Chairman had held a meeting with all independent non-
executive Directors in the absence of executive Directors. No
specific or other issues had been raised or discussed as it had
been concluded that all issues which would be discussed had been
properly dealt with in the meetings of the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
term of two years commencing on 30 June 2011 for Dr Loke Yu, and
1 November 2011 for Professor Pei Ker Wei and Professor Wang
Shu Guang.

The director’s fee specified in the service contract of each of Dr
Loke Yu, Professor Pei Ker Wei and Professor Wang Shu Guang are
RMB150,000, RMB200,000 and RMB100,000 respectively.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to the
Board.
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(F) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Professor Pei Ker
Wei and the members are Ms Shen Tiaojuan and Dr Loke Yu.

The Company has adopted written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee. The role and function of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company include the following:

(@  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

(c)  to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

(d)  toreview and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise
fair and not excessive for the Company;

(e)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

[} to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(9  toreview and approve the remuneration report of the Group, if
any.
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The basis of the emolument payable to the Directors is determined
with reference to the range of prevailing directors’ fee for director
of listed companies in Hong Kong and is subject to the approval of
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee will
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, experience and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the
Year. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed the terms of
remuneration packages of the independent non-executive Director
appointed during the Year. The individual attendance of each
member was as follows:

BN TEENHMNELELEETL LHAF]
RTESHeHEET - NARFTHERS
B - IBAEE - FNZ B e REEBNEE
BREALBARENOFE « HHARE -
BEESNKRIBE  RAKEETH)
HIEAIGN R R ERIZRIVEEHM -

FAFHEESRITT —REGE - FTWEE
SR EHNAFEREB IR TERNG
AR A 6 3R - B AKX B A8 Bl b R R Ean
T

Number of Attendance

HERE

Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHR
Ms Shen Tiaojuan PSRt
Dr Loke Yu FEgMIE L

(G) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr Shi Kancheng and
the members are Professor Pei Ker Wei, Dr Loke Yu and Professor
Wang Shu Guang.

The Company has adopted written terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee. The role and function of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(@  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular
basis;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated for
directorship;

(c) to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

(G) RBZRE
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(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to, among others, the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors (in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company);

(e) to give full consideration to, among others, the skills and
expertise required from members of the Board and the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with regard to
Directors and such like in the discharge of the Nomination
Committee’s duties;

® in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered
into by any members of the Group with its director or
proposed director, which require the prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company at general meeting under
Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules, to review and provide
recommendations to the shareholders of the Company (other
than shareholders who are directors with a material interest in
the relevant service contracts and their respective associates)
as to whether the terms of the service contracts are fair and
reasonable and whether such service contracts are in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole,
and to advise shareholders on how to vote;

(@  to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
receive a formal letter of appointment setting out what is
expected of them in terms of time commitment, committee
service and involvement outside meetings of the Board;

(h)  to conduct exit interviews with any Director upon their
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his/her
departure; and

(i) to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.

The nomination procedures are as follow: candidates for directorship
are selected by the Nomination Committee subject to the review and
approval of the Board in accordance with the Articles. The criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee in selecting and approving
candidates for directorship are based on whether the candidates are
appropriate in terms of experience and the potential contribution to
the Group.
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Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during
the Year. The Nomination Committee nominated, and the Board
recommended Mr Lou Yifei, Ms Shen Tiaocjuan and Mr Zhang
Jiangang to be re-elected at the annual general meeting held on
27 May 2011 and the nomination of Mr Zhang Huagiao for the
replacement of Professor Wang Shu Guang who submitted his

resignation during the Year.

The individual attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee was as follows:

FARBEZEESHBITNRNEGE - REEE
SRR EEFEEEE—REE  LIKBR
T RORERM L AR 2011 5 A 27 HETH
BREBAFAG FERETWIRBRBEE
BERNAFERRNTE I

EREZEGXBNERHFEEMT

Number of Attendance

HERE
Mr Shi Kancheng MO S A 2
Professor Pei Ker Wei BEREHE 2
Professor Wang Shu Guang FRERHF 2
Dr Loke Yu PGB L 2

(H) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

()

The audit fee of the Group in respect of audit services provided
by the Independent Auditors, Ermst & Young, for the Year was
RMB1,700,000 (2011: RMB1,600,000).

During the Year, the Independent Auditors was also engaged in
providing non-audit service in relation to the review of interim results
of the Company at a fee of RMB$420,000 (2011: RMB600,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr Loke Yu and the
members are Professor Pei Ker Wei and Professor Wang Shu
Guang. All members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The role and functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  to consider, and to make recommendation to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;
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to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

to discuss with the external auditors before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations and ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm is involved;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor
to supply non-audit services. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identify and make recommendations
where action or improvement is needed. The Audit Committee
should also review the non-audit services provided by the
external auditor on an annual basis, to ensure that the
independence of such external auditor will not be affected;

to monitor integrity, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;

to review, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly report. The Audit Committee should focus
particularly on the following aspects before submission of
reports to the Board:

i. any changes in accounting policies and practices;

ii. major judgmental areas;

iii. significant adjustments resulting from audit;

iv. the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

V. compliance with accounting standards;

Vi. compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

vii.  the fairness and reasonableness of any connected
transaction and the impact of such transaction on the
profitability of the Group;
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vii. — whether all relevant items have been adequately
disclosed in the Group’s financial statements and
whether the disclosures give a fair view of the Group’s
financial conditions;

ix.  any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to
be, reflected in such reports and accounts; and

X. the cashflow position of the Group;

members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the Board,
senior management and the Audit Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors. The Audit
Committee should consider any significant or unusual items
that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and must give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting functions, compliance
officer or auditors;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and to discuss with the
management the system of internal control and ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system and to review the Company’s
statement on internal control systems (where one is included
in the annual report) prior to endorsement by the Board,;

to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to review the internal
audit programmes, to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company and to review and monitor the
effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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to conduct exit interviews with any director, manager, financial
controller or internal credit control manager upon their
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the Board and to
prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the Group’s
interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be an Audit
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors and
accounting staff either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Audit Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of them;

to consider the major findings of internal investigations and
management’s response;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in the Code
Provisions contained (and as amended from time to time) in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

to review arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.
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A total of three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during FRNEZEESHBITZNEH - BZEE
the Year. The work performed by the Audit Committee during the SRAFEETNIIERENTSE

Year included the following:

reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011;

reviewed the interim report and interim results announcements
of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2012;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and other financial reporting matters;

reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with
external auditors on any significant findings and audit issues;

reviewed the results of internal audit and had discussion with
internal auditor on any significant findings and internal control
issues;

discussed with the external auditors before the audit
commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the
respective relevant issues; and

considered and approved the service contract of the auditors
for the Year.

The individual attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
was as follows:

—  EBHEAQREHZE2011F12831HIE
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Number of Attendance

HE R
Dr Loke Yu R @ iE + 3
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHF 3
Professor Wang Shu Guang FRERHR 3



(J) GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a governance committee (the “Governance
Committee”) and the terms of reference adopted complied with the
requirement of the Listing Rules.

The chairman of the Governance Committee is Mr Shi Kancheng.
The remaining members are Ms Shen Tiaojuan, Mr Zhang Jiangang,
Professor Pei Ker Wei and Professor Wang Shu Guang.

The role and functions of the Governance Committee include the
following:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report;

One meeting of the Governance Committee was held during the
Year. The Government Committee had discussed and reviewed the
Board’s and the Group’s compliance with the Code Provisions and
the prevailing Listing Rules during the Year.
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The individual attendance of each member of the Governance

Committee was as follows:

ERZBESKENERHFEENT :

Number of Attendance

HERE
Mr Shi Kancheng MO S 1
Ms Shen Tiaojuan PSRt 1
Mr Zhang Jiangang SRERHH 5L AE 1
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHEX 1
Professor Wang Shu Guang FRENRHE 1

The terms of reference of the Governance Committee are available
on the Company’s website.

(K) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN

(L)

PREPARING THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view of the
Company and the Group.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the accounts of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual report.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE INTERNAL
CONTROL OF THE GROUP

The Directors had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group and resolved that
the system of internal control of the Group during the Year was
effective. Such review had covered all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

The Directors have considered that there are adequate resources
and budget available for the staff with appropriate qualifications and
experience in the aspect of training and discharging the accounting
and financial reporting functions.
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(M) COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company had appointed Mr Lam Yau Yiu as its company
secretary (the “Secretary”). Mr Lam had taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biography of Mr Lam is set out
on page 58 of this annual report.

(N) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). Pursuant to article 64 of the
Articles, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more Shareholders made to Directors or
the Secretary specifying the objects of the meeting, provided that
such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the
nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or
she should give to the Secretary notice in writing of the intention
to propose a person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his or her willingness to be so elected, no earlier
than the 7 clear days after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 clear days prior to the date
appointed for the relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.
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(O) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS (O) EEEXH
The Company had adopted amendments to the memorandum of BIE2012%F 5 A25 HARNKRERBEF KE
association of the Company (the “Memorandum”) and the Articles FBE—IERRPRESR - AR RIS RAAR
in respect to the amendments to the Listing Rules relating to, among ZRARM(TKE D RBREHERTA - HEE
other matters, corporate governance practices, which came into BRAMEME TR EEA(EREE)NES
effect on 1 January 2012 and 1 April 2012, by a special resolution AR EMRAEET (BABEI2RE
passed in the annual general meeting held on 25 May 2012. R2012F1 A1 8 K2012F 4 A1 HE®)
YERHY -
The Memorandum and the Articles are available on the Company’s R NSl = A NN TE R
website. EA
For and on behalf of the Board REESFE
Zhong An Real Estate Limited BRREERRAT
Shi Kancheng *E
Chairman e BX

The People’s Republic of China, 13 March 2013 FREEARHAAE - 20133 A 13 H
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GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY 2012

Zhong An - participation in charity and the
pursuit of our mission “Giving Back to the
Society”

Zhong An has always been pursuing the mission of “Giving Back to the
Society”.

The Group embraces the belief of contributing to the society. We strive
to have better economic performance with the goal of benefitting the
society to the greatest extent in mind. Therefore, we devote ourselves
to the development of charitable affairs. We also proactively participate
in community welfare activities. We have from time to time expressed
concerns over the livelihoods of the underprivileged groups and are willing
to undertake our corporate social responsibilities.

We have devoted ourselves to participation of charitable affairs. During the
year under review, we made donations to various organisations so as to
enshrine the spirit and fulfill the mission of ‘Giving Back to the Society’.

We had donated RMB30,000 to the “Warming Up Project” in the Xiaoshan
District of Hangzhou to sponsor the social services which target the needy
grassroots. This is a local project that Zhong An has supported for years.
We also donated RMB50,000 to another local welfare organisation in
Fudun Village, Jinghua Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou as a patronage
1o help the poor. We provided patronage amounting to RMB35,000 to the
police force in Chunan County, Hangzhou and a fire station in Xiaoshan in
appreciation of their services rendered for the local citizens.

We also extend the patronage to sports. As our support to the
development of sports, we donated RMB50,000 to the 13th Organising
Committee of Sports of Suzhou. This is another gesture we would like to
enhance the promotion of sports to the general public in Suzhou.

Futhermore, Zhong An cares about the development of gender equality in
Hong Kong. We donated RMB81,000 to Hong Kong Federation of Women
as a means to promote equality and to protect the rights of women in Hong
Kong. Education is another field covered by our patronage. We donated
RMB94,000 to St. George School Foundation in Vancouver, Canada.

Zhong An will continue to fuffill its corporate philosophy of “Giving Back to
the Society”.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan), aged 50, is the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (the “Company”)
and also holds directorships in certain of its subsidiaries. Mr Shi is primarily
responsible for the strategic and development planning of the Group. He
also supervises project planning and the overall business operation. Mr
Shi joined the Group since the establishment of the first member of the
Group, Zhong An Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Zhejiang Zhong’an
Property Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhong An Group”). Mr Shi served as
a tax officer in the finance and revenue bureau of Xiaoshan District of
Hangzhou (formerly known as Xiaoshan City) and the general manager
of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Milkyway Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Milkyway Real Estate”). Mr Shi graduated from an Executive Master of
Business Administration program co-organized by the State University of
Arizona and Shanghai National Accounting College in June 2007. From
2005 to 2006, Mr Shi completed a program for executive officers, focusing
on globalization and real estates developers, co-organized by Harvard
University, Tsinghua University, The University of Hong Kong and the
United States Military Academy. In the same period, Mr Shi completed a
program for presidents of real estates companies organized by Zhejiang
University. Mr Shi has over 20 years of experience in property development
and property investment. Mr Shi is the sole director and the sole
shareholder of Whole Good Management Limited, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Lou Yifei, aged 63, is an executive Director and the general manager of
Hangzhou Anyuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (a company owned
as to 45.9% by the Group) and holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the operation and project
management of the Group. He joined the Group in March 2006. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr Lou was the vice president and manager of the
engineering department of Laiyinda Real Estate Co., Ltd., a supervisor
of Laiyin Property and had served various positions in the same group of
companies from 2000 to 2006. Mr Lou was a deputy general manager
of Milkyway Real Estate from 1994 to 2000. From 1984 to 1994, Mr Lou
worked for a government bureau of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou, where
he was primarily responsible for infrastructure construction management.
From 1978 to 1983, he served as construction and engineering manager
of Linpu Construction Company. He received an associate degree in
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architectural engineering from Wuhan University of Technology in 1992
and completed a graduate degree in structural engineering at Zhejiang
University of Technology in 2002. Mr Lou obtained his engineering
qualification in 1999. Mr Lou has 34 years of experience in the construction
operations and management of property development.

Shen Tiaojuan, aged 50, is an executive Director and the Vice President
of the Company and also holds directorships in certain of its subsidiaries.
She is primarily responsible for the financial operation and financial
management of the Group. She joined the Group in December 1997. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms Shen was the chief accountant of White Swan
Industry Co., Ltd. from 1995 to 1997, the chief accountant of Hangzhou
Hualing Electrics Co., Ltd.. in 1994, and the chief accountant and finance
manager of Hangzhou Guanghua Chemical Fibres Factory from 1980 to
1993. Ms Shen has 31 years of experience in the financial operation of
property development.

Zhang Jiangang, aged 43, is an executive Director and the general
manager of Hangzhou Zhong’an Service Holding Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of
the Company) and also holds directorship in a subsidiary of the Company.
He is primarily in charge of strategy implementation and operation
management. Mr Zhang joined the Group in March 2003. He served
as the general manager and vice president of Zhong An Group and the
general manager and assistant to the Chairman of Anhui Zhong An Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company). From 1995 to 2003, Mr
Zhang served as the office manager, assistant to general manager and
vice general manager of Milkkyway Real Estate. Mr Zhang has 18 years of
experience in construction and property development.

Independent non-executive Directors

Pei Ker Wei (PhD), aged 56, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director in October 2007. Dr Pei worked as associate professor,
deputy professor and professor at Arizona State University, chairman of
North America Chinese Accounting Professors Academy and chairman
of global commission of American Accounting Academy. He is currently
the Executive Dean of Chinese Programmes at the W.P. Carey School
of Business of Arizona State University, the U.S. and a member of the
American Accounting Academy. Dr Pei is also serving as an independent
non-executive director of Want Want China Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and a director of Baoshan
Iron & Steel Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Dr Pei received his MBA from the Southern lllinois
University, the U.S. in 1981 and PhD from the University of North Texas,
the U.S. in 1986.
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Dr Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam), aged 63, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2009. Dr Loke is currently the company
secretary of Minth Group Limited, and serves as an independent non-
executive director of Bio-Dynamic Group Limited, Chiho-Tiande Group
Limited, China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Holdings Limited, Matrix
Holdings Limited, SCUD Group Limited, Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited, VODone Limited and Winfair Investment Company Limited, the
shares of which companies are all listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a
fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. He is also an Associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He holds MBA from the University
Teknologi Malaysia and DBA from the University of South Australia. He
has over 37 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.

Zhang Huagqiao, aged 49, was appointed an independent non-executive
Director on 1 January 2013. Mr Zhang has been the Chairman of China
Mezzanine Capital Group since June 2012. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Fosun International Limited and a non-executive
director of Bower Power Holdings Limited and Oriental City Group
Holdings Limited, the shares of which companies are all listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr Zhang is also a director of Nanjing Central Emporium Stocks
Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. He was the Chairman of Guangzhou Wansui Micro Credit Co.,
Ltd. between June 2011 and July 2012 and an executive director and chief
executive officer of Man Sang International Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, between September 2011 and
April 2012. From June 1999 to April 2006, Mr Zhang had worked with
UBS Securities Asia Limited and served as a managing director and the
co-head and head of its China research team. Prior to this, Mr Zhang had
worked as a principal staff member with the People’s Bank of China in
Beijing between July 1986 and January 1989. Mr Zhang graduated from
the Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China with a master’s degree
in economics in 1986 and from the Australian National University with a
master’s degree in economics in January 1991. Mr Zhang has 22 years of
experience in the financial sector.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Ka Yeung, aged 33, is the chief investment officer and investor
relations director of the Group. He is mainly responsible for investment
management, corporate finance, investor relations, as well as other capital
markets and corporate communications related affairs of the Group.
He joined the Group in January 2013 and was the deputy head and
responsible officer of the Capital Markets Department of Agile Property
Holdings Limited (a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange), with extensive experience in financial services and investor
relations. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in economics (honors) from
the University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign in the United States of
America.

Jin Jianrong, aged 44, is the vice president of the Zhong An Group
and the general manager of certain subsidiaries of the Group in Zhejiang
Province. He is in charge of engineering management of the projects of
the Group. Mr Jin joined the Group in September 2004. Prior to joining
the Group, he was the deputy general manager in charge of construction
matters of Zhejiang Lvdu Real Estate Development Company from 2003
to 2004, and a construction manager of Zhejiang Wanxiang Real Estate
Company from 1997 to 2002. He was responsible for project management
of Milkkyway Real Estate from 1995 to 1997, and was a project manager
and worker of Xuxian Construction Co., Ltd. from 1987 to 1994. Mr Jin
received a bachelor degree in civil engineering and management from the
Sichuan University in 2006. He has 25 years of experience in operation and
management of property companies.

Dong Shuixiao, aged 48, is the vice president and officer of the president
office of the Group. He mainly assists the Chief Executive Officer on the
administration and general project management of the Group. He joined
the Group since 1997. He served as the deputy general manager (in
charge of finance) in Anhui Zhong An Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. in
January 2003. He was responsible for the on-site technology supervision,
construction and cost control of the project in Yisheng in February 2004.
In March 2006, he was promoted as the deputy manager of Zhong An
Group, and in charge of financial operation. From 2007 to November
2012, he served as the general manager of Anhui Zhong An Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. and certain subsidiaries of the Group in Anhui
Province. Prior to joining the Group, he was the accountant and deputy
finance manager of Xiaoshan Material Bureau from 1985 to 1993. From
1994 to 1996, he was the manager of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Hongsen
Material Co., Ltd. and responsible for operational management. Mr Dong
received his college diploma in industrial and civil construction from the
China University of Geosciences. He has over 16 years of experience in
property operation and management.
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Jin Ni, aged 37, is the vice president of the Group and the general
manager of Zhejiang Zhongan Commercial Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company). She is in charge of strategic
development and the business management and operation of commercial
projects of the Group, and investment and management of commerical
projects of the Group and operaiton management. She joined the Group
in May 1997. She served as a sales lady initially and was promoted to
become the vice manager of the Sales Department, an office manager,
and the deputy general manager of the Group from 1997 to 2006. She
received her bachelor’s degree in management from Zhejiang University
of Technology in 2003 and an associate bachelor degree in accounting
from the East College of Zhejiang University in 1996. She has 16 years
of experience in sales, and operation and management of property
companies.

Li Mouxing, aged 40, is the head of the design centre of the Group and
assistant to Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for engineering and
research and development. Mr Li joined the Group in July 2010. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Li served as engineer in charge of Greentown China
Holdings Limited from October 2003 to July 2010, and structural engineer
of Zhejiang Industry Design & Research Institute from 1997 to 2003. Mr
Li obtained a bachelor degree in engineering mechanics from the Hehai
University. He holds constructor and structure engineer qualification.
He has over 17 years of experience in product design and engineering
management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam Yau Yiu, aged 49, is the financial controller and the company
secretary of the Company. He joined the Group in October 2008. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked for a company with property development
business in China for more than 2 years. He also acted as the finance
manager, financial controller and company secretary for three listed
companies in the United States of America and Hong Kong for a total of
about 7 years. He also worked for an international accounting firm over
3 years. Mr Lam graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor Degree in Accounting. He also holds a degree of Master of
Business Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He has about 24 years of experience in external auditing, finance and
accounting.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (the
“Company”) are pleased to present their annual report to shareholders of
the Company and the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group are property development, leasing and hotel
operation. The nature of the principal activities have not changed during
the year under review.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 75 to 82.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on page 208. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment, and investment
properties of the Group and the Company during the year under review are
set out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages 200 and
201.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company (“Shares”) and share options of the Company during the year
under review are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 33 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s accumulated losses amounted
to RMB123,619,000 and the Company’s share premium amounted to
RMB2,983,238,000. By passing an ordinary resolution of the Company,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium account
or any other fund or account which can be authorized for this purpose in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The details of the share option scheme approved by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 15 May 2009 (the “Scheme”) are
disclosed below pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 17 of Rules
(the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”):

1. Purpose of the Scheme:

as incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group.

2. Participants of the Scheme:

(@ any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any equity entity
(“Invested Entity”) in which any members of the Group holds
an equity interest;

(b) any non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;
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(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(@  any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for subscription:

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30 per cent. of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of this Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 10 per cent. of the Shares in issue as at the
date of passing the relevant resolution adopting the Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme:
194,267,200 Shares (representing 10% of total issued share capital

of the Company as at 15 May 2009) are available for issue under the
Scheme as at the date of this report.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme:

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Group (if any) (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-
month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any further
grant of options, which would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
to such participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) under the Scheme and other share option schemes of the
Group (if any), in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant in excess of the Individual Limit shall be subject
to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company with
such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and the exercise period of the option:

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
to a grantee, there is no minimum period under the Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day after the date
upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the period within
which payment must be made:

Nominal amount of HK$1 upon acceptance of the grant of option
and options may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer for grant of the option.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is the highest of the nominal value of the Shares;
the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; and the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.
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BEEgRE
9. Remaining life of the Scheme: 9.  EZETEIRIFIERE R
The Scheme will expire on 14 May 2019. 22BN 201955 A 14 BfEim »
OUTSTANDING OPTIONS RRITER SR IE

Details of options (the “Options”) granted under the Scheme and R EIEFEVRELRBEZAEDHEEmMEARITE
outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year under review as  FBERS#E ([ BBARFE ) SFI50T -

follows:
Options granted under the Scheme BEZFTEERE 2 BIRE
Number Number Number  Outstanding Exercise price
Name of Outstanding at of Options of Options of Options ~ at 31 December Date of of Option HK$
participants 1 January 2012 exercised cancelled lapsed 2012 Options granted Exercise period per share
0128 0128
1A18 Bfift Bi# BAH 124318 BREGREE
SaAne AT EREHE BREHE EREHE AT RiAS i =Ly
Category 1: Directors
EAERE H
Shi Kancheng 2,883,720 2,883,720 9July 2010 Note 1 258
A 201057 A9R fif3E 1
2,300,000 2,300,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
011E1A228 to 21 January 2021
01451 A 228
E01E1A21A
5,183,720 5,183,720
Shen Tiaojuan 1,441,860 1,441,860 9.July 2010 Note 1 2.58
IR 201057 R 98 fis 1
1,200,000 1,200,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
M1 F1A2A 1021 January 2021
14515228
E01E1A218
2,641,860 2,641,860
Lou VYifei 1,321,705 1,321,705 9 July 2010 Note 1 2.58
B-R 201057 A9R Hf3E 1
1,100,000 1,100,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
011%1A220 t0 21 January 2021
14515228
EA1E1A218

2,421,706 2,421,706



64 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2012 Annual Report

Directors’ Report

EEeRE
Number Number Number  Outstanding Exercise price
Name of Outstanding at of Options of Options of Options ~ at 31 December Date of of Option HK$
participants 1 January 2012 exercised cancelled lapsed 2012 Options granted Exercise period per share
o128 0128
1A18 Bfift Bid BAH 124318 BREGREE
BEENL HAGE FRRER FREER FRRER HAGE RiAS s =Ly
Zhang Jiangang 1,321,705 1,321,705 9July 2010 Note 1 258
RE 01057798 B 1
1,100,000 1,100,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
011E1422A t0 21 January 2021
1451528
ENNE1A2E
2,421,705 2,421,705
Pei Ker Wei 360,465 360,465 9 July 2010 Note 1 2.58
H5R 201057 A9R Hi3E 1
300,000 300,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
M1 F1A2A to 21 January 2021
1451528
ZA01E1A218
660,465 660,465
Wang Shu 360,465 360,465 9July 2010 Note 1 258
Guang (resigned on 20105789A Fizt 1
1 January 2013) 300,000 300,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
TER(R013F 11 F1 A28 1021 January 2021
1A1REH) 01451828
E001E1A218
660,465 660,465
Loke Yu 360,465 360,465 9 July 2010 Note 1 2.58
3 201057 A9R iF
300,000 300,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
01151828 to 21 January 2021
014517228
E01E1A218
660,465 660,465
Total Directors 14,650,385 14,650,385
EECH)
Category 2: Employess 18,744,190 (2,883,720) 15,860,470 9July 2010 Note 1 258
Fo8 B 01057498 i 1
21,800,000 (3,500,000) 18,300,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
11F1A2A to 21 January 2021
MAE1R2A
E001E1A218

40,644,190 (6,383,720) 34,160470
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EEERE
Number Number Number ~ Outstanding Exercise price
Name of Outstanding at of Options of Options of Options ~ at 31 December Date of of Option HK$
participants 1 January 2012 exercised cancelled lapsed 2012 Options granted Exercise period per share
R2012% 0128
1R1A Bfif it [BES: 128318 BRETEE
SHE%% HATTE EREZR ERE"R ERE"R HALTHE REAH S SRR
Category 3: Suppliers of 2,403,100 2,403,100 9July 2010 Note 1 2.58
qoods or senvices 2010%7598 i3
538 EORRLER 37,000,000 37,000,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
011E1A220 t0 21 January 2021
014F15228
Z1E1A2 A
39,403,100 39,403,100
Category 4: Others 17,903,101 17,908,101 9July 2010 Note 1 258
248 Hp 201057 R 98 i
14,600,000 14,600,000 22 January 2011 22 January 2014 185
011515228 t021 January 2021
014515228
E1E1A2 A
32,503,101 32,503,101
Total 127,100,776 (6,383,720) 120,717,056
a5
Notes g3
1. The Options may be exercisable at any time during the period from 9 July 2009 to 1. ZEBERT B 200067 A9BBE201947 A8H

8 July 2019 (the “Option Period”) provided that the maximum number of Options IFERRT A (T BB AR REEARS ) BaRS TT(F - MR RFR AR

which each Grantee is entitled to exercise shall not exceed: TENR=ERELE TSEA -

(@) 20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the expiry (@) AEHAHEATEMEEE RN ABEE
of the first anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date immediately before “EREFAMEBLEE EEREaE
the second anniversary of the Date of Grant; 20% ¢

(b) 20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the (b) AEHABE —(EEFREEER L ABEE
second anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date immediately before the —EEFAMEBLBEE EEREag
third anniversary of the Date of Grant; 20% ¢

(© 20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the third () AEHABE - (AEFREEER L ABEE
anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date immediately before the fourth WEAFRE B IEHRM - EERELs
anniversary of the Date of Grant; 20% ¢

(d) 20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the fourth () REEABEMEREFREEEER TN ABEE
anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date immediately before the fifth hEEFAE B ILEE EEREeg

anniversary of the Date of Grant; and 20% : K&
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(e) 20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the fifth
anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date immediately before the sixth
anniversary of the Date of Grant.

2. On 22 January 2011, the Company had granted 80,000,000 Options which may be
exercisable after three years from the date of grant (the “Lock-in Period”) provided
that the Grantee has achieved the prescribed performance target during the Lock-
in Period and has passed the Company’s assessment, and be exercisable before
the expiry of the Option Period on 21 January 2021. The closing price of the Share
immediately before the date of granting the Options was HK$1.85 per share.

3. The exercise price of the Options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Other details of the Option Scheme are set out in the section “Director’s
and Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” and note
32 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 6% of the Group’s consolidated revenue for the year under
review.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for about 20% of the Group’s consolidated purchases for the
year under review.

The largest supplier of the Group accounted for about 6% of the Group’s
consolidated purchases for the year under review.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders of the
Company (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors as at 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan)
Mr Lou Yifei

Ms Shen Tiaojuan

Mr Zhang Jiangang

Independent non-executive Directors

Professor Pei Ker Wei

Dr Loke Yu (alias, Loke Hoi Lam)

Mr Zhang Huagiao (appointed on 1 January 2013)
Professor Wang Shu Guang (resigned on 1 January 2013)

In accordance with articles 108 (A) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr Shi Kancheng and Mr Lou Yifei will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”).

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles of association, the
office of Mr Zhang Huagiao will end at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance subsisting during or at the end of the
year under review in which a Director is or was materially interested.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 54 to 58 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr Shi Kancheng, Mr Zhang Jiangang, Mr Lou Yifei and Ms Shen
Tiaojuan has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant
to which he/she agreed to act as the executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 1 November 2010.
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No Director (including the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM)
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

(1) Long positions in Shares of the Company

Number of Shares held and nature of interest in the Company:

Number and

68 Zhong An Real Estate Limited
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M2012F12A31H » RAFIESEREETHAER
RARE REAEER (RESRBEED ([EH
KERE 51 ) EXVERFT e 2 B3 ) 2 B ~ FBREAR
1D R iERBERE AR ABIEES KB §PIZ£352
BiFEzF Mz E R kAR - SKE LT
RAMEE+ BT AERETERRH 2TE

STRI(MEEFA ) ASTTHEARNR R MBI T2
EfER AR T

(1) REQXTRBOEFR
RAAFRANR KA RAEIEE

Approximate

Name of class of percentage Long/Short

Director Capacity securities held of interest Position
FRiER % A

EEpnE 37 A REH Bk 39873}

Shi Kancheng Interest of controlled 1,628,760,000 Shares 68.79% Long

corporation (Note)

of HK$0.1 each in the

capital of the Company
RRAFEAFIEEO0.10ETTH e
1,628,760,000 A& A% 17

BT R HIEE (i)

Brat - EE R BB Whole Good Management Limited #75 -
H2 e BTRAT 2 HEMK T EESER -

Note: These Shares are held by Whole Good Management Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is solely and beneficially owned by Mr Shi

Kancheng.
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EXERS

2 RARQAEERDHTE :

Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of underlying the Company’s
Director Capacity Shares held issued share capital
EERATE BT
EEpnE 54 s EBEROEE REBQOE DL
Shi Kancheng Beneficial owner 5,183,720 0.22
MK BEmlEA A
Shen Tiaojuan Beneficial owner 2,641,860 0.11
RESE EmlEBA
Zhang Jiangang Beneficial owner 2,421,705 0.10
5% EX 5 BEmlEA A
Lou Yifei Beneficial owner 2,421,705 0.10
B BEmEBA
Loke Yu Beneficial owner 660,465 0.03
= EmlEAA
Pei Ker Wei Beneficial owner 660,465 0.03
Hnf# EmlEB A
Wang Shu Guang Beneficial owner 660,465 0.03

(resigned on 1 January 2013)
TN E=fEAA
(RA2013F1 A1 BET)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO
to have any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year
under review.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, so far as are known to any Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or
deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

70 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

FERRRELFEFHER

BARRBERERHEZTHASMA - 72012
F12A31H  BRAQARESHEEITHAEIN
KA RIREREF LB RIEICIEFE 2 Eaclh
FTcsk - ABEBITTHNEARRR - EEEEES
R AN B D EITIRARE% A =2
ATEAT

Company:
Percentage of the
Number of Company’s issued Long/Short
Name Capacity shares held share capital Position
AT D BT
=L 514 FRERHEE REBNES L 873}
Whole Good Management Beneficial Owner 1,628,760,000 68.79% Long
Limited (Note) (#77t) EnlEEA S=Y
Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited Investment Manager 161,888,000 6.84% Long
RERE oY)

Note: The entire issued share capital of Whole Good Management Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr Shi Kancheng. Mr Shi Kancheng is the sole director of
Whole Good Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

There were no transactions required to be disclosed as non-exempt
connected transactions or non-exempt continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2012. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

H#s - Whole Good Management Limited #2582 #17%
NFER BN SEEBSEER o M/t £ A Whole
Good Management Limited &R — 2 = o

B EXCATIRFTRESN - FA2012F12 A31H » E(T
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had repurchased
a total of 4,060,000 Shares in the Company on the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the general mandate to repurchase shares granted by the
Shareholders at the annual general meetings held on 25 May 2012, details
of which were as follows:
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EXERS

LRIBERENTERME

REARBAHAASHEMERESHA KA
FHRTFMOKRERATARE  ARFCH#E
EFRARENARIFRE -

fBE  HEXROFLFA L
HESF

RBZE20126F12 A31BIEFER - ARAIRER
201245 A25 ARTHIRRBF RS LEREX
TERZ —RERE  RBRABERARRMDS
4,060,000 /% © ZZEHEELZFFIEHT ¢

Price per share

BRER
Number
of shares Highest Lowest
Month/year purchased price paid price paid Total paid
F,/8 BEROHE &S BIK RERRE
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT
January 2012 1,856,000 1.07 1.02 1,937,550
201241 A
September 2012 2,204,000 0.82 0.75 1,723,680
201249 H
4,060,000 3,661,230

All shares repurchased were cancelled and accordingly the Company’s
issued share capital was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
The repurchases were effected for the benefit of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole by enhancing the value of the net assets and
earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

AEREZ RN 2EMEE - MARAZEET
PRI FNRR I F R 2 EE  fBE RO 2 AR
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AR ERR 2 BRI
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately RMB 340,000 (2011: RMB4,400,000).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Other than the successful bid of land located in Cixi, Zhejiang Province
which constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 1 February 2013, there was
no matter occurred that bears significant effect to the Group between the
year end date and the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retired and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On Behalf of the Board
Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Shi Kancheng
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 13 March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
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To the shareholders of Zhong An Real Estate Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong An
Real Estate Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with IFRSs and have been properly prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22nd Floor, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong

13 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

SOftEER

Year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE 2012412 A31 BILFE

2012 2011
20124 20114
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR¥TT ARET T

Revenue PN 5 2,395,625 1,688,699
Cost of sales SHE AR (1,476,403) (889,664)
Gross profit EF 919,222 799,035
Other income and gains E A R 5 20,821 40,004
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R SHRAX (56,708) (90,499)
Administrative expenses TR (237,461) (212,323)
Other expenses HAbF 4,711) (8,865)
Increase in fair value of WEMEN AR

investment properties EEEM 14 60,335 160,430
Finance costs M5 EA 6 (3,660) (447)
Share of profits and losses of: DGR B

Jointly-controlled entities i A K B 1R 19 (1,007) 97)
Profit before tax BR%: A 7 696,831 687,238
Income tax expense FrS R 10 (306,778) (308,671)
Profit for the year FRFIE 390,053 378,567
Attributable to: AT A

Owners of the parent [STNEIEZEPN 11 336,228 351,391

Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 53,825 27,176

390,053 378,567

Earnings per share attributable BAREBREEA

to ordinary equity holders of EEERER

the parent (RMB) (AR¥) 12

Basic and diluted AR EE 14 cents 15 cents

145 1559
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SfEEBERR

Year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE 2012412 A 31 BILFE

2012 2011
20124 20114
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥TT ARET T
Profit for the year FRFE 390,053 378,567
Other comprehensive income HEth2mEikes
Exchange differences on REBINETFEE
translation of foreign operations ZIEN =58 (28,423) (6,332)
Total comprehensive FRE2EWRZEE
income for the year 361,630 372,235
Attributable to: AT A
Owners of the parent BRRHAA 307,805 345,059
Non-controlling interests IR RS 53,825 27,176

361,630 372,235
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SOFBFMR R R

31 December 2012 2012412 431 H

2012 2011
2012 20114
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR¥TT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment B E Rk 13 206,585 226,553
Investment properties B 14 2,057,300 1,995,600
Properties under development Ektasby/ES 15 5,637,964 2,935,604
Goodwill EE 16 - =
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 17 5,610 5,610
Long term prepayments RHEFE R 18 38,910 737,073
Investments in jointly-controlled entities R HEFEE S B EERIRE 19 361,622 177,482
Deferred tax assets RETIBE E 20 128,963 107,746
Restricted cash 2R GRS 26 95,750 =
Total non-current assets BIEREEE 8,532,704 6,185,668
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Completed properties held for sale FEHEEE BRI 22 4,055,476 1,480,192
Equity investments at fair value through AR EETEAHE
profit or loss FTABHEREREE 23 722 1,004
Properties under development akaaask7/ES 15 1,008,595 4,695,260
Inventories FE 9,560 11,623
Trade and bills receivables EWE ZERA N ZEE 24 3,860 56,750
Prepayments, deposits AR BE Rk
and other receivables HAth FEUGRIE 25 215,821 542,972
Restricted cash ZBR IR % 26 129,688 189,587
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 26 894,077 412,508
6,317,799 7,389,896
Investment property classified DA IELHERIRE
as held for sale LS 14 35,100 73,218
Total current assets WRmENEE 6,352,899 7,463,114
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBE
Trade payables JESE SRR 27 1,513,439 1,423,408
Other payables and accruals LAt R FRIE R FEET B 28 662,943 670,731
Advances from customers BEEEMR 29 1,688,766 2,285,805
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ~ 5TE 87T E 7K & EA &R 30 1,739,030 1,064,930
Tax payable FERTFRIR 10 651,799 508,882
Total current liabilities BREBE 6,255,977 5,953,756
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 96,922 1,509,358
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERTBEME
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,629,626 7,695,026
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BH BRI R

31 December 2012 2012412 A 31 H

2012 2011
20124 20114
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®T T AREET T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,629,626 7,695,026
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and ETRIRITER
other borrowings REMER 30 2,493,137 1,990,451
Deferred tax liabilities RETHIEEE 20 435,343 436,467
Total non-current liabilities BIEREEE 2,928,480 2,426,918
Net assets REE 5,701,146 5,268,108
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners ISYNCIEZEPN
of the parent FEfh i
Issued capital BB TR A 31 222,319 222,636
Reserves G 33 5,174,902 4,840,072
5,397,221 5,062,708
Non-controlling interests B 303,925 205,400
Total equity HRER 5,701,146 5,268,108
Shi Kancheng Shen Tiaojuan HEAT R TikiE

Chairman and Director Director TEREE E=a
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Bt EREEX

Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE 2012412 A 31 BILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRGARK
Share Share  Stafutory  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium  Contributed Captal option suplus  reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital ~account  suplus  reseve  resene  resene find  resene profits Total  interests equity
EhE  :ERR iR EikE 2R

Rk ROREE REBM RARRE  ERE NRE  ERE  ERE  REEA it B4
RMBOMO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMB0X0  RMBION0
MERTR  ARBTn  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTn ARRTr  ARMTR  ARRTn ARRTn ARETR ABMTn ARRTx
Note Noted!  Note33g)  Noled3b)  Noted3)  MNole®  Note3e)  Note33d)

b WEst WENm  MEND KN MR HENY HES

At 1 January 2011 D1EAIR 19216 294294 3318 8902 036 142616 8230 (13698 1361190 4636119 178204 4814343
Pt foreyear g - - - - - - - - OBE B am W
Ot compehensie o for e year ﬁWﬁﬁﬁ%W

Etchenge ifrenceson ansition SENRREL

offoreign operions Z&Féﬁa - - - - - - - bW - b - b
Totd compreensie roomeforheyer ~ EREHATNE - - - - - - S /) ) 1 N/ A T V.
lsueofhares &l i 409 BT - - - - - - - BW S
Shareissue expenses RoaRE o - (1% - - - - - - - (0% - (1%
Repuchaseand cancelaionofsheres—~ BEREERR o (189 (t0631) - - - - - - - (11,426 - (11,426)
Eouly-setfed srare opfon arengements ~ REEERRERE - - - - B - - - A - B
Trnslerof shareopfonreseneponthe. RERERUEER

forefure o expy of she options fnehiesE - - - - (i5) - - - 751 - - -
Transler fom retained o RiRERHEE - - - - - 1499 - N ] - - -
At 31 Deosmber 2011 DHERANA W% 2989 30318 890 e 14411 8230 (0280 171183 500708 205400 5,268108
AT January 2012 DE1A1R 26% 2985905 M8 %02 AT 1445 8200 (G020 171838 506708 205400 5,268,108
Proft forhe year ) - - - - - - - - B6U 62 RS W
Othercomprehensie oome for heyear. FRARETE

Bchaedfeencesntensiton~ BEEIEREE

offoreign operaions LERER - - - - - - - By - (B - By
Totd comprehensie ncome forheyesr — FREHAENE - - - - - - - B4 W62 K5 BB %160
Repurchese and cancelafonof s~ BERERRG ot [/ T - - - - - - - B - B
Ceptal contbuton by nor-controling

Shareholers HERRELE - - - - - - - - - R % /7Y ]
Eouiy-setled srare opfon arengements ~ RIEEERRERE 2 - - - - am - - - - -
Transter of shareoptionresenve upon e R ERYEIE
forefure o expy of shre options fanehEsE - - - - e - - - 4647 - - -
Trrsfrfom taned pofs BRARIIER - - - - - N - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 DERANA WMy 2983,20" 038 (43900 09830t 181480 8200+ (108653 2015343 5307221 33925 5,701,146
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERERE BEEHYBERARANEHFEBEAR
RMBS5,174,902,000 (2011: RMB4,840,072,000) in the consolidated statement of #5,174,902,000 7 (2011 4 : A# 4,840,072,000

financial position. JT) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EOETRER

Year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE 2012412 A 31 BILFE

2012 2011
20124 20114
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiiF ARBTR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RELBNESHRE
Profit before tax BRA A 696,831 687,238
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation e 13 21,618 20,580
Changes in fair value of REMEE
investment properties ANEEEEE 14 (60,335) (160,430)
Fair value losses, net: ARABEEERFE:
Equity investments at fair value AR EEFTEAEE
through profit or loss STAEHEENERRE 282 1,168
Equity-settled share option expense IR AE B AR 32 29,712 35,129
Share of profits and losses of DML HRIEHEE
jointly-controlled entities 13 ) & 518 1,007 97
Gain on disposal of HEREWHEEE Kl
investment properties S (3,003) (2,660)
Gain on disposal of equity investments HEUAREBETEAHR
at fair value through profit or loss EE)E A B R R RRE
RE MW - (1,689)
Finance costs %8 A 6 3,660 447
Interest income FBWA 5 (2,867) (5,712)
686,905 574,174
(Increase)/decrease in properties under development BIZEFH 413 (3210) /R4 1,343,040 (3,306,644)
Increase in completed FHEHED ZHK
properties held for sale LES Il (2,575,284) (340,842)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables  EINE SRR EE (38mM) /B d 52,890 (40,611)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, B - e REM
deposits and other receivables e ERIE (32 ), /R 327,151 (183,452)
Decrease in long term prepayments REBNFRD 698,163 1,122,954
Decrease in inventories FERD 2,063 2,568
Increase/(decrease) in restricted cash for BEMBRESRHESEM, ()
pre-sales proceeds 64,945 (173,029)
Increase in trade payables ERTE SR, R 90,031 914,410
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hib e R E A
and accruals #0,/CRd) (132,415) 21,541
Increase/(decrease) in advances from customers &P FERFIE N, (F4>) (585,707) 560,223
Cash used in operations REXBMANES (28,218) (848,708)
Interest received B UF8 2,867 5,712
Interest paid ERFE (362,090) (214,730)
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid EARFTEH & i ER (186,202) (127,966)
Net cash flows used in REERFERN
operating activities BEREFHE (573,643) (1,185,692)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Aﬁiﬁﬁmbii

Year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE 2012412 A31 BILFE

2012 2011
20124 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i0kz3 ARETT AREFT
Net cash flows used in REEEFERN
operating activities BEREFE (573,643) (1,185,692)
Cash flows from investing activities REEBRELENTERE
Capital contributions and loans to R [EIE I E
jointly-controlled entities REZFERER (185,147) (177,579)
Additions to investment properties BEYFEIER - (2,170)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYEMEHRE
investment properties sold 28,424 27,442
Purchases of equity investments BEURABETEEHEE
at fair value through profit or loss STABHEERERE - (14,564)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investment HEUAABETEAH
at fair value through profit or loss SEE AR HERRE
RERPISTIA - 14,075
Purchases of items of property and equipment ~ BEREE NKREER (1,668) (51,452)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHNERE - (2,310)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property HEREKSZEER
and equipment FTiS 508 18 18 29
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash- X HIRE — ERFH
pledged deposits WL/ (HEn) (100,796) 412,000
Net cash flows from/(used in) RELBEE/(ZAB
investing activities BeREFHE (259,169) 205,471
Cash flows from financing activities METHEENELSRE
Proceeds from issue of shares BIRMAAERE 31 - 58,922
Share issue expenses BITRMHFX 31 - (1,095)
Capital contributions by AR AR R &
non-controlling shareholders 44,700 -
New interest-bearing bank and et BIRITER
other borrowings K EffE R 2,627,786 1,930,951
Repayment of interest-bearing BRET BIRITER
bank and other borrowings R H AR (1,451,000) (1,649,570
Repurchase of shares A ) 31 (3,004) (11,426)
Increase in an amount due to FEH#T EARARER
a non-controlling shareholder FRTEE N 18 124,322 63,300
Net cash flows from financing activities BEETHELENBESRETE 1,342,804 391,082
Net increase/(decrease) in FeRESZEEY
cash and cash equivalents #h,/ (rD) B 509,992 (589,139)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F#3R& KBS EEY 412,508 1,007,979
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXEFHNTE  FHE (28,423) (6,332)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRAESRASEEY 894,077 412,508
Analysis of balances of cash ReRASSENEHRIN

and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances and time deposits B MIRI TR AR E BER 26 894,077 412,508
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Statement of Financial Position

B IR R AR

31 December 2012 2012412 431 H

2012 2011
20124 20114
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥TT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries M E R BB E 21 929,934 932,181
Property and equipment B E K& 13 203 370
Total non-current assets BIERENE EE 930,137 932,551
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries LR BT B A B 5kIE 21 1,891,949 1,881,264
Prepayments, deposits and B BE Rk
other receivables oA e SR IE 25 52 17,150
Equity investments at fair value through AR EBEFEAEZSH:TA
profit or loss 2B mnRER A 23 722 1,004
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 26 1,739 22,350
Total current assets BREEE 1,894,462 1,921,768
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE BT A B FRIE 21 109,330 119,388
Other payables and accruals HoAth B 5UE K FE AT E A 28 1,617 622
Total current liabilities wrEamE 110,947 120,010
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 1,783,515 1,801,758
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,713,652 2,734,309
Net assets FEE 2,713,652 2,734,309
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITIRA 31 222,319 222,636
Reserves ] 33 2,491,333 2,511,673
Total equity HRER 2,713,652 2,734,309
Shi Kancheng Shen Tiaojuan HEAR M3

Chairman and Director Director TEREE E
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zhong An Real Estate Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands on 13 March 2007 under the Companies Law (revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally engaged in property development, leasing and hotel
operation. The Group’s property development projects during the
year were all located in Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangsu Provinces, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), the
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Whole Good Management Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2007. Whole Good Management
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Shi Zhongan, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee that remain in effect, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties which have been measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

B 75 ¥ R B

LAFEH

REEEARAR([ARAT])FE2007 F3
H13BRERASEHS QA (KIEET) £
ERSHMK Y HAEREBER AT o NAH
R = B 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

ARBREME AR (GE A EE D) EEH/R
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KARRAER(ERDRA ARFW
PERR A Al R S 42422 AR A B & Whole Good
Management Limited * —Z#E 2007 % 5 A
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Whole Good Management Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ER R M

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 IREIEE ()

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the
non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iiiy any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time

for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards —
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets
IAS 12 Amendments Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred

Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

2.2
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards -
Government Loans?

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and

IFRS 12 Amendments

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised)
Amendments

IFRS 13

IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments

IAS 27 (Revised)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 -
Transition Guidance?

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)
- Investment Entities®

Fair Value Measurement®

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income’

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE A S ah E PR

El

23214

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?

IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine?

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in May

2009-2011 Cycle 20122

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The IFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose information
about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral
agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information
that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on
an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are required for
all recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures
also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with IAS 32.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on
the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify
financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39.

|3
&=

B
M¥EEwELER (1)

B ashER
F285% (REAT)

RELRFRA BT RNRE?

Gl i Bl e ERE R e A s
ERVEACHEN BITA: ZHF-HHeE
EREHEE®
BRUBRERE BEAESLEERNHFAL?
ZESE20%

200922011 5F A M201245 ABH ZIBE R
ZEENE BRERER 2 EFTA?

i 7201247 A1 B sl z & iR F = B AR
2 201341 A1 Bz & Fh #YF[E HAfR A 2K
8 201451 A1 Bz & FA #F[E HAfE A 2K
~ 201551 A1 B3z 1& Fh #F[E HAfE A 2K

TR RSN 68 B P e R 3 B R B s S 5 E
HE— BRI

RIS REENE 75 (BFTAR) ERE
BB R G A S A B AR B 2 Bk (I AR AR
) AR - WG AEAERER T
HFREAE LR EENM R AN E
s R - IR ERERREmMT
B ERMFAEERem T AE®TH
B o 4K FE U1 AR X 0T 58 Hl 1T R = 0F
BEETHREAUGRETZENERA SR
T A (TmedRREER e85 32 57K
) o REEIBHIE 2013 1 B 1 BHERA
PEEERT A o

72009 F 11 A M8 H) BIRR B s S & 2RISR
92 E B R B S ER FE 3952 A
TA: #RRGENZEEENE—HNE
—H5 o ZEBETRERMEEN ST RET
= HSREESEANEENER - B
BARZEREESREENEREA RS
BMEEMNESRENEREHEKN AR AR E
BERERTEHCREEDE - ILERIFY
BT £RE 395 - BERE KBS
MEENDBERFTENTTE



2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of IAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option (“FVQO”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s
credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are scoped
out of the Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on hedge accounting
and impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases, when the final
standard including all phases is issued.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities or structured entities.
It includes a new definition of control which is used to determine
which entities are consolidated. The changes introduced by IFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise significant judgement
to determine which entities are controlled, compared with the
requirements in IAS 27 and SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the issues
raised in SIC-Int 12. Based on the preliminary analyses performed,
IFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on the currently held
investments of the Group.

—z——x5% 87

REFEERRAT]

Notes to Financial Statements

P IE IR R

ot W E R
CENE Y

El

R20105F10 A + BB e S A hE
BB R B 5B O SRV FTIE IR TE AR TR &
BE(FGHRE ) RN BRI HRE2ERIE9
SRS AR e R 4ERIE 305t & B T A AR
TTBUHRERIR A o KEBDFIL R EE A R
SEIERIFE PFIRBHE - AR R EE
SR AHZHTARSIER 2 SRAGEZT
ERBEBARBEEE(ARBERE]
B mRSAABEEEARNS BEE
RBEHMELHNBEAABESSHEHE
VWEREMEERE ((Ebemks) 2
7 o BRIFREMZEREFHBEZEFER
B2V AR EBEEE SR BETELENE
AEFEER BUEHBAABEZHSEN
B2 o A - FEETEWL SRERA R
BESEBMAZEREE RIS EREL

BURR EA TSR 5 A RIZE o 5t B FEER R B R & 5t
ZRIB95REN « AR E R Z AT - B
SEEAFE R ABE RS R ER SR
BERERNIESIEERR - AEBEFEHE
20154 1 A 1 BB ERANEIBR B 75 3 5 22 A 55
9% o AR R E T A S ER B SR AR AT 2
REBERKEREMEERE(CEZLE -
BB A RS R 10 EA R A
(PREERENERBNAELEER) D
—EHIEE o RER|BIEESINFES -
RAREEAZEGENER - MERE 2R
TR EBREEE G —RBE 12545
S —F5k B A B R RTEARLL - BIBREHSR
ERIE105R | ANE B R EAEEE R
EAEEHEARAE - T EEST R
Hl o BB SRS EAF 10RMABEBRE
FTERE 27 SRR A RIB Y B H#RZ - 6
IREMBREARNIBS - MRAEEAER
REZEE -REF12HEREINEE - B
REAEHBFZ DT - BRI RS 2ERIE
10 BEH TS U AEERRRAMNERER
B AEfRIR2E -

==

5 n§ =
i B

OfF O

g



88 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2012 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ER R M

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-
18 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint arrangements with
joint control. It addresses only two forms of joint arrangements,
i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the option to
account for joint ventures using proportionate consolidation.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included
in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, IAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures and IAS 28 Investments in Associates. It
also introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities.

In July 2012, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance in IFRS 10 and provide
further relief from full retrospective application of these standards,
limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information
to only the preceding comparative period. The amendments clarify
that retrospective adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by the Group is
different between IFRS 10 and IAS 27 or SIC-Int 12 at the beginning
of the annual period in which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time.
Furthermore, for disclosures related to unconsolidated structured
entities, the amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before IFRS 12 is first applied.

The amendments to IFRS 10 issued in December 2012 include a
definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity. Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments
were made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011). The amendments to IFRS
12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The Group expects that these amendments will not have any impact
on the Group as the Company is not an investment entity as defined
in IFRS 10.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27 and IAS 28 as a
result of the issuance of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (2011), IAS 28
(2011), and the subsequent amendments to these standards issued
in July and December 2012 from 1 January 2013.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across IFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances in
which the Group is required to use fair value, but provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where its use is already required
or permitted under other IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt IFRS
18 prospectively from 1 January 2013.

The IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented
in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or
loss at a future point in time (for example, net gain on hedge of
a net investment, exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain
on available-for-sale financial assets) would be presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified (for example, actuarial
gains and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land
and buildings). The amendments will affect presentation only and
have no impact on the financial position or performance. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 19 includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes in the
accounting for defined benefit pension plans including removing
the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of recognition
for termination benefits, the classification of short-term employee
benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans. The Group expects
to adopt IAS 19 (2011) from 1 January 2013.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 & S ah B R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group upon adoption on 1 January 2014.

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued in
June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013. There
are separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments are expected to
have a significant financial impact on the Group. Those amendments
that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
policies are as follows:

(@ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies the
difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the financial
statements when it voluntarily provides comparative
information beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain a complete
set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period must be presented when an entity changes
its accounting policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has a material effect
on the statement of financial position. However, the related
notes to the opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that
income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are
accounted for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes. The
amendment removes existing income tax requirements from
IAS 32 and requires entities to apply the requirements in
IAS 12 to any income tax arising from distributions to equity
holders.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which the
Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the
joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are shared
by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint ventures (continued) BELE(E)

A joint venture is treated as: SELEHERRS

(@)  asubsidiary, if the Group/Company has unilateral control, @ —ZFHEBAR MEAEE AQF
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture; HEESHEEZAECEERAEFA

B2

(b)  ajointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company does not b) —EAXREEHETE  MERES K
have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or NaHZeE BN EES HEREEH
indirectly, over the joint venture; ¥ BREESEEERERZAE

=

(€) an associate, if the Group/Company does not have € —ZFEtEAA MEAEE AKQF
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, Nl mEsk ERIEHZAEELE -
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s BE—REZFXEAEFEZEERART
registered capital and is in a position to exercise significant DR20% WEMER - BEZAED
influence over the joint venture; or ERBEZNTET K

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with (d —IERAREREBRESFTZERE 39
IAS 39, if the Group/Company holds, directly or indirectly, SRARR  WRAEE ANANFHESHK
less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and MEEEZA B E DN 20% K s+
has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise BAR - BT HREESIZABERE
significant influence over, the joint venture. SHHWESERTZES -

Jointly-controlled entities HEZEGER

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to

joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having

unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-

controlled entity.

HAEEFERDASHFREZEHNEERE - &
BETHARZENEROBERBIEET
EE I -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Jointly-controlled entities (continued)

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio is different to the Group’s
equity interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the jointly-
controlled entities is determined based on the agreed profit sharing
ratio. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the jointly-controlled
entities, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the
Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in jointly-controlled
entities are treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IAS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed properties held for
sale, properties under development, investment properties, goodwill
and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

FEMEERE

MR—FEE(RTHEE  BERBREE -
TREE FIFHESERYE  RETY
X REME BERFRDEE/SER
FEHENHEARN) FERENR - HFH
BETFERERR - ARG ZEENT
WEeHE BEAKRODSERZEEXR S
Eﬁjﬁﬁ%@iﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁfcfﬁﬁﬂtﬁ’%ﬁﬁﬁ
ﬁﬁ%qﬂ A EE - WIREREEE BT
R BRIEZEETH Fﬁ%zﬁiﬁu NEA
BENEEAMELNRSRA - ERIER

T AERZEEMBNRSERSETNA
WEeE -

REEERESEBBE AT D SRR -
HRRERRX - SHEEREERR - RARKR
EATTSHERREEMEENSERER
MBENFAITR R - SRR RE
FRERE - BIEBKRFTABREEMNESER
hIRDREEENREMOENIARBS » I
REF—H - EEERKEHSEIIE - AR
ERRRRZEELEENAESTBERA
BE o

NE—REHRTERE B IRKAARTHE
REVRIEIB R AT BEE TS A BEPEIR - 40
REE LMD - B RE S EE fﬂé
5T o R —TER BN E ERF -
EFHJJ"&EEWQFTH&@i%ﬁﬁﬂﬁuﬁ”‘@ﬁ@b
W - DARTHERAREIRR A 4E8E 0 - (B
Rz EE ERRERRRER IS INAE E
FE®E  TERNEENFEREER
YRk (E 18 2% IR 1Y BR TED <2 B8 Ok 25 (E frT 8 S5 AN 37
B) - EEREBANEE T AHLEEZH
WiBsEE - BEERKEHESEIE - AR
EIRANERIRRZCEHEENERES:
BURABE o



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The estimated residual values and
useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Useful lives Residual values

Properties 20 years 5% to 10%
Machinery 10 years 5%
Office equipment 5 years 5%
Motor vehicles 5 years 5%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual value, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and equipment and depreciation EERZERITE (&)
(continued)
An item of property and equipment including any significant part WTEETE A E B E R&HE B TR
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future REMARLEF= - AT ERNEE R
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or BAE R RIERE D BRIETER - RZEE
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in RIFTERAEE - HE SRS ZE EREM
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net Wansk 18 - IREMEEHE MG E
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. HEBEERMEWEBNEERIERRE
7,
Construction in progress represents renovation works in progress EETEBIEEETHEIF TIE - BRAE
and is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not BAERRERAR @ BAFE - KAEERE
depreciated. Cost mainly comprises the direct costs of construction REZEHANEREKA - EEETETNIL
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is TEERE 2oy AREHENNERE
reclassified to the appropriate category of property and equipment N EHE o

or investment properties when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties REYHE

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including R ERIENESHEEWRAR & RE
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which BABR/ @ MIEANAESIREE MR
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) SHEEARINEBESBRENHEEMES
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather T RIEFHER (BREACEHEREE
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or EEMTEENEIREMETENTEEYE
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of HE2R) o ZEMEZVIABRER ZK AR
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including RitE - WNUTHERRE @ REYEIL R
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment HHIRMRAR AR EBETIRE

properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at
the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment TEMERD R EEEB)mE £ MU kS
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which 1B REEEFEABZRR -

they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment & & 1) 25 R EE Bk S B R 2K B M 2 S 1R A
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the MEESHE N FEEBRRPER -

retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from completed properties held for sale to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the income statement. If the fair value of an investment property
under construction is not reliably determinable but expected to be
reliably determinable when construction is complete, investment
property under construction is measured at cost until either its fair

REMH (&)
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BEAEZRR T L Al SEfESE © RIRZEZRR Y
HEEERAEEER
ASEEERERTIRIE(ARBEEER

REMFRIRRAAE

value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed #) o
(whichever is earlier).
Properties under development el Gk ES

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale
after completion. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale
and expected to be completed within 12 months from the end of the
reporting period are classified as current assets.

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale
and expected to be completed beyond 12 months from the end of
the reporting period are classified as non-current assets.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment
of the total costs of land and buildings attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value takes into account the selling price,
less estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on
prevailing market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFBERIBRE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in the
income statement. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria under IAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them
in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify them.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or
held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature of the assets.
This evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option at designation,
as these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement in other expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the income
statement in other expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in the
foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets. Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when
the financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-
maturity category is permitted only when the Group has the ability
and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets KRIERIASHMEE ()
(continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows EAEEREEHEWEZEEEMSEESR
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it SRS DTS —IEE A e EE
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of BRRBZEEENADY BBRAMER - LA
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained KERE o ARSI EEE(REZIBE
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred EMBAI SRR REH - B EZ1E
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the BEREGE  ZBEESERNEBNEE
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group RISELHEMERAR - EERT » A%
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the EMEREEAE EEENEEREES
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights EiIE R AEE D (RE RN R EEREE
and obligations that the Group has retained. T2 o

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the SE2 M D EE A EEE MRS - TR
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying ZEEENREOELRNEBNBEENHR
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that BEEE LR (AREEA%E)TE -

the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets SREENRE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether REBNSERESHREEELETTAE - KA
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of KR A ERE S ERARIEEERFEAE
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial BEAFEEELRE - B RESEZEH
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective SBTERNEVBRERERE (A ZESE
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that HCEEEZIBREMDBERESREEK
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss —HERMEENTEAARARASREITE
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future Bz B r AR T80 2 R(E - Bl
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets BEEERGADBERE - B4 RMENE
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include BRI REBIEES A Sk — B &S A HIRERET
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing BNE - BHRHERFESAS TN - BE
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or Fe ESGET M EAR 2 A RE R
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy RERKAEBF AR RERE RS A
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that A5t E - B A8 s PR A IR
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, RELE -

such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) SREENRE (&)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost REBRRAEAENEREE

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first HINBE#AK AT BEN S REE  AEEY
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment S EBEIESEE AN S R E EEEE TS
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or ELERBRESE HEESTEITEKN
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. He B ELREITTG - WRAEERTE
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment BETENEREE 2 REREZEL TMF
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant T ERESHEELEA HESEFHEER
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with BEUEHRRFENSMEEHLS NET
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for BERAR - BEBETRERNR S ERR
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and BEEEEEREAREEENSREE T
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are ERRESMEEMREGFHEITRERR -

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been MEZRBNRERNS EAREREIE  BES
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference Bz EENRABEEMGFT AR RE
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of (MEERAZEENRREEEE)WRER
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have EREREE o Bt ARREERENRER
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash B ENRERA R (BEIY)E MR E
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest FARERAR)ITIR - GRZFEFREK -
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Tt EREBRE I EARTERNEZES
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring WEEK

any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through ZEEMRAENRSERE PREERER
the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is Bk BRI - mEiEeEEa
recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues to MBI RIER o AL EEEL B2
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using (BB E RIS RS ETHTIR AT
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the BRELELDFBVERIREETE - S E
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables ] B IR AR ACRE IR E N SR - skFTa
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is mEBERNEEAREE - T HZERRIE
no realistic prospect of future recovery. WO RIE K A A o

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment WEZREEME - EREBEEREELERE
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the fHEtREER S BRSOk DS - e
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment R S HE AR DAIS AN Skl A o R RE R RO R (B
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If 18 o (MARRIMSEE B Y E - B [E5EE AE
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the WA o

income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination
of what is “significant” or “"prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the income statement
— is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the income statement if the
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the
case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and
interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the income statement does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria of IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair value is
determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred on disposal.

Cost of inventories includes the transfer from equity of gains and
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges in respect of the purchases of
raw materials.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the
higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the general guidance for provisions above; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FESHBFIEE (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee retirement benefits EERAKER

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government, the B BB AR ARER - 5 B A L2
companies comprising the Group operating in Mainland China (the HMBAR([FREB AR NEKRNTE
“PRC group companies”) have participated in a local municipal WA RR RS T8I (32518l ]) » %512
government retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”), whereby ERPHEEARIRARETIEATE —F
the PRC group companies are required to contribute a certain e Blmazat 2R - AT AR AR TR
percentage of the salaries of their employees to the Scheme to Be AEFEAEZTENE —BFE2EER
fund their retirement benefits. The only obligation of the Group with T EIB AT IR TR » ZETEIIE TR
respect to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions under HEREE LR ABER °

the Scheme. Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
income statement as incurred.

Income tax s %t

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax and land Fr {5 %% B 45 B BR R R RE A 18 DA I + 43 (E
appreciation tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside i o ETEB S AIMER R TE B B B ATEH
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other RS AN EAth 2 S N AER S B R
comprehensive income or directly in equity. R ANHER o

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are ENER G T EA 2 B HAT IE & = N B S LA TEHI
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to BMEERWEsmEX N2 2B T UAGE
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have HN RSB EREEMERR EIRBIT R
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting BEED - IR E B ERSHRAIE K
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices BENT 2R (MFRIEER) REEE -

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary EER B N RE SRR EERBENFE
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases EEAER TSRS AR EZ FMOME Y
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial BEZEAAEAEHBE -

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary BB ERES I E R SR =R

differences, except: ABR - BATIERBRIN

. when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial ° TR 5 (EBEFHRIN B - e
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not AN HERR A E ok A (E 1 B AR BV IR AT
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, HIE B B 25 A Bk e R &S
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; EIBKTE &

and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued) Fris®i (&)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with o TR BARINEBECENKREER
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, when the timing HERHEREZ2MS W=
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled HO 3 [B] B 8 A P4l R B B = 58 R A
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not B &K Al ge & B[O A o

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed the end of RIERI B ERAEE S E AR T LA
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer & - WENKATREEE B AER A ERA
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 2Rk SR IEERI I B R T LA o ke
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred REVRAERIE & FE S F 3RS BIR B IR T A
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and EHTRET © WAER]REA A B S IERR R AR UL
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that [B] 2 EZsk P D IE LR B E RS T LARER o

sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that BEHREEERBEAFREHREE T
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the RNEEFEBITHF R (M) AEMR - HTEH
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been BEEENBBEE TSR N M
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. BARAMBEEE -

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally HASEE B G AEFANRTRIBE ER A
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current HAfTB B E - MR IBEE —fERH T e
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity R E%EARE 0 B REFIBEE KR
and the same taxation authority. EFIE B B -

Government grants ARG

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there 1B RE 2SR MO AR 35 BT AL P BT IR (RS 2
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all W 0 I B eI Bz AL - R RIEIR A
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to L EBEEARFME - EYIER EENE
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis Bk - EFEE R AR (BNRES(E sz Bk Rt
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, B (E B AR AL AV HARS ) FERR AU -

are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a HEEFENRHE  BEEARBELAR
deferred income account and is released to the income statement FEW BRI EIE - WAER & E R TE B
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual FRA - LAZFERFHES AR EEABRE
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and o B EEREENG RAEIRTE S B AR
released to the income statement by way of a reduced depreciation RS RAERR o

charge.



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants (continued)

Where the Group receives a non-monetary grant, the asset and the
grant are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary asset and
released to the income statement over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government loans
is determined using the effective interest rate method, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Financial liabilities” above.
The benefit of the government loans granted with no or at a below-
market rate of interest, which is the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received, is treated
as a government grant and released to the income statement
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(@  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to the purchasers;

(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the properties is retained;

(c)  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e)  the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

24FEE
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FEESFIBERIBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Recognition of revenue (continued)

The above criteria are met when construction of the relevant
properties has been completed and the Group has obtained the
project completion report issued by the relevant government
authorities, the properties have been delivered to the purchasers,
and the collectibility of related receivables is reasonably assured.
Payments received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities.

Property leasing income derived from the leasing of the Group’s
properties is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Property management fee income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised
upon the rendering of the relevant services.

Hotel operating income which includes room rental, food and
beverage sales and income from the provision of other ancillary
services is recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, further
details of which are given in note 32 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24AFEEHBFEE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payments(continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate ranging
between 2% and 9% (2011: between 2% and 8%) has been applied
to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a
separate allocation within the equity section of the statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FESHBFIEE(K)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies SN

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated outside AT B TR B Ak LA SNER K 32 A BT
Mainland China have Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and United States BArpRIABT(BET]) ET(TE7T])
Dollars (“US$”) as their functional currencies, respectively. The ERECIRAN I o PR E A R ER
functional currency of Mainland China subsidiaries is the RMB. As RUERARE - ARAEBEEEFER
the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, the RMB is used W& WARBEAEAEENERE
as the presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the o REBBE NS ERY A BITEEMEY
Group determines its own functional currency and items included IR - S BRI wERET ARIE
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that B Y LAKZECEREANGEETIEE - NEEB TR E
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by BERLERMINER S RAIAR S HHE Bk
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective KA ESER ARR o UINESHENEBEEN
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. B EEREARNCEAVEERASE - 4
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies B EEEIEE M ERET ABRE °

are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognized in the income

statement.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are HEENINEEIEE MERETABRE
recognised in the income statement with the exception of monetary BT AN ARE BN EINERIRE R ER —
items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net MO EIBEHRIN c ZEZEBIEREBEEE
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other BEFEEHE AT AR MR - -
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at REFENEHDEEEREK  c MZESEY
which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the income TH B [ X =B EEMFITE S 1 RIRR IRETA
statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange Hib2mEKamF o

differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost RELKAAINESTEMIEEIEIER - Ui
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the VXS HANERBE - AR BETEI LA
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair INE S B EE R IEEIRET AN EBEE
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at HEEXRRE - BN EBEAENRIEE
the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising ®EIE B BT A Y U e ok B 1R EL SR AL A B
on translation of a non-monetary item measure in fair value is treated AABEZETINBENEER A —R(ILE
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value 2 REMMEEBASIERERALE
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the items whose fair value BREEMNEEMELZEE  ToRREfme
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or MU A S IEZSFER) ©

loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of non-PRC established subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into RMB at the weighted
average rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of non-PRC established subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC established companies
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

24 TREABREER ()

SN ()

T IER R B SZ AP B 1) B Z L BR AL B
BARBAINNERE - RRERR - ZFE
BHEERABENREREHROBRITES
BMERBARE  MBRRTRFANINEF

BERGESARE

FbE 4 2 [ 3 2 BN E 2 U AR
RESNETEZBREBARG - REEEIH
BN EE BERNESNERMNIEL

R BBENBEREBASR -

WREINEBEENEAREREREES
MEENMBBEREEFLOEANRABESD
EERBINEBHNEERBFERRE - WKWK

PERIBE -

HEHRERERME © FFRPBEIKILHE
RAMBSRERELRSREE ANRTT
ERBE /AR o IERFBEKLAREE
EFREAREELNRSRETZFANN

TR EREBARE -

3. EXEsHIERER fhst

REASENI IR - ERERELH
MaaFHE - (et RERR
SYEMEBRUA - X - BERABEHK
HE B REBMEEA RS RA B EOR
B - N BB RN I EERE - 7
EYEREARARIZENEEKRER

B~ ffEt RRER

EERIEHERAE -



—z——x55% 121

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following judgements, apart from those

involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i)

(ii)

Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

(iii)

Acquisition of assets

The Company assesses whether the acquisition of a
subsidiary constitutes a business combination. A business
consists of inputs and processes applied to those inputs that
have the ability to create outputs. If the subsidiary acquired
does not constitute a business, the Company accounts for the
acquisition as an acquisition of assets.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below:

(i)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31 December
2012 based on the appraised market value by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimate,
the Group considers information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and uses assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of
the reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location or subject to
different lease or other contracts, adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of investment properties (continued)

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of the transactions
that occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and condition,
appropriate discount rates, expected future market rents and
future maintenance costs. The carrying amount of investment
properties at 31 December 2012 was RMB2,092,400,000
(2011: RMB2,068,818,000).

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group’s historical experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the Group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion of
properties under development, and the costs to be incurred in
selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale (continued)

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in a provision for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale. Such provision requires
the use of judgements and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, the carrying value and
provision for properties in the period in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland China. As
a result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income
taxes have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau,
objective estimate and judgement based on currently enacted
tax laws, regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision of income taxes to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will have an
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the period in
which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sale of properties less deductible expenditures
including land costs, borrowing costs and other property
development expenditures.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv)

(v)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) (continued)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property
development business in Mainland China are subject to
LAT. However, the implementation of these taxes varies
amongst various cities in Mainland China and the Group
has not finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of land appreciation and its related taxes. The
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities
based on management’s best estimates. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
statement and the provision for LAT in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating
to recognised deductible temporary differences and tax
losses at 31 December 2012 was RMB128,963,000
(2011: RMB107,746,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2012 was RMB38,574,000 (2011:
RMB13,628,000). Further details are contained in note 20 to
the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based
on assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of impairment of trade and other
receivables requires management’s judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the future is
different from the original estimates, such differences will have
an impact on the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/write-back of doubtful debt in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

Useful lives and impairment of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its items
of property and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of items of
property and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitors’ actions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimates, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying value of an item of property and equipment
is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in the relevant part of this section. The recoverable
amount of an item of property and equipment is calculated as
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use, the
calculation of which involves the use of estimates.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on income derived from business and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@  the property development segment develops and sells
properties in Mainland China;

(b)  the property rental segment leases investment properties in
Mainland China;

(c)  the hotel operations segment owns and operates a hotel; and

(d) the others segment comprises, principally, the Group’s
property management services business, which provides
management and security services to residential and
commercial properties.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that interest income, finance costs, dividend income,
fair value gains/(losses) from the Group’s financial instruments as
well as head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. EEHFBEHR)

Property  Property Hotel
development rental operations Others Total
MERE YEHE EEEE Hith wct
Year ended EHZ20125F RMB’000 RMB’0000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
31 December 2012 12A31 BLEEE ARETT AR¥Tn ARETR AR®Trn AR®TR
Segment revenue: DEBA
Sales to external customers HNBRPHE 2,248,865 69,934 55,015 21,811 2,395,625
Intersegment sales HEREEE - 23,700 - 68,986 92,686
2,248,865 93,634 55,015 90,797 2,488,311
Reconciliation: D -
Elimination of intersegment sales DE S i (92,686)
Revenue WA 2,395,625
Segment results PBEE 786,507 65,704 (2112)  (122481) 727,618
Reconciliation: i
Interest income FIBHA 2,867
Equity-settled share option expense AR B R AR ER X (29,712)
Fair value losses, net: AnBEEEE  FE:
Equity investments at fair value RAREBEFARR
through profit or loss MR & (282)
Finance costs BB (3,660)
Profit before tax Sy lNE 696,831
Segment assets AHEE 11,211,350 2,317,313 351,110 1,534,401 15,414,174
Reconciliation: e
Elimination of intersegment receivables 2 B[R PR IR 8 (1,859,178)
Corporate and other unallocated assets CERAEMKDEERE 1,330,607
Total assets BERE 14,885,603
Segment liabilities AHEE 5249506 123,195 11,250 340,375 5,724,326
Reconciliation: e -
Elimination of intersegment payables 2 EPEE IR 8 (1,859,178)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities CEREMRDEEE 5,319,309
Total liabilities BafE 9,184,457
Other segment information: HitvpBER
Depreciation e 7,110 3,079 10,561 868 21,618
Share of profits and losses: A58 -
Jointly-controlled entities HREHIEE 1,007 - - - 1,007
Investments in jointly-controlled entities REREH ERE 361,622 - - - 361,622
Capital expenditure BARS 738 44 310 576 1,668
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4. EEHFBEHE)

Property Property Hotel
development rental  operations Others Total
MERE  WERE  AEEE Hit B
Year ended BE20114 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
31 December 2011 12 A31 BIEEE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Segment revenue: DHBA
Sales to external customers HIMNBRPIHE 1,649,984 62,070 57,854 18,791 1,688,699
Intersegment sales DEEHE - 22,600 - 34,489 57,089
1,549,984 84,670 57,854 53,280 1,745,788
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment sales A EPRSHE 3 (67,089)
Revenue WA 1,688,699
Segment results AEEE 608,932 187,696 (1,948) (78,093 716,587
Reconciliation: GIED -
Interest income FIEUA 5,712
Equity-settled share option expense MRS B BB AR 2 (35,129)
Fair value losses, net: AREEEE  FE:
Equity investments at fair value AR BESELHES
through profit or loss STAE BEEOEERE (1,168)
Gain on disposal of equity HEARREBEFEEH
investments at fair value through BE A\ E HEEN
profit or loss PR B W 1,683
Finance costs HER (447)
Profit before tax BRAEAI A 687,238
Segment assets AHEE 10,505,704 2,295,771 398,198 1,342,045 14,541,718
Reconciliation: AT -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 2 B0 R R IR 8 (1,697,956)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMADEEE 805,020
Total assets BEE 13,648,782
Segment liabilities PHE 5,764,919 54,644 10,038 248,303 6,077,904
Reconciliation: AT -
Elimination of intersegment payables 2 ER [ R  FRIE R 8 (1,697,956)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities rEREMADEAR 4,000,726
Total liabilties BeE 8,380,674
Other segment information: Hit A HER
Depreciation wE 7,388 1,319 11,100 773 20,580
Share of profits and losses: bR
Jointly-controlled entities HEEGIEE 97 - - - 97
Investments in jointly-controlled entities RIEREHERNRE 177,482 - - - 177482
Capital expenditure BARES 10,913 3,558 296 36,685 51,452
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e

4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BESEBBRE (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about major customers BREEEFHNEHR
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under the WESEE -—REHEREREH TR
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue FHERMHERBBAREEEZE2012F K
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. 2011512 A31 B IEFE W AAI10%3 A £ -
Geographical information i B & R}
All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in AEBMEIWARERFEANMESE - &
Mainland China and all of the non-current assets of the Group are AEB 2 EIERENE E MR B A -

located in Mainland China.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. IgA s Htlg AR &
GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents income WA (TNENEBRLERE) HFENEEYE
from the sale of properties, property leasing income, property WA~ MERERA - MEEEEBRARE
management fee income and hotel operating income during the JE B A (FNBR & 25 & E b $H S AR
year, net of business tax and other sales related taxes and discounts RISEFE) -

allowed.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA Htulg A RS
GAINS (CONTINUED) (48)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WAREBBAR ST

2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARET T
Revenue KA
Sale of properties HEMZE 2,389,929 1,644,739
Property leasing income YIEHEWA 73,032 67,647
Property management fee income MHEBEBUA 24,271 20,116
Hotel operating income B E A ERA 58,279 61,286
Less: Business tax and surcharges W R KM NE (149,886) (105,089)
2,395,625 1,688,699
Other income Hilg A
Subsidy income* G N 9,007 8,375
Interest income KB U A 2,867 5,712
Others HhIE B 4,739 2,920
16,613 17,007
Gains Wz
Foreign exchange gain HNES e 1,205 18,654
Gain on disposal of L EREMERE
investment properties 3,003 2,660
Gain on disposal of equity HERARBETA
investments at fair value B MERRE NS
through profit or loss - 1,683
4,208 22,997
20,821 40,004

* There are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

- B R B R SERK RO 6 1 B B = A -
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. HI5EH
An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows: AEFBNPHEERLWTAOT ¢
2012 2011
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable 7B AFRBHEERN
within five years RITERFE 180,601 206,864
Interest on other loans HERAF S 181,794 6,015
Total interest B 362,395 212,879
Less: Interest capitalised in properties BT BAEFRERYENF S
under development (358,735) (212,432)

3,660 447
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BREFE

AEBRBATFEE R, (GEA) TFI%

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

I8 :
2012 2011
2012 20114
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HisE ARBT T AR T
Cost of properties sold B2 HEMEK KR 1,438,588 848,306
Depreciation e 13 21,618 20,580
Minimum lease payments BELCEHED
under operating leases: ®EALE
— Office premises —WAEHTT 5,967 8,018
Auditors’ remuneration IZEREM BN & 2,532 2,406
Staff costs including directors’ and SIRA (BRESKEE
chief executive’s remuneration (note 8): TTBRAEME) (FizEs) :
— Salaries and other staff costs —TEREEEIRNA 84,922 75,254
— Equity-settled share option expense —RiEEE R EE R 34 29,712 35,129
— Pension scheme contributions —RIR&FT Bt 7,953 6,766
Foreign exchange differences, net ERZERE  FE 1,205 18,654
Direct operating expenses RS NIREYEEEDN
(including repairs and maintenance HEEERE
arising on rental-earning (BIERERIEIR)
investment properties) 4,847 4,441
Changes in fair value of KEMEAREE
investment properties EpE) 14 (60,335) (160,430)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMERE
properties (3,003) (2,660)
Gain on disposal of equity investments HERAREBEFTA
at fair value through profit or loss BRI E WS - (1,683)
Fair value loss, net: AREEEE  F58
Equity investments at fair value BARBETTA
through profit or loss BERRERRE
— held for trading —RHEER 282 1,168
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7 SR 2R B &

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFEREFETHAR#ME
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BB EARBIREB R RSN 161 1555
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong RE  FAEERFETBASMEWT :

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2012 2011

2012 2011 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Fees e 450 324

Other emoluments: E AN -

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o B4 ROERL 4,710 4,400

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIGER 34 33

Equity-settled share option expense st SRR EE A 3,424 4,995

8,168 9,428

8,618 9,752

In 2009 and 2011, certain directors were granted share options, 2009 F K 2011 F + B TEEBHFEERS

in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option RAEEMRIRA R R ERE R SIS

scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note gt - BRE—FFBEEN I B @K M T

32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which 32 ZEBEREN AL EBEEERFBHN

has been recognised in the income statement over the vesting BmR AR - WIRL BEEE © MatA

period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount REEHMBHRENESEEIELE LNESH
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in A o

the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERFENTHARHSE
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (#,)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BYFEHITES
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expense Total
AR REAEE N
we B AR AERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTRT ARETR
2012 20124
Independent non-executive directors 1B IEE|7TE F
Mr. Pei Ker Wei BrEkE 200 154 354
Mr. Wang Shuguang FEEHAELE 100 154 254
Mr. Loke Yu B R SE A 150 154 304
Total independent BN IEHITES
non-executive directors RET 450 462 912
2011 2011
Independent non-executive directors BV IF#HiTEZE
Mr. Pei Ker Wei BrEksE 116 225 341
Mr. Wang Shuguang FEBHAELE 58 225 283
Mr. Loke Yu B IR ST A 150 225 375
Total independent BN IEHITES
non-executive directors “aEt 324 675 999
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FRERBE S IENITES A HAD

non-executive directors during the year (2011: nil). & (20114« &) -



136 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2012 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements

BRI R
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERFIENTHARHSE
==
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and the chief (b) BITEE
executive
Pension Equity-settled
Salaries and scheme  share option
Fees  allowances Bonuses contributions expense Total
Bhe HRESEN
we HeREM A STEMR BRERX @5t
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ABMTE ARMTL ARMTL ARBTR  ARMTR
2012 20125
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Shi Zhongan ik - 1,800 450 11 1,212 3473
Mr. Zhang Jiangang REHLE - 624 156 1 566 1,357
Mr. Lou Yifei B-Rik - 624 156 3 566 1,349
Ms. Shen Tiaojuan LIRER L - 720 180 9 618 1,527
- 3,768 942 34 2,962 7,706
Chief executive TETHAE
Mr. Shi Zhongan ik - 1,800 450 11 1,212 3473
2011 20115
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Shi Zhongan R ERE - 1,800 450 10 1,767 4,027
Mr. Zhang Jiangang REHLE - 560 140 10 826 1,536
Mr. Lou Yifei B-Rik - 560 140 3 826 1,529
Ms. Shen Tiaojuan TEBRL - 600 150 10 901 1,661
- 3,520 880 3 4,320 8,753
Chief executive TETHAE
Mr. Shi Zhongan R ERE - 1,800 450 10 1,767 4,027
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMESESENEXRBRETMNE

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2011: nil). BEY 2 HE (2011 4F « &) ©
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AREEHAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2011: FARAGE=TALTABENE (2011 F :
four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 mE)EE HBSFBEsN X
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2011: one) 8 FNEE N—R(2011F : —R)IFEEH
non-director, highest paid employee for the year are as follows: SHATHBESFBOT
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o fEA R RE, 951 833
Equity-settled share option expense ferest E B EE A 412 600
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIHR 15 10
1,378 1,443
The number of non-director, highest paid employee whose HMNAHRUA T AR IEEESESEHEE A
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: R -

Number of employees

EEAE
2012 2011
2012 20114
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR# 1,000,001 T2

AR#1,500,000 7T 1 1
In 2009 and 2011, share options were granted to the non-director, 2009 F K 2011 4F » —AIIEEH =3
highest paid employee in respect of his services to the Group, further EERERBAASEBE MERBRE 54
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 32 to the S BEH N SRR MEI2HEA -
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been ZEREBREN AR BEDRGBEHNERR
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, was R L BAIEE - Mt ARFEIMS
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the HwEHSEIEEE LNFESHSFE

financial statements for the current year is included in the above non- BB ERA

director, highest paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.
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10. INCOME TAX 10. RSN

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year
(2011: ni).

The provision for the PRC income tax has been provided at the
applicable income tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%) on the assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by
the tax authorities.

el 2K S I3 2 D S P 2 A R
BRI B3 MR B B RIE B (2011
Z Y I

FREFTS R E AN B EF B E A R
JE SR A A1 25% (2011 £F : 25% ) B9 36 FA AT
ST R B4 -

R Rl E IR AR R R IR E RN E Y2
PSSR A HRF X (B LA ~ 18
ERAREMYERER)ENR 0% E
BO%EEER KU - REBERETEA
BRERER - AT - (FHRERBAENG
ALHIEETER - EARSBEREE L
BEHEBZA - DHEERBERHTS
BRREER A -

2012 2011
2012 2011 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Current — PRC corporate income BNEAR TH—F A
tax for the year ERTSH 197,554 144,455
Current — PRC LAT BIEABE TE—F A
for the year T HbIE(ET 131,565 150,775
Deferred (note 20) RIETIA (M15E20) (22,341) 13,441
Total tax charge for the year FRIELRATE 306,778 308,671
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MR
10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FRR1R (§8)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax BIEARRQ T NREKXZEMNE AR FTERZKA
using the statutory rate for the country in which the Company and VATE B R T B BR T A F 3 A AR A B 2 AR
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the BEBRREFENHERSHERNT ¢
effective tax rate is as follows:
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Profit before tax CRSHEIRINE 696,831 687,238
Tax at the statutory 1225% (2011 4F : 25%)
tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%) EEB R EMNEIE 174,208 171,809
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 14,789 8,275
Effect of withholding tax at 10% LA SR 28] o B Bt B8 2 R AT
on the distributable profits of 7K AER AN 10% TEFIFR
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 0)-7- 10,369 12,098
Tax losses not recognised FRARERHIEEGE 8,738 3,407
Provision for LAT T I E T B 131,565 150,775
Tax effect on LAT TR ER B R R (32,891) (37,693)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate ~ ANEEEFRF RAFIARR X 306,778 308,671
Tax payable in the consolidated statement A& HFEATSAR LR HFE R
of financial position represents: TEH -
PRC corporate income tax B {b TSR 188,031 139,018
PRC LAT AR £ S BRE 463,768 369,864

651,799 508,882
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LEEESE:

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. B RER AEETE
OWNERS OF THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the HE2012F 12 A31 BILFEERRARHEA A
year ended 31 December 2012 includes a loss of RMB45,450,000 FEAEE& OF R B B E1E A R 145,450,0007T
(2011: a loss of RMB49,225,000) which has been dealt with in the (2011 4F : BE AR 49,225,0007T) BN
financial statements of the Company (note 33(d)). AR R R R B IE (FI5E33(d)) °

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. B AT HERBREREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE{miE T
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit FREXRBF R E S A7) T E R E
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent HEAEBEERTBEARRK336,228,000
of RMB336,228,000 (2011: RMB351,391,000) and the weighted t(20114F : A R ®¥351,391,0007T ) -
average number of ordinary shares of 2,375,827,982 (2011: AR FARE T E R INE TG E
2,367,974,529) in issue during the year. 2,375,827,982 f% (2011 £ : 2,367,974,529

BR)EHE -

No diluted earnings per share has been taken into consideration, AR EREBIRERDSREISRILERE &
since the date of share options granted to the end of the reporting FRR A 5 B (K P B AR Y & B 1T
period, as the average quoted market price of ordinary shares is {8 - MESY|GREERT)

lower than the adjusted exercise price of the share options.
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13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. EE R {s
Group rE
Office Motor
Properties Machinery equipment vehicles Total
L/ B BAERE AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARMTL ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR
31 December 2012 20126 12H31H
At 31 December 2011 and 2011F12A31B R
at 1 January 2012; 201261818 :
Cost PAME 240,771 1,008 28,599 38,582 308,960
Accumulated depreciation Z5TE (42,260) (546) (19,360) (20,241) (82,407)
Net carrying amount REFE 198,511 462 9,239 18,341 226,553
At 1 January 2012, net of 201261 R18 -
accumulated depreciation MG 25t E 198,511 462 9,239 18,341 226,553
Additions =m - 77 1,491 100 1,668
Disposals HE - - (18) - (18)
Depreciation provided FRME
during the year (11,872) (375) (4,166) (5,205) (21,618)
At 31 December 2012, net of 2012%12R318
accumulated depreciation MR 25T E 186,639 164 6,546 13,236 206,585
At 31 December 2012: 2012512318 :
Cost A 240,771 1,085 29,998 38,305 310,159
Accumulated depreciation 25TE (54,132) (921) (23,452) (25,069)  (103,574)
Net carrying amount FEFE 186,639 164 6,546 13,236 206,585
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13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. EER & (1)
(CONTINUED)
Group (continued) TEE (&)
Office Motor
Properties Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
IES Wm  BRAERE HE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2011 2011%12H318 :
At 31 December 2010 and 2010F 12 A31 B &
at 1 January 2011: 2011 E1A18
Cost A 200,404 969 26,884 29,865 258,122
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (31,144) (519) (14,542) (16,207) (62,412)
Net carrying amount EEFE 169,260 450 12,342 13,658 195,710
At 1 January 2011, net of 2011E1R18
accumulated depreciation MG EFHTE 169,260 450 12,342 13,658 195,710
Additions 20 40,367 39 1,849 9,197 51,452
Disposals T = = (29) - (29)
Depreciation provided FRFE
during the year (11,116) 27) (4,923) (4,514) (20,580)
At 31 December 2011, net of 2011%12H318 *
accumulated depreciation MG 25t E 198,511 462 9,239 18,341 226,553
At 31 December 2011: 2011 FE12A318 :
Cost PAME 240,771 1,008 28,599 38,582 308,960
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (42,260) (546) (19,360) (20,241) (82,407)

Net carrying amount FREFE 198,511 462 9,239 18,341 226,553
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B i Rk et
13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. EER R (&)
(CONTINUED)
Company RAT]
Office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
WAE
B RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT
31 December 2012 201212831 H
At 31 December 2011 and 20114%12 A31 B X
at 1 January 2012: 20121 H1H :
Cost BAE 482 442 924
Accumulated depreciation REITE (267) (287) (554)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 215 155 370
At 1 January 2012, net of 201241 A18 -
accumulated depreciation MR EFHITE 215 155 370
Additions = Yill 9) (36) (45)
Depreciation provided FRITE
during the year (46) (76) (122)
At 31 December 2012, net of 2012412 A31H -
accumulated depreciation kR 2FHITE 160 43 203
At 31 December 2012: 2012412 A31H :
Cost RANME 473 406 879
Accumulated depreciation ZEHihE (313) (363) (676)

Net carrying amount BRENFE 160 43 203
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13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13. BE R ER % (#8)
(CONTINUED)
Company (continued) ARATF (&)
Office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
I /NE
B E 4aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARETTT
31 December 2011 201112831 H
At 31 December 2010 and 2010% 12 A31 B X
at 1 January 2011: 20111 H1H
Cost BANME 479 442 921
Accumulated depreciation RETITE (135) (226) (361)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 344 216 560
At 1 January 2011, net of 20111 A18
accumulated depreciation MR EFHITE 344 216 560
Additions 0 8 - 8
Depreciation provided FRITE
during the year (132) 61) (193)
At 31 December 2011, net of 2011412 4318 -
accumulated depreciation MR EFHITE 215 155 370
At 31 December 2011: 2011412 A31H :
Cost BXANE 482 442 924
Accumulated depreciation REHITE (267) (287) (554)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 215 155 370
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s property and R2012F 12 A31 B * "EBETYWEKRK
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately IR FEL AR 168,025,000 7T (2011
RMB168,025,000 (2011: RMB146,617,000) were pledged to F: AR¥146,617,0007T) © 20FT7E 30(iii)
secure interest-bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the Fr#t e - EAERKR TAEE ERITHERK

Group as disclosed in note 30ii). EAERREV R o
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. IEME
2012 2011
2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARETT AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 BREE 2,068,818 1,931,000
Additions 0 - 2,170
Disposal M (36,753) (24,782)
Net gain from fair value adjustments A # BEFAZRAE K FHE 60,335 160,430
2,092,400 2,068,818
Current assets mENEE @) 35,100 73,218
Non-current assets JEmMBNEE 2,057,300 1,995,600
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A 31 HEREE 2,092,400 2,068,818
(@  All investment properties of the Group were revalued at the @ AEERIHEREVFENFREBIE
end of the year by an independent professionally qualified ELERGEMUEBRIETER A
valuer, CB Richard Ellis Limited, at fair value. CB Richard AlEARBEEM - EHRIBLER

N

ARIDEMAREYEMENTER

Ellis Limited is an industry specialist in investment property

valuation. The fair value represents the amount at which the R ARBEEIEEERIEMNEEARE
assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable and REBE RN GE B SR E R G EE
willing buyer and a seller in an arm’ s length transaction at ELNFRGRINEER ST ©

the date of valuation, in accordance with the International
Valuation Standards.

(b)  The Group's investment properties are all situated in Mainland (b)) AEBEHREYEAMNFREALRIR
China and are held under the following lease terms: BT AR ¢

2012 2011

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFT

Leases below 10 years HE DR 104F 35,100 =

Leases of between 10 and 50 years fEEF10F = 50 F 2,057,300 2,068,818

2,092,400 2,068,818
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. L BM* (])

(CONTINUED)
©)  Investment properties leased out under operating leases ) BELEAEEHLMNREDE
The Group leases out investment properties under operating REFBRBELEHERHIREYE -
lease arrangements. All leases run for a period of one to FMEHEAS—Z=1+AF H WARE
fiteen years, with an option to renew the leases after the REIEA BB EEHERE 2 &K T &
expiry dates, at which time all terms will be renegotiated. FIHE c REERB TN EUHK ST
The Group’s total future minimum lease receivables under ERREYMEMSHNBEREBEER
non-cancellable operating leases generated from investment THAAZET ¢
properties are as follows:
2012 2011
20124 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Within one year —FR 58,153 78,749
In the second to FEERF
fifth years, inclusive (BEEMERETEAN) 124,449 143,761
After five years A& 25,291 30,631
207,893 253,141
(d) At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s investment d R2012F12A31H - & & W =
properties with a carrying amount of RMB1,894,005,000 30() FTi%Ee - AEERABEAARK
(2011: RMB1,835,806,000) were pledged to secure interest- 1,894,005,000 7T (20114F : A R #&
bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as 1,835,806,0007T) KA TR EMHE,
disclosed in note 30(i). VEAREBEES T BRITIE R R EH A G
AR -
(e)  In December 2012, the Group entered into certain sales and e R2012F12AREEFI VAT EER

purchases agreements to sell certain investment properties
with carrying amount of RMB35,100,000. The Group had
received deposits of approximately RMB10,428,000 (2011:
RMB21,760,000), as the transfer of the property title was
still under progress, the amount received was recognised as
advances from customers as at 31 December 2012.

% HERMEER AR 35,100,000
TTHE TIREDE - REEEWRL
A B #10,428,000 7T K 37 & (2011
4 AR#21,760,0007T) * AR
EFBRNEZRFEMTHETR - K
FriER B ;R IB RE R R 7 2012 55 12 A
31 BB &P ERK -
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15. PROPERTIES UNDER 15. &P ME
DEVELOPMENT
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 BEREE 7,630,864 4,111,788
Additions 30 3,029,567 4,708,224
Transfer to completed RS RHEHEE
properties held for sale R0 4 7S (4,013,872) (1,189,148)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A 31 HERMAEE 6,646,559 7,630,864
Current assets RENEE 1,008,595 4,695,260
Non-current assets FEMENEEE 5,637,964 2,935,604
6,646,559 7,630,864
The Group’s properties under development are located in Mainland REEFRZERYFEDL RPN o
China.
The carrying amounts of the properties under development situated REBEMHFZERYE(CRPBEREHEE
on the leasehold land in Mainland China are as follows: dih) MBREELT ¢
2012 2011
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Leases of over 50 years FHEAFR B 50 F 3,846,493 5,697,744
Leases of between 20 and 50 years FHEA20 F = 504F 2,800,066 1,933,120
6,646,559 7,630,864
At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s properties under 2012412 31 B » R IKHT &E30(i) BT #
development with a carrying amount of RMB4,298,558,000 (2011: = AEBERAEAARY 4,298,558,000
RMB3,214,543,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank 70(20114F « AR 3,214,543,000 7T) K5
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note TFHRZEFEBIEREBRSGT BRITHER

30(ii). N E A& SR o
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16. GOODWILL 16. &
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 31 December 2012: 2012412 A31 8 :
Cost %N 63,928
Accumulated impairment REHRE (63,928)
Net carrying amount BRIEH 58 -
Cost at 1 January 2012, net of 201241 A1 BARIAA
accumulated impairment Bk 2FHRE
Impairment during the year FEARE -
At 31 December 2012 R2012612 431 H -
At 31 December 2011: 201112 318 :
Cost %N 63,928
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (63,928)
Net carrying amount AR A -
Cost at 1 January 2011, net of 201141 A1 BAIACA
accumulated impairment Bk 2FHRE -
Impairment during the year FEARIE -
At 31 December 2011 2011412 A31H =
17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 17. [ HERE
INVESTMENTS
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTF T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost EEMRAKE « 2K AE 5,610 5,610
At 31 December 2012, unlisted equity investments with a carrying MR2012F12A31H EEE AR ¥

5,610,000 (2011 £ : A K 5,610,000

amount of RMB5,610,000 (2011: RMB5,610,000) were stated at
cost less impairment. The Directors are of the opinion that the fair
value of such investments cannot be measured reliably and the
underlying fair values of investments were not less than the carrying
values of the investments as at 31 December 2012.

TT) KIFE E TR ARAIR B Ty iR A R RL E &
FIER - EZRRZSHRENEERAEBETD
BERI AT E KRR SIREN AR BETLNZ
LB 20124 12 A 31 HIEABRE(E °



18. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS

19

The Group’s long term prepayments represent payments for
prepaid leasehold land which will be transferred to properties under
development upon obtaining the certificates of land use rights.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
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18. REATAFI R

AEE S RPBMNFIERNGEE L HA R
B BRES T EREEREEERES
(UE

10. R FEEFHEEHRSE

2012 2011
2012 2011 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Share of net assets DIhEEFRE 10,696 9,703
Loans to jointly-controlled entities et T HRZER BRI ER 350,926 167,779
361,622 177,482
The loans to the jointly-controlled entities are unsecured, interest- R T HEEHERENERTERR - 28
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. LA S (B E(EIE A o
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows: EESIEREAFFENT ¢
Percentage of
Particulars Bt
of issued Place of Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held registration interest power sharing activities
BEERT
8 BRDBFE {3t B BEREEE REE BASME TEEH
Jiangsu Xiezhong Investment Registered PRC 44.1% 49% 49% Investment
Co., Ltd. capital of holding
TEF BRI ERR AT RMB100,000,000
e H REER
AR 100,000,000 7T
Jiangsu Jiarun Real Estate Registered PRC 44.1% 49% 49% Property
Co., Ltd. capital of development
THEEEERRA RMB20,000,000
EailiheN H Lk

AR 20,000,0007T
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY- 1. REFRZEFEEHKRE

~
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (#8)
(CONTINUED)
The investments in jointly-controlled entities are held through a REREG BB ESBANT—HINE
subsidiary with 90% of equity interest attributable to the Company. RNEHFE - BIARRQ R EHARER 0% -

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of

TREIIAKEHRZGE OB AR

the Group’s jointly-controlled entities: B

2012 2011
2012 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Share of the jointly-controlled DIEERZEHEENEERAE
entities’ assets and liabilities:
Current assets MENEE 183,189 8
Non-current assets ERBEE 258 9,807
Current liabilities E=Y (172,751) (112
Net assets BEEFE 10,696 9,703
Share of the jointly-controlled DRI E B ELE -
entities’ results:
Total expenses FX % (1,007) 97)
Loss after tax BrTi1% B 1R (1,007) 97)
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

20. ;BREEMRBDER AR

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: FERIBEEMELERIBEEEHIT ¢

Deferred tax assets

EEHAEE

Losses available

Impairment of Unrealized for offsetting Prepaid
Other receivable intragroup against future  corporation
arising from  profit of loss taxable profit income tax Total
A SH
HitEWFE  RBREE  RKRESRH i
HESE MiEE  FBENESR Frig %t st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR®TR ARETR

At 1 January 2011 2011E1A1H 15,742 9,275 46,720 - 71,737
Deferred tax credited to the income  FRRMEZRERERA

statement during the year EAERE - 294 35,715 - 36,009
At 31 December 2011 and 2011512 A31B R

1 January 2012 2012%1A1H 15,742 9,569 82,435 - 107,746
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the  FERFMEZFER /(F1k)

income statement during the year RIERER: 8 - 10,027 (22,576) 33,766 21,217
At 31 December 2012 2012512 31 H 15,742 19,596 59,859 33,766 128,963

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses could
be carried forward for five years to offset against its future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets relating to unutilised tax losses are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB12,612,000
(2011: loss of RMB1,963,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of RMB68,261,000 (2011: RMB41,417,000) that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

REFBIAERER - HBEERAEE5F
PAK SR E RIR R ERRTLFIE - BRE W AREN A
BMEERNELERREE REEKBEH
BB BEMEZ S RERAEERSE A
FEHER

REBRBRBEE ARK12,612,0007T
(20114 : 518 A R ¥1,963,0007T ) A9 4
BEE  ATANKESEREENATH
BEERTAE o AR BB A IR E
4 A R #68,261,0007T (20114F : AR
41,417,00070) KB IEEE - SR —EREF
REEE - DA B R RO FERBL A o R
LHBARIEELBIE—BREE - BRAL
4 0] B G AT PR H R 75 S 18 ) FE ER R A
- IR Z SRR B S E ©
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 20. BEERBESERAR(E)
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREBEEE
Fair value
adjustment Fair value
arising from adjustment of
acquisition investment  Withholding
of a subsidiary properties tax Others* Total
i — R
HEAR REM=
EENAR AREE
BERE Fil Skl Hith* @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR¥TR AR%®Tx AR%TRT AR%Tn
At 1 January 2011 20111 A1H (2,813) (346,727) (11,907) (25,570) (387,017)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) tothe ~ ERRNERKER
income statement during the year (k) MEIER B 856 (35,078) (12,098) (3,130) (49,450)
At 31 December 2011 and 201112 A31BR
1 January 2012 2012%1 A1 H (1,957) (381,805) (24,005) (28,700) (436,467)

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the ~ FRREZRER/

income statement during the year (f08) BERERIE 1,957 (5,896) (10,369) 15,432 1,124
At 31 December 2012 201212 A 31 H - (387,701) (34,374) (13,268) (435,343)
Others mainly include temporary differences regarding capitalised finance * H b+ B IEEE AR E K AR 8 2R

costs. E® o
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

21

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT
Law”), a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement has become effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

REEERRAT]
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20. ;BREMRBER AR ()

FEEBIREE ()

BREBEFECEMSEBE(HEEMGER
A RINE R EETIRRERFE
RIHL B 37 H) SN E 1 2 2 IR SR 10% TE 40
o BREAMRTEHE2008F1 1 BBAER - I
AR 2007 F£12 A31 BEFEE 2 BF -
fisi o B b B SN E 12 4 2 P Rl A IR 2
EA R EE R AHRBE AT M o A
EEZERLERE10% © Eit - NEBEH
ZE R B A 7 2 [ B A Rk 2008 4 1
A1 BREEZBHmS KRS MR TEN
i o

RRB DRI E T BRI E R PSR
% o

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. R B ATRNRE
Company RAFE]

2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD © LK AE 100 100
Loan to subsidiaries THB A RIMER 929,834 932,081
929,034 932,181

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in
the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of
RMB1,891,949,000 (2011: RMB1,881,264,000) and
RMB109,330,000 (2011: RMB119,388,000), respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand or within one
year.

The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries included in the
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the Directors,
these advances are considered as quasi-equity loans to the
subsidiaries.

BIERARRIRENE E M) & SR e
KB A ERIES Bl A AR 1,891,940,0007T
(2011 4F © A R#51,881,264,0007T) B AR
109,330,0007T (2011 4 : AR¥119,388,000
T BEER - R B RERERES—FR

E
A

FRFARKBARRETNRTHEAR]
MFARERR RO NEREERY - &
ERR ZERBERURARTHEABMNE
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: WEBARMFBMT :

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12431 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERERD Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEMAR 2012512A31H
ARER ERT A A= EMEANEE 2012 20116 TEEK
Ideal World Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited 6 November 2003 holding
HBERRS i REER
2003411 A6 H
Qirui Enterprise Management PRC US$29,800,000 100% 100% Investment
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. @ 21 November 2005 holding
HEintEER (M) BRARO i 29,800,000 %7T REER
2005511 A21H
Zhong An Group Co., Ltd. © PRC RMB100,000,000 90% 90% Property
26 December 1997 development
and leasing
REEERRRFO I AR#100,000,0007% EGES
1997 F12 A26 H REE
Anhui Zhong An Real Estate PRC US$5,000,000 100% 100% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 9 August 2001 development
ZERLEHEREARRF I 5,000,000 % 7T EIE
2001F8A9H
Anhui Zhong An Real Estate PRC RMB57,000,000 84.2% 84.2% Property
Co., Ltd. @ 17 January 2003 development
ZHRREXARAR i AR 57,000,0007C MERE
2003%1H17H
Hangzhou White Horse Property PRC RMB50,000,000 90% 90% Property
Development Co., Ltd. © 27 June 2002 development
MMAEEHEREERAR i AR 50,000,0007C EL e

20026 A 27 H
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12831 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEWIR 2012F12A31H
ARER ML, R B EMEANEE 20124 20115 TEEK
Hangzhou Danube Real Estate PRC RMB50,000,000 92.6% 92.6% Property
Co., L td. ® 7 March 2003 development
MMZHAEEBRARC H AR 50,000,0007C MERE
2003F3A7H
Shanghai Zhong An Property PRC RMB10,000,000 87.1% 87.1% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 19 January 2004 leasing
HERZEHEREARRF H AR¥10,000,0007C MEBE
20041 A19H
Zhejiang Zhong An Property PRC RMB2,000,000 81% 81% Property
Development Xiaoshan 3 April 1997 leasing
Co., Ltd. @
MIRZ R L H AE#2,000,0007T MEHE
REBR AR 1997 F4 A3H
Zhejiang Zhong An PRC RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Property
Property Co., Ltd. @ 18 November 1998 service
HLRL H AR 10,000,000 7T MERT
REERAR Y 19984 11 A 18 H
Hangzhou Zhong An PRC RMB2,000,000 89.4% 89.4% Property
Highlong Commercial 20 September 2005 management
Buildings Co., Ltd.#)
MNRLEBERERRRR i AR 2,000,0007C MEER

20059 420 H
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12431 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERERD Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEBAR 20126128310
RAER AR, A 5 AMEANEE 2012 2011 IEEH
Hefei Green Bay Property PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 90% 90% Property
Management Co., Ltd. © 1 August 2007 management
BIRGEBENE RE/HER, AR 500,0007C NEER
ERBRAF 2007 £8 A1 H
Henlly Enterprise Management PRC US$79,800,000 90% 90% Property
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. @ 4 December 2006 development
BAEEER (FMNERARO & 79,800,000 % 7T MERE
200612 A4H
Huijun (International) Holdings Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment
Limited @ 4 March 2005 holding
ESE (BIRR) ZERAR DA @ 30 100,00078 7T REER
200546 3H4H
Zhejiang Huijun Real Estate PRC US$77,600,000 99.7% 99.7% Property
Co., L td. @ 1 April 2005 development
HDEREXBRARC i 77,600,000 7T EGES
2005418
Hangzhou Huijun Information PRC US$59,700,000 100% 100% Consultation
Technology Co., Ltd.® 5 December 2007 management
MR ESEMAR AR H 59,700,000 % 7T A E R
200712 A5H
Hangzhou Junijie Investment PRC US$29,990,000 100% 100% Investment
Co., Ltd. @ 4 December 2007 management
MMERREERAR AR H 29,990,000 % 7T REER

2007 F12 A4 H
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Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

REEERRAT]
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MBARMFELT : (&)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12831 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEBER 20126128310
RAER MR, A 5 AMEANEE 2012 2011 IEEH
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Zhong'an PRC RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Hotel
Holiday Inn Co., Ltd. © 28 May 2007 management
MBI RZREEE H AR 10,000,000 7T BEER
BARRA 2007 £5 A28 H
China Bright Management British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited @ 13 November 2007 holding
EBERRS 17T REER
200711 A13H
Esteem High Enterprises British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited 13 November 2007 holding
ERERES 1% REZRR
2007411 A13H
Everplus Management British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited® 13 November 2007 holding
ERGERFES e REER
2007411 A13H
Gain Large Enterprises British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited 13 November 2007 holding
HBERRES 13ET REER
200711 A13H
Plenty Management British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited @ 13 November 2007 holding
EBERRS 17T REER

2007611 A13H
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. P EATRIRE (8)

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)
Percentage of equity interest
Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12431 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERERD Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEBAR 20126128310
RAER AR, A 5 AMEANEE 2012 2011 IEEH
Hong Kong Bo Kai Construction Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100% Construction
Design Limited © 26 February 2008 design
EREYRERARARC B 18T BERs
20082 A 26H
Hong Kong Huiyuan Real Estate Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100% Property
Limited ®) 26 February 2008 development
ERERMERRAR B 18T EGE
20082 H26H
Hangzhou Zheng Jiang Real Estate  PRC RMB50,000,000 94.5% 94.5% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 16 March 2006 development
MMEIEHEREERAT Bl AR #50,000,0007C IEE
20063 H16H
Hefei Zhong'an Holiday Inn PRC RMB350,000,000 100% 100% Hotel
Co., Ltd. ® 18 March 2008 management
GBERZREEEFRRA I AR 350,000,0007% BEER
20083 A18H
Huijun Construction Materials PRC US$12,000,000 100% 100% Material
Trading (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. @ 16 July 2008 trading
EEREMEES (M) 3 12,000,000 7T MHE S
ARRREO 20087 A16H
Hangzhou Huihong Investment PRC US$49,990,000 100% 100% Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 19 February 2008 management
MNERREERAR AR i 49,990,000 7T REER

20082 A19H
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12831 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEBER 20126128310
RAER MR, A 5 AMEANEE 2012 2011 IEEH
Hangzhou Dehong New PRC US$29,900,000 100% 100% Manufacture of
Constructions Materials 1 February 2008 construction
Management Co., Ltd. materials
MMBRFR AN AR AR O H 29,900,000 % 7T B EE
2008F2 A1 H
Hangzhou Zhong'an Image PRC RMB1,000,000 46% 46% Construction
Construction Design Co., Ltd.® 10 December 2009 design
MMNRZENR 25 H AR#1,000,0007C RERE
TRERFERRA 2009F 12 F10H
Anhui Zhong'an Property PRC RMB1,000,000 90% 90% Property
Management Co., Ltd. @ 24 November 2003 management
RHRLYEERBEBRAR @ HE AE#1,000,0007T MEER
2003F 11 A 24 H
Hangzhou Zhong'an Service PRC RMB50,000,000 90% 90% Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. @ 13 August 2009 holding
MMNR L RBZERAR A @ H AR 50,000,000 7T REER
2009F 8 A13H
Hangzhou Dehong Energy PRC USD45,000,000 100% 100% Energy
Development Co., Ltd.® 3 September 2009 development
MMNERERRERRRFO H 45,000,000 7T RRREE
2009F9A3H
Zhejiang Anyuan Real PRC RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Real estate
Estate Agent Co., Ltd. @ 30 October 2009 agency
LR BELLRL il AR#10,000,0007C FHERE
BRAF 200910 A 30 H
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12431 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERERD Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEBAR 20126128310
RAER AR, A 5 AMEANEE 2012 2011 IEEH
Zhejiang Anyuan Agriculture PRC RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Agriculture
Development Co., Ltd. @ 11 June 2009 development
WIRRRERERRARY I AR 10,000,0007C REME
2009F 6 A11H
Zhejiang Anyuan Housekeeping PRC RMB10,000,000 90% 90%  Housekeeping
Senvice Co., Ltd. @ 30 October 2009 service
IR RRBRE AR R i AR10,000,0007C RIRARTS
2009F 10 30 H
Chunan Minfu Property PRC RMB6,000,000 100% 100% Property
Co., Ltd. © 24 October 2003 development
ERERREEFARRA il AR 6,000,0007C MERE
2003F 10 A 24 H
Hangzhou Zhong'an Property PRC RMB200,000,000 90% 90% Property
Co., Ltd. @ 1 February 2010 development
MMBEEEERAT H AR 200,000,000 7T EEE
20102 H1H
Yuyao Zhong'an Property PRC USD166,000,000 93% 93% Property
Co., Ltd. @ 10 December 2010 development
RKBRLEXBRAT I 166,000,000 7T ELIE
201012 A10H
Yuyao Zhong An Property PRC RMB200,000,000 90% 90% Property
Development Co., Ltd. 5 March 2010 development
RkRLEMAERE i AR 200,000,000 7T MERE
BRARE 20103 A5H
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12831 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEWIR 2012512A31H
ARER ML, R B HMEANEE 20124 20115 TEEK
Hangzhou Anyuan Property PRC RMB100,000,000 45.9% 45.9% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 14 September 2010 development
MMz REHERRA R H AE#100,000,0007 MERE
2010F9 A 148
Zhejiang Anyuan Travel Agency PRC RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Travel
Co., Ltd.® 17 August 2010 agency
MIZRIKITIHARAR R AK#10,000,0007C TRAT4E
2010F8 A17H
Zhejiang Zhongan Commercial PRC RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Investment
Investment Management 1 August 2011 holding
Co., Ltd. @6
MIRRERRE H AR#10,000,0007T REER
ERARAR GO 20116 8A1H
Zhejiang Zhongan Changhong PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 92.2% 92.2% Investment
Investment Management 28 August 2011 holding
Co., Ltd. @6
MMNBRRERE hE/hEA AR ¥ 1,000,000 REER
ERERAR @O 20118 A28 H
Zhejiang Jinnong Investment PRC RMB100,000,000 81% 81% Investment
Co., Ltd. ® 15 March 2011 holding
MIEREFREBRAR i AR#100,000,0007 REER
20114%3H 150
Zhejiang Xingidian Agriculture PRC RMB3,000,000 90% 90% Agriculture
Co., Ltd. © 22 June 2011 development
IEEREREBRAR O H AR 3,000,0007C RERE

201156 A 221
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

21. RIEB 2R E (1)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12431 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERERD Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEMAR 2012512A31H
ARER ERT A A= SMEANEE 2012 20116 TEEH
Hangzhou Fukai Management © PRC RMB500,000 89% 89% Property
2 March 2011 management
MNEACEERERARF O I AR 500,0007C hEER
20113 A2H
Zhejiang Zhongan Property PRC RMB20,000,000 90% 90% Property
Development Co., Ltd. © 4 August 2011 development
MWIRREREREERAR G & AR 20,000,0007C MERE
201148H4H
Yuyao Zhongan Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 90% 90% Agriculture
Development Co., Ltd. © 9 November 2011 development
TR ZREREERDA O B/ hEA, AR 20,000,0007T BERE
2011411 A9A
Yuyao Zhongan Time Square PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 90% 90% Property
Commercial Management 6 November 2011 management
Co., Ltd. ©
AR BRRERESEE RE/HER, AR 2,000,000 7C NEER
ERBRAR O 2011F11 A6H
Hangzhou Zhong An PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 90% 90% Construction
Construction Design 28 November 2011 design
Co., Ltd. ©
MMNBLRERBRAR O B/ hEA, AR#5,000,0007C BERE

2011411 A28H
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. P B A TIRIIRE ()

(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) WEBARIMFFENT « (&)
Percentage of equity interest
Place of attributable to the Group as at
operations Nominal value of 31 December
and date of registered 12831 BAER
incorporation/ capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company establishment 31 December 2012 2012 2011 activities
EEMER 2012F12A31H
kS AL, FR L B H EMEANEE 20124 2011 & IEER
Zhong An International Shipping Hong Kong HK$780,000 100% 100% Shipping
(Hong Kong) Limited ¢ 11 November 2011
FLREBME(BE)ERATN G HE 780,00077T fiE
201111 118
Hangzhou Jia Ju Le Housekeeping ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 72% N/A  Housekeeping
Senvice Co., Ltd. @® 15 October 2012 service
MNBRERLRE HE/HER AR 3,000,0007C TEA B FRT
REARAR @@ 201210 A 15H
Notes: BffeE -
N/A  Not yet incorporated/established/acquired or liquidated by the Group. TEA ANEEDAREMEL BN WS ER -
(@  These subsidiaries were established by the Group in 2012. (@) ZEWBRARN 2012 FhAARNEBAKL -
(b) Types of legal entities: (b) EEEBER -
©) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise 1) SNEIBE R
@) Sino-foreign equity joint venture ©) FINE B
©) Limited liability company invested by foreign invested enterprises €) SR EBREEAR]
4 Limited liability company 4 BREMEAF]
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22.

23

24.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale of RMB 704,968,000 (2011: nil) were
pledged to secure interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group as disclosed in note 30(vi).

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22.

23.

HERECERME

R2012F 12 31 B » NEEE THIEHES
BRI % A AR 704,968,000 7T (2011
& T) o pEE S0V FTiE SR - EAEART
ANEE T BRITE R R EME AR -

Listed equity investments, at market value _EMEAIRE @ IZHE

The above equity investments at 31 December 2012 were classified
as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition, designated by
the Group as financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly lease
receivables on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. All balances of
the trade and bills receivables as at the end of the year were neither
past due nor impaired.

Trade and bills receivables are non-interesting-bearing and unsecured.

24.

2012 2011
2012 2011 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
722 1,004

iR IRE R 20124F 12 A 31 B AR
EEZURENIERE - AEERESE
BUAARBEEBESE A PEEN
SREE

FEN 3R 5 R 7k B TR 4

AEBEARPIIVNEZIEREIEREE
MERWTR - EEHM—RA—EA  5iE
ERFMe&ZERE=(EA - BKE SR
REEBRERNAASKBEREHIR
8 o

R E SRR RRE AR S M BRI -
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25. AR ZeRAEMEU
®IR

Group Company
KEE RATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
20124 2011 4F 20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AREBTR ARETT
Due from other related parties  FEUCHE fth B3 E 75 5108 (@) 8,202 8,292 - -
Advance to suppliers TEf R4 e 48,566 114,178 9 4,977
Deposits bi A
— for acquisition of a subsidiary — — Ui —RKIEB A A - 210,000 - -
— others —Hft 38,595 33,180 43 12,141
Prepaid tax TERHIE 82,129 124,117 - =
Other receivables H A fERIE 101,205 116,171 - 32
278,787 605,938 52 17,150
Impairment HE (b) (62,966)  (62,966) - -
215,821 542,972 52 17,150
(@) As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all of other receivables due from related (a) R2012F K% 2011 F 12 31 H * FiAFEURES

parties are due from a non-controlling shareholder.

(b) Included in the above provision for impairment of other receivables is a full (b)

provision for individually impaired other receivables of RMB62,966,000 with

a carrying amount before provision of RMB62,966,000 as at 31 December

2012.

B 75 SRR R W AR ROR -

it E SRR R ERERERERNE
B B L i 8 R IR 1 I ) 2 BB A RIS
62,966,000 7T * 1M 7K &1 £ & Al &9 &R B E 7
2012412 A 31 B B AR 62,966,000 T °
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

26.HERBAEERERMRSZR
AND RESTRICTED CASH HH &

Group Company
rEH AN
2012 2011 2012 2011

20125 20114 20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT AR¥TRT ARETT

Cash and bank balances R MIRT TR 995,589 562,751 1,739 6,136
Time deposits TERITF R 123,926 39,344 - 16,214

1,119,515 602,095 1,739 22,350
Less: Restricted cash B XREIEE (225,438)  (189,587) - =
Cash and cash equivalents He MREEEY 894,077 412,508 1,739 22,350
Current assets MBNVEE 129,688 189,587 - =
Non-current assets JEMENEE 95,750 = - =
Restricted cash ZR RS 225,438 189,587 - =

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted cash are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds
of properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the
related properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases
of construction materials and payments of the construction fees
of the relevant property projects when approval from relevant local
government authorities is obtained. As at 31 December 2012, such
guarantee deposits amounted to approximately RMB101,512,000
(2011: RMB166,457,000).

RITERERRITABRE R R
B MHERFERS—RE=EA T ZHNH
ROEANEENERRSFRKME) - RIET
RV HAE B KA R » RITHEBRR T
RHIZRSHEFRAL AL EEOELNEE
RIFZIRTT

B BEERER - AEERE TR
A EZEFTIRER S T 78 & BT S ;IBE R
BERITARP - (R EERNERIR
© o BESAEREE BT IR R BL R © 1R
SENARESEMEYEIE B EENR R
TAAREBH - R20129F12H31H » %
BRIz 4 A AR 101,512,000 7T (2011
F: AR¥166,457,0007T) ©
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

27

AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s current time
deposits of RMB28,176,000 (2011: RMB23,130,000) were pledged
to banks as guarantees to mortgage facilities granted to purchasers
of the Group’s properties.

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s non-current time
deposits of RMB95,750,000 (2011: nil) were pledged to secure
a long-term interest-bearing bank loans granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 30(v).

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due dates, is as follows:

RLEERRAR

Notes to Financial Statements

FAIE IR R

2. @R ASEFRMERZR

HH & ()

MR20126F12A31H - KRE B A R %
28,176,00070(20114F : AR# 23,130,000
J0) B E TRVEAE B R E R FIR1T « 1E
RSB B REFARIBE KB ©

2012412 B31 8 + 40K 5 30(v) AT i
% AEE AR 95,750,0007T (2011 4F -
) ) T IEENHATE BAfE SR VR4 4R - DAER
BAEEEERAGIERITER

27. B8 B IR

REBENE SRR IS PRIRRE B
BEtERREDITAT

2012 2011

20124 20114

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREF T

Within six months 61EA M 1,391,382 1,354,178
Over six months but within one year HBEeEAE1FAR 96,320 24,204
Over one year HBE1F 25,737 45,006
1,513,439 1,423,408

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free and are
normally settled based on the progress of construction.

SR T EER R R 8 R RIEEER
U o
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HfthE{ISIERELHER

Group Company
AEH PN
2012 2011 2012 2011

20124 20114 20124 2011 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFTIT AR®TR ARETT

Deposits related to construction B BZERIZ S 59,140 58,676 - -
Payables for acquisition of FLUEHT B A 7 FE 8

subsidiaries FOL] 22,056 203,533 - -
Interest expenses accrued FEETFI SRS 7,815 7,510 - -
Due to a non-controlling FEAST FEAE AR AR R Y

shareholder ;o8 453,251 328,929 42 42
Other payables HAb e FRIE 120,681 72,083 1,575 580

662,943 670,731 1,617 622
29. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS 29. ERRAM®

Advances from customers represent sales proceeds received from BERNFHERAEENE AV BFERELE
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties during EMEMBEERKIHEFTSHIE °

these financial years.
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 30. ;IR BITHR R H M ER
OTHER BORROWINGS
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Group REH
Current: BNER :
Bank loans — secured RITE R — B HEAF 786,000 1,006,000
Bank loans — unsecured SRITE R — EIEIR 50,000 =
Other loans — secured Hih e —FHER 903,030 58,930
1,739,030 1,064,930
Non-current: SERNER :
Bank loans — secured IRITER —BIRA 1,798,237 1,817,381
Other loans — secured HEhER—F IR 694,900 173,070
2,493,137 1,990,451
4,232,167 3,055,381
Repayable: AR T EAREE :
Within one year or on demand —FRHE KK 1,739,030 1,064,930
Over one year but within two years LR —FELRAMRE 1,311,646 1,003,000
Over two years but within five years ZHIMEEDRAEF 956,491 802,451
Over five years HELAE 225,000 185,000
4,232,167 3,055,381
Current liabilities mEE & 1,739,030 1,064,930
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE 2,493,137 1,990,451
Bank and other borrowings bear interest at fixed rates and floating HRAT B R HAth 5 SRR B TE ) FAE B F =
rates. The Group’s bank and other borrowings bore effective interest TR REERBRITERREMERS B
at rates ranging from 2.17% to 17.94% per annum (2011: 2.01% to RERFEMNE217EZE17.94E (2011 F ¢
17.94% per annum). 201 EE17.94E)5H8 »
The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the AEERFAMAERAEEEHUARE
year were denominated in RMB, except for the bank loans of HE » Bp20124512 A31 H A20120,235,000
US$120,235,000 (equivalent to RMB755,737,000) as at 31 Zt(FEEM AR 755,737,000 7T) HER1TE

December 2012, which were denominated in US$. FAZETTEHE ©



170 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

2012 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ER R M

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s bank and other borrowings were

secured by:

)

(i)

(i)

(V)

the Group’s investment properties with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,894,005,000 (2011:
RMB1,835,806,000) (note 14);

the Group’s properties under development with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB4,298,558,000 (2011:
RMBS,214,543,000) (note 15);

the Group’s property and equipment with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB168,025,000 (2011:
RMB146,617,000) (note 13);

the 100% equity interest of a subsidiary of the Group with
total equity of approximately RMB1,258,394,000 (2011:
RMB675,560,000);

the Group’s time deposits of RMB95,750,000 (2011: Nil) (note
26); and

the Group’s completed properties of RMB704,968,000 (2011:
Nil) (note 22).

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s borrowings of
RMB1,240,930,000 (2011: RMB220,930,000) were guaranteed by
Mr. Shi Zhongan (note 34(c)).

30. At B MITER K KA ER

(

il

)

MR2012F12 A31H » AEBRITERNE
fth e 2K e A 5 TR HRENAS

(i

(i)

)

(vi)

AEEEREAAEL AR 1,894,005,000
Jo(2011 4F = AR¥51,835,806,0007T) A
AW (HrE14) 5

AEEBREAAEL AR 4,298,558,000
JC(2011 4 : AR¥E3214,543,0007T) &I
R (IRE15)

AEBEREFELN AR 168,025,000
J0(20114F « AR¥146,617,0007T) K9
I EYSE A ERRE

AREBE—HK B AR M2 3P E -
ZBEARBNKRERBHRSAR
#1,258,394,000 7T (2011 4 :
675,560,000 7T) :

KEB A H AR ¥95750,0007T
(2011 4F : &) M E BT 3R (FIE26)
53

KEE A E A R ¥704,968,0007T
(20114 : Z)MEEXDE(H E
22) °

R2012F12831H REBMH AR
1,240,930,0007T(20114F : AFR%220,930,000
JT) BB R R 2 S A 1R (R (£ 34(0)) °
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. K&
Shares ey
2012 2011
2012 20114
’000 ‘000
5 ¥
Authorised: AT
4,000,000,000 (2011: 4,000,000,000 f% (2011 4 :
4,000,000,000) ordinary shares 4,000,000,000 %) A% EE HK$400,000 HK$400,000
of HK$0.10 each 0.108TH @R 400,000 78 7T 400,000/8 7T
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR :
2,367,635,400 (2011: 2,367,635,400 f% (2011 F :
2,371,695,400) ordinary shares 2,371,695,400 %) &A% EE RMB222,319 RMB222,636
of HK$0.10 each 0.108 TR EBR AR¥222319t ARM222,6367T
During the year, the Company repurchased 4,060,000 of its own FA AR A IEEENE BTN
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The purchased 4,060,000 % = 4 A1 85 B &9 iR 10 B T LA 5E
shares were cancelled during the year and the issued capital of 8 MARAERBEITIRAEREEEET N
the Company was reduced by the par value thereof. The premium BIR o BERR DS RS EE R AR
paid on the purchase of the shares has been charged to the s ER BRI - FABBARRRRMD T
share premium of the Company accordingly. The purchase of the BEAARSAIRFAFAS LIRFRTE
Company’s shares during the year was pursuant to the repurchase EMREREEMET  BNRISIAEEE
mandate granted by the shareholders to the Directors at the last REEFERERER - #EIAREEERE
annual general meeting of the Company, with a view to benefiting Fas o

shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per share
and earnings per share of the Group.
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 31. B& % (&)

RBZRNRIEBITIRAN BB E)F R

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to

the above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as R HE
follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROBE EBTRE ROEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT
At 1 January 2011 20111 A1H 2,331,206,400 219,216 2,942,944 3,162,160
Issue of shares MR1DEEAT 50,000,000 4,209 54,713 58,922
Repurchase and B[l e sEikin
cancellation of shares (9,511,000) (789) (10,637) (11,426)
Share issue expenses RinBEITHRY - - (1,095) (1,095)
At 31 December 2011 201112 A31H
and 1 January 2012 &2012F181H 2,371,695,400 222,636 2,985,925 3,208,561
Repurchase and EEAEDN =)
cancellation of shares (4,060,000) (317) (2,687) (3,004)
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 2,367,635,400 222,319 2,983,238 3,205,557




32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 15 May 2009 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the offer date.

The initial maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options granted (excluding options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Group, if any) under the Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Group (if any) must not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 15 May 2009,
being the date of approval of the Scheme by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company. Such maximum number
may however be refreshed at a general meeting of the Company
by shareholders. In addition, no options may be granted under the
Scheme or other share option schemes adopted by the Group (if
any) if the grant of such option will result in the maximum number
of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted but yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and other share option schemes adopted by the Group (if
any) exceeding 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-
month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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32. iRRR A&

QAR — BT EI([&ETE]) - A
MAAREEZERINEL BB EER2H
HIRESE R EE o ZErEINA B2 RE
BREF(BEBIIFNITES) RAEE
HitES « mAEEREERSREAHE
A AEENEF « AARIRBRE - AR
AN B A R R SRR - et &R
200945 A 15 BB - BRIESITREHE(E
7 BREHAEN AR TFEREGHS -

EiRRZET 8 R AN B h fE AR AT 21 (1
B) PR e 2 BB AE (TR BB B ZaT
SR ARS B H ARSI (20 F ) B R
BB R BB IR ) 1T (8 T A T B B R B
TS RERNEE - TMSBRBARAFRN
20095 A 15 A (AR ERAR AR AR R A
FRE LHEZTE 2 BE) BBITRHE
10% ° AT © B =RHEE ATRARF]
IRERA® ERARRIELER o thoh - W
A AR S S BUR IR B AR i s T B R AN [
PLAN R H (B AR R ST 2 (2B ) E R B RTT
R8P A B AR T T T A] T Al 3% R BT THY
B=RDEE BBA R R R TR
30% - RIS A AR R A AR 51 B sl AR & B ER AR
B E B AR T 1 (0 ) R i S I AR -
FMEAR] =1 3 Bl A1 ] AR R B AR Tl %
ETEREEK2EEETN R RDE
B - ERRAR AR EAIREHEE BTG A
1% o fEfAIHE — 25 5% HH 8 38 bt R 58 1) i A i
ARRERAE FEEIRRHLE -
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. BBRxiEsTEI(48)

(CONTINUED)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the grantee
within 21 days from the date of offer at a consideration of HK$1.00.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to five
years and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors,
but may not be less than the highest of:

(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of offer of the share options;

(i)  the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer; and

@iy ~ the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

BYARRAES TETBRABRFERE
SIS (AT R A T HOBBARAE - BB RS
B IEAITE R RRUE o 1AM - IRAEM
T+ EABEEFTARAREBRRIIBIE
WMITES @ WESOEAHE AR TRE
AR AR R 8 2N A 7] B ] B P B BT AR 1D Y
0.1% S EAAE (RIEA A RN B BrAR
{E51#) 185,000,000/ 7T + RIZES LR
RAE FEBIREHE o

BRHBERENENEENASE21 AR
AR AR RE.00BTTEM - AR LB
RZITEHAESETE YN —E2hFZH
BHIR R - EEBRERL R HENER
tTEzBHZABIZERBEH(ARBEEE
ERE)RILE -

BREZTEERESERE - BAERIA

THRSE

)  ANRBRDRBREZL B BB
Btz (g -

(i) ARFRMREZEZHAHFA[EZ

FEAEMR Tz FHRHE &

(i) AQEEFHRBHBEE -

AR B TR A AT RS INBRA
B LEREZRERN -
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. SRR RTE (48)
(CONTINUED)
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme FRNZETEIE N ARETE ZBEIRENT -
during the year:
2012 2011
20124 2011 4F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
InREFES BRE TS FERRiE
TEE #H 1TE(E ZH
HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share ‘000
BRET T2 EBRET Tn
At 1 January ®W1HA1H 2.12 127,101 2.58 48,062
Granted during the year FABRL - - 1.85 80,000
Forfeited during the year F R8I 2.18 (6,384) 2.58 (961)
At 31 December ®12H31H 2.12 120,717 212 127,101
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RS HAR M AR T R R AE 2 1T B R AT(E
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: HAGN'R -
2012 20124
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE* 1714
’000 per share
T4 =10
76,500 HK$1.85 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
1.8587C 2014F1 A22HE 202141 21 H
44,217 HK$2.58 9 July 2010 to 8 July 2019
2.58 87T 20107 HOBHZE201967 A8H

120,717
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

2011 2011 &

32. FRRR R8I (48)

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

BREHE THEE> T8

’000 per share

T4 R
80,000 HK$1.85 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
1.85%87T 20141 H22 H= 202141 A21H
47,101 HK$2.58 9 July 2010 to 8 July 2019
2.58 87T 20107 H9OBZE 201947 A8H

127,101

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights * AR TR EBEMRSAIRETERA T

AESANRIBANEMARERE) o

or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The group granted no share option and the fair value of the share
options granted during the year was nil (2011: RMB73,840,000).
The Group recognised a share option expense of RMB29,712,000
(2011: RMB35,129,000) during the year.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

AEEFAVERHEREEALEBERS
(20114 : AR¥73,840,0007C) - AEE
R A TERR I AR 2 A R #629,712,0007T
(20114 : AR¥35,129,0007T) °

FAMROZBREEEBREZAREET
e -SRI EEEENEL AR T
PAfE &t AT R AT h B R 2 R B 1
o TRESIBWAFERELR 2 HIE

2011

2011 4

Dividend yield (%) A% B 52K (%) 0.00
Expected volatility (%) T8 AR 1 (%) 59.06
Risk-free interest rate (%) 422 ) i 1) 2R (%) 2.30
Expected life of options (year) FERSETERT 2 () 6.50
Exercise price (HK$ per share) 1168 (FRBTT) 1.85

The expected life of the options is estimated by averaging the vesting
term and the term from the vesting date to the option expiry date and
is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

Rl 2 AT F R AT TTE A 2 H A
BRUIRRA LG HAE ZTTERA - FRHIK
8 SR R (R AR IR SR W I FRUR AR R B ZE - HETT
AEREBRER



—z——ggK 177

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

33

(CONTINUED)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As none of share options was exercised during the year, these was
no impact on ordinary shares of the Company, share capital or share
premium.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 120,717,040
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 120,717,040
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of RMB9,789,000 and share premium of RMB197,481,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 115,874,405 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 4.89% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

RESERVES
Group

(@) Share premium

The share premium of the Company represents the excess of
ordinary shares paid by the shareholders over their nominal
value.

(b)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation of the Group from 2006 to 2007 for
the purpose of preparation for the listing of the share of the
Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor. Prior to the incorporation of the
Company, the contributed surplus represented the aggregate
of the normal values of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
of the Group.

32.

33.

REEERRAT]
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FAIE IR R

R HERT 2 (45)

PR IR 2 S B A A A B
ZitER -

A LRI T - MLREAR
AR - BASRBUEERLE -

RBEMKR ARAAIRZTETAE
120,717,04010 BE AR #E B R 1T 6 o W02 55
MARITEERE 2 BT - AIEARRF
WIRARANEET  HEBUEBEINENT
120,717,040 [R A R B E @A R E 4 AR
9,789,000 7T 2 FEIMNR AN J2 f& 7 55 (B A RS
197,481,000 7T (HIBR BT ERAL) ©

RULELEFBEHREK 2 B - NARIRZAE

TH 115,874,405 (7 BERRAE M ARTT6E - #EE
AR E R % BB T4 4.89% °

foi O

rEE

(a) KtrimfE
AR RN AR (B HE R 2 AR
SERBHEE -

(b) ERBER

REBE N BB AIERIRE 2006 5F %
2007 F BEHEARR RIRNEEBHR
FiT R i i R SR B 1T AR P
U BE BT B A Rl AY R BR AN (B 4R RE £
RRBIFEATIERRIAKIR D EER
ZE o RARRIFEMAKMAT - BRA
AR E BB R RBER AR E
EEEEE -
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33. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Group (continued)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the additional contribution made
by the shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries and, in the
case of acquisition of an additional non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary, the difference between the cost of acquisition and
the book value of the non-controlling interest acquired.

Statutory surplus reserve and statutory
reserve fund

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, the subsidiaries of the Group that are domiciled in
Mainland China are required to allocate 10% of their profit after
tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR”)
until such reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital.

In addition, certain of the PRC group companies are foreign
investment enterprises which are not subject to the SSR
allocation. According to the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises, each of these
subsidiaries is required to allocate a certain portion (not less
than 10%) of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory reserve
fund until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

33. ftifim (#8)

REEE (&)
(c) BARE

(d)

IR TR AR A BRI EB A RIBCR B
MEIMEREE KRB AR
SMNIFFRRR RAE - WRB R AR AT B IF
PR AR R AR RO R

FEEBBRAEREAEERS

BEFREAGERTFREERAFEH
RARAEEFZAAR - ALRA R B A A A
SEHIERRERNERTATIEY
10% (IRIEF B e EREE) Z5E
BHATE(CAERBARE]  HEZ
BABEZHX B MEARR50% °

BEAN - ARETHREEBRRRINE
X BRBABRNEEERBRAE -
REBEBEARINECENE B BEDX
B REMBARSARETEEE
R PrEEE MR AIE RS T8
(TLR10%) BEEZELE RS BEE
IR E T A R H) 50%
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33. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 33. &l (#8)
Company RAF]
Share Exchange Retain profit/ Share
premium fluctuation (Accumulated option
account reserve losses) reserve Total
EX  REAE/
R EER KafE  (REEE)  BRERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2011 20111 A1H 2,942,944 (340,768) (34,342) 40,396 2,608,230
Total comprehensive FREEEREE
loss for the year - (125,442 (49,225) - (174,667)
Equity-settled share RS EREL b
option arrangements = = = 35,129 35,129
Transfer of share option REERERK
reserve upon the o i
forfeiture or expiry kRS
of share options = = 751 (751) =
Issue of shares RRADEAT 54,713 - - - 54,713
Share issue expenses B REITRY (1,095) - - - (1,095)
Repurchase el (10,637) - - - (10,637)
At 31 December 2011 2011412 A31H
and 1 January 2012 %2012 1 A18 2,985,925 (466,210) (82,816) 74,774 2,511,673
Total comprehensive FAZEBRESE
loss for the year - (1,915) (45,450) - (47,365)
Equity-settled share g SRR
option arrangements - - - 29,712 29,712
Transfer of share option RERERI
reserve upon the o R R R
forfeiture or expiry RS
of share options - - 4,647 (4,647) -
Repurchase A (2,687) - - - (2,687)
At 31 December 2012 2012512 A31H 2,983,238 (468,125) (123,619) 99,839 2,491,333
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. B AEZH

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in BRI G IS IRRFT I ER 32 5 IR A RN
these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following REBERNFANEBE T ETT TIEAR
material transactions with related parties during the year: 2

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group @ AEEZZERABNFM(BEE
which comprises the remuneration of the Directors disclosed EEHM) ERKITES HE -
in note 8.

(b)  As disclosed in note 25 the Group had balances due from (o) LOBIEE25 FTHER - 122011 F & 2012
related parties at 31 December 2011 and 2012. All the F12A318 - AREERREES &
balances due from related parties were arising from non-trade £ o PTAEEWEER AR IER 5
activities, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. EEIMEL - HEERR  2ERRE

KIS -

(©) As disclosed in note 30, the Group’s borrowings of © LM EES0FTHE EE - 720124 12 A 31
RMB1,240,930,000 (2011: RMB220,930,000) were B - AEEMEFAREE1,240,930,000
guaranteed by Mr. Shi Zhongan at 31 December 2012. 7L (2011 4F © AR 220,930,000 7T )

M B R SRR
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35. COMMITMENTS 35. A& Kk
The Group had the following commitments for property development RNIPEEIR  NEBEHERESTHHE
expenditure at the end of the reporting period: NAEENT :
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: DR 4B AR
Properties under development R 1,794,483 2,557,415

=
36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. {&EfH 8%z
As lessor ERHEA
The Group leases out its investment properties under operating AREFERBECEHELTHHAEREDE -
lease arrangements, on terms ranging from one to fifteen years and HENF—Z2+1%F - WAEENZIHBE
with an option for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all FEEFER 2B T ETHE -
terms will be renegotiated.
At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease 2012512 A31 B » ANEEIRIREEE S
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants FI RN A] s SE A A B A8 T B B 2 A
falling due as follows: B B & EERHESRIEREENT
2012 2011
20124 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Within one year —FR 58,153 78,749
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ F-EZFAFE (BEMFEBEEA) 124,449 143,761
After five years hF& 25,291 30,631

207,893 253,141




182 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2012 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ER R M

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating
lease arrangements, negotiated for terms of five years with an option
for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

36. EEHA&E ()
ERAEBA

mE - HBEERASHAE  YAEERS
HRRESHER 2GR TEIEE -

R2012% 12 A31 H * NEERE A
ZASTRE TN T 5 HAR 2N HA R B 18 AR e

follows: FEFELZENT ¢
2012 2011
2012 2011 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Within one year —FR 7,537 8,394
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ FE-_ZEFhF (BEMFEEEEA) 16,099 18,146
After five years hFE 31,317 30,331
54,953 56,871
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 7. XFRIR
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Guarantees given to banks for: FIATIAB 48 TIRITHIEIR ¢
Mortgage facilities granted REBEYHEERER

to purchasers of the RITIRIBE R

Group’s properties 1,362,294 1,238,914

The Group provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled to take
over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee
periods commence from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and end after the execution of individual purchasers’ collateral
agreements.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the financial year
in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group’s properties. The Directors consider that
in case of default on payments, the net realisable value of the related
properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

AEERETRITAAEEMENHERK L
MIZIBEE HAYER o RIBIERL PG -
B RREEEREFR - AEBARER
%Efﬂaﬁi%i% ERHER MZIBE R K A

REIR - AREHERAERZBEREDED
E.&Fﬁﬁﬁé o AREMERARKHAREZ
BERBMEEER BRI LERIBHER
1k e

REBVWBRFE  ~AEEYERAEEF U
ENERER TORBEEMREHNERT
EEEAEREE - EFRR - WHERE
BHHIER - ﬁféﬁ%%ﬁ’l—f“fﬁi%’rﬁitxfé
EHTIRBERRER NS REIRK - Bt
W ERZEERIELEE -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 38. LifsapElomem T R
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial HEHREemMTANRERROEREERT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2012 Group 20124 REE
Financial assets SHEE
Financial
assets
at fair value
Available- through
for-sale profit or loss
Loans and financial ~ UAAREE
receivables assets FTEEHEH
EXR AHHE HAEHES Total
FElRIE SREE HEREE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Investment in jointly-controlled entities REREHBERNEE 350,926 - - 350,926
Equity investments at fair value WA BETEAHES

through profit or loss AR BiEnmEREE - - 722 722
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE - 5,610 - 5,610
Trade and bills receivables BNE SETRER 3,860 - - 3,860
Financial assets included in FTABRNSE - ke

prepayments, deposits and REMEWRIEFRE

other receivables TREE 85,126 - - 85,126
Restricted cash XBHERE 225,438 - - 225,438
Cash and cash equivalents HeREEEY 894,077 - - 894,077
At 31 December 2012 2012512 A31H 1,559,427 5,610 722 1,565,759
Financial liabilities A== Ri

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

RIS AT

SREE

RMB’000

ARET T

Trade payables FERTE SR 1,513,439

Financial liabilities included in ST ARt FE T FRIE &

other payables and accruals EAERTHEREE 592,888

Interest-bearing bank FRERITER R EAER

and other borrowings 4,232,167

6,338,494
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BLUBNBAHLMIR

CATEGORY (CONTINUED) &
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments ZHReMmTARREHARNERENDT :
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) (&)
2011 Group 2011 & AEH
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
Available- through
for-sale  profit or loss
Loans and financial  AAAEE
receivables assets FTEEEE
5704 ENE  FAERER Total
YR SREE  WeREE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETR
Investment in jointly-controlled entities RERZHERORE 167,779 - - 167,779
Equity investments at fair value NAREEFEAEES
through profit or loss STAZ BRI ERRE - - 1,004 1,004
Available-for-sale investments EHERE - 5,610 - 5,610
Trade and bills receivables BB ZERREE 56,750 - - 56,750
Financial assets included in FABNRE - &k
prepayments, deposits and REM RGBS
other receivables SREAE 304,677 - - 304,677
Restricted cash XRHEE 189,587 - - 189,587
Cash and cash equivalents Re KA EEY 412,508 - - 412,508
At 31 December 2011 2011512 A31H 1,131,301 5,610 1,004 1,137,915
Financial liabilities =R

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

BB AN Y

TRAEE

RMB’000

ARBFIT

Trade payables JEFTE SRR 1,423,408

Financial liabilities included in ST AE At FEAT IR K

other payables and accruals EErrERATEmEaE 625,442
Interest-bearing bank and T RIRITTE R R E AL ER

other borrowings 3,055,381

5,104,231
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CATEGORY (CONTINUED) &
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments ZHReMmTANREHARNERENDT :
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) (%)
2012 Company 2012 % RAF]
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
Loans and DAREER
receivables sTEEH%ZE Total
BRR sTAEHEE
FEUW R IE HemEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥TT
Equity investments at fair value AR EEEREEE)
through profit or loss FTAE BEEERIEE - 722 722
Investments in subsidiaries NG of e 929,934 - 929,934
Financial assets included in FFATENFOE - Ee
prepayments, deposits and I EL A FE W R IR A A
other receivables EREE 52 - 52
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI 1,891,949 - 1,891,949
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 1,739 - 1,739
2,823,674 722 2,824,396
Financial Liabilities THAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R A
TRISE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Financial liabilities included in ST A& FRTE K
other payables and accruals ErrERATNEREasE 1,617
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT BB A RZIE 109,330

110,947
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY B.LAENB S EMIR
"
CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (@)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHeRmITANBEHRNEEENT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (&)
(continued)
2011 Company 2011 5§ RAF
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
Loans and ARAAREE
receivables SHERHS Total
Exk FTAE e
JFEURIE HEmEE 1R5T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARET T
Equity investments at fair value AR EEFE8EE
through profit or loss FTAE HiEmmERIRE - 1,004 1,004
Investments in subsidiaries M B AR R E 932,181 — 932,181
Financial assets included in FTATERE - EZe
prepayments, deposits and K B Ath fE U GRIE R Y
other receivables SREE 17,150 - 17,150
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE RS /BB A F) 5K IE 1,881,264 — 1,881,264
Cash and cash equivalents e MReFEEY 22,350 - 22,350
2,852,945 1,004 2,853,949
Financial Liabilities cRBeE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
bie: 3.2 Nz
SRIAE
RMB’000
ARET T
Financial liabilities included in ST AE b FE (< RIE &
other payables and accruals EErERPHESRAE 622

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTHT B A )R8 119,388

120,010
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 39. s RBERAALEELREE
HIERARCHY
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the AEBEANTSHTANEEELRALE
Company’s financial instruments are as follows: BT :
Group KEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AREE
2012 2011 2012 2011
20124 20114 20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT AR¥TR ARETT
Financial assets SMEE
Investment in jointly-controlled R EE S B B
entities B & 350,926 167,779 350,926 167,779
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY 894,077 412,508 894,077 412,508
Restricted Cash ZRRFIR & 225,438 189,587 225,438 189,587
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 BRI & 3,860 56,750 3,860 56,750
Financial assets included in FTATENRIE « &
prepayments, deposits R HoAth e s kT8
and other receivables FHemEE 85,126 304,677 85,126 304,677
Equity investments at RAREEFEAER
fair value through profit or loss BB AE BB R
K= E 722 1,004 722 1,004
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 5,610 5,610 5,610 5,610
1,565,759 1,137,915 1,565,759 1,137,915
Financial liabilities SHMAE
Trade payables BB ZERR 1,513,439 1,423,408 1,513,439 1,423,408
Financial liabilities included in ST AE i B < 018 e
other payables and accruals AEATNERmEE 592,888 625,442 592,888 625,442
Interest-bearing bank and FFESRITER R
other borrowings HAbfER 4,232,167 3,055,381 4,232,167 3,055,381

6,338,494 5,104,231 6,338,494 5,104,231
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HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the

Company’s financial instruments are as follows (continued):

REFEERRAT]
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REERARARIANFAERAAE

Company PN
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AREE
2012 2011 2012 2011
201245 2011 48 20124 2011 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TIT AR®ETT AR®TR ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents R MREEEY 1,739 22,350 1,739 22,350
Equity investments at fair value NAREEFEZAE
through profit or loss BE)ET AL BERA
EmRE 722 1,004 722 1,004
Financial assets included in FTATENRE - Be
prepayments, deposits and T Eo A FE R IE A
other receivables &R EE 52 17,150 52 17,150
Investments in subsidiaries RETEB R BRI E 929,934 932,181 929,934 932,181
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E R 1,891,949 1,881,264 1,891,949 1,881,264
2,824,396 2,853,949 2,824,396 2,853,949
Financial liabilities =N
Financial liabilities included in ST AE MR RTE K 8
other payables and accruals EATHERAas 1,617 622 1,617 622
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN EYNGIE O 109,330 119,388 109,330 119,388
110,947 120,010 110,947 120,010

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a

TREERBENAAEBENZTARERE
RS (MIFRAIBRHEE)

FNVREING

BRI S MY

current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
and bills receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to
subsidiaries and investments in subsidiaries approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

AR ZEBAR ° THIERBRRIIARGE

BRAEE

BRREMRSEEY  XRHES - B
BEEFRER BNESER  FEAEM
PR~ B REMBURGIAETHERMEE
SPARMMENFTEREFERTNERA
& - FEUR e F B & R AR A B B8 2 )
EIRE NN - M E T AREE
EE=
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)

0. ARNRERLARERE

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk

and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

fair values measured based on quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

fair values measured based on valuation techniques

for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or

Level 1:

liabilities
Level 2:

indirectly
Level 3:

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for

which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012:

(%)

SERRITERMAMERN AR BETEB
B TRRBOURTAAENNE - FERR
KRBT R BRI RFRSRE M
=

N

NAEERERE

AEEEAATRBEERKESRTALZ
REE:

o
m

& AABEMEDREEIEELA
BERERTIZ AT RAFRERS

EE

I AR EBERTEDEREATHEAN
EBEAEAYEZMEBARES
AEEREERREE 2 GETES
H

I AR EBEFTEDERETHAR
EBEAESAYE ZHIHAREYL
IR B TBRMISHE (TAIBE
WABIR) 2 (AETER/H

R20124F 12 A31 AIEA BB ERIEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t 11} =1 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR¥BTRT AR¥BTRT AR¥Tx
Equity investments at fair value A AR EEFEEH
through profit or loss FEET A BEER
RERIRE 722 - - 722

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December 2071

R2011F12 531 AR BEFFEAZE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H FK E=M 15
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT AREBTIT ARETT ARETT
Equity investments at fair value AARBEAEAE
through profit or loss SEETA S BBEN
BaERE 1,004 - - 1,004




40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the
Group’s equity.
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40. ¥ E B EE H IR R B E

AEENTHTATEERAS NASEE
Y ZRGIBS M BRITERREME
Ko BLERTAIZANAAEELES
KB - AEEHAEMEREERAE -
Pl E BRFRENE SRR - RE&K
MH=ZEEL -

AEE SR T EFrELN T 2/ R 2 EE
e SNERR - EERBMEBE SRR -
AEETERERBITITEEMTAEER
R - ATRERSRIALRNSERE Liis
THE R R

(a) FRE

AEBYJ/ERFEEE - AEEHB
MiHF RS SRR AR F EE
AEEWTEBRITEREEMERE
B o ARERA R EA A R = 2
HREMEER -

TRINEFESEAIEEFT - BB
FRNEREENTE  AREBRBA
MERAREESNSRE (AR
A RFRTIE) o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. MBREEEARRBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (8)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (@) FIZ=mEp (%)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity
EohEm RRB4 A0 7 RERRE
Om2) i, CR) Om2)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETIT ARETTT
2012 20124
RMB AR 50 (17,382) (13,037)
Uss$ ETT 50 (3,779) (2,834)
RMB AR # (50) 17,382 13,037
Uss =T (50) 3,779 2,834
2011 20114
RMB AR 50 (12,812) (9,609)
Us$ =TT 50 (993) (745)
RMB AR (50) 12,812 9,609
uss$ ETT (50) 993 745
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) INE LB
The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and RNEBRFESE B BE A EST -
all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s FBRSERAARE - REB K
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for DEENBBEUARESE BT
certain bank balances and bank loans denominated in US$ XL RBITHERNBRITAES MIRITE
and HK$. BRI ©
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRYRAE BT AE R AEF
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RN REAREETNBTERS
US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other variables hold ] s B HKE - T A E MR
constant, of the Group profit before tax and the Group’s BREREREFTE o

equity.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. MBRBEEEARRBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Foreign currency risk (continued) (b) FhEEmELER (%)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
foreign in profit (decrease)
currency rate before tax in equity
JINEE FE == R %% B F =
i, CR) #in, CR) #hn, GRd)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
2012 20124
If HK$ weakens against US$ i 7S C L ETTEZ (B 5 (13,773) (10,330)
If HK$ strengthens against US$ /&0 4.0 FHE (5) 13,773 10,330
If RMB weakens i AR H E TR E
against the US$ 5 (37,256) (27,942)
If RMB strengthens fig ARREE W T HHE
against the US$ (5) 37,256 27,942
2011 20114
If HK$ weakens against US$ w8 7T S TR B 5 13 10
If HKS strengthens against US$ /870 {3 T H1E ®) (13) (10)
If RMB weakens MARBHETRZE
against the US$ 5 (24,121) (18,091)
If RMB strengthens fig A RHE W 2T HHE
against the US$ ) 24,121 18,091
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The Group’s
cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited with overseas
banks and state-owned banks in Mainland China. The
carrying amounts of the other receivables, restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The Group has no other financial assets which carry
significant exposure to credit risk. The Group has arranged
bank financing for certain purchasers of its property units and
has provided guarantees to secure the obligations of such
purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosures of these
guarantees are made in note 37.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans.

(c)

(d)

40. HERREE D MRBE

(48

FERER

AEEWEEFHEERR - AEE
MRS RBESESEBYEZ AT RIS
HNRAT R B At B & SR ATV TF 3K
B BB TR 2R 7 FT 51) B L b i Uk 3R
B SREBERFESRELSEY
HEREE A AN B 5 H S g B E ATk
EORREERR o AR %EE WS
EXEERBROHHEMSREE - A%
BEAHETYREMMERZHER
TRVE T IRMERMRBERNER
BT - AEZEEROFERZERR
PiEE37 o

RBESRR

AEBRAREERSESETE
ERHESHBRAR ZTAZEH
ERTAREREE (MEYESK
F)MEZBRBERRGLEEB 2R
FHRER °

AREERBWIHEBNARITER
BB ESTEEMERE RN 2R F

fiy -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. MGRBEE AR RBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (8)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBELERER (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at BIEFTHORBMIBNR  AEEERE
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BERHREHRMEIE R BRI T ¢
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
Group REE
2012
20125
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
3MEAZ
RER  OR3ERA  HR12M8A 1255 565 st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARWTR AR®TRT ARBTR ARETR AR®TxR

Interest-bearing bank STBHRITER

and other borrowings REMIER - 353,082 1,385,948 2,268,137 225000 4,232,167
Trade payables JE(TE S8R 1,513,439 - - - - 1,513,439
Guarantees given to FETAEEYE

banks in connection EXNRIEBER

with mortgage AT RITMER

facilties granted to

purchasers of the

Group’s properties - 1,362,294 - - - 1,362,294
Other payables H A E(IFE

and accruals RIEHER 209,692 - 124,323 328,928 - 662,943

1,723,131 1,715,376 1,510,271 2,597,065 225,000 7,770,843
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. MGRBEE AR RBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (¥%8)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBELERER (&)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as RIBFTARMIRGR - AEB S
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BERREARNZ BB R T ¢

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Group rEE
2011
20115
Lessthan 3to less than 1t0b Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
EAZE
BER  LR3EA PR12MEA 1855 5FNUE it

RVB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETT ARETRL

Interest-bearing bank FTRBRITER

and other borrowings REMER - 410,536 654,394 1,805,451 185,000 3,055,381
Trade payables JERTE ZHR 1,423,408 - - - - 1423408
Guarantees given to PETFAREENE

banks in connection BERNIRIBER

with mortgage BT RTAER

facilities granted to

purchasers of the
Group’s properties - 1,238,914 - - - 1,238,914
Other payables HAtE(IRE

and accruals RIEH &R 115,047 - 181,466 328,929 - 625,442

1,538,465 1,649,450 835,860 2,134,380 185,000 6,343,145




2rEEARAT —T——fg 197

Notes to Financial Statements

B H R R B =
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BRI EE B I\ R BUE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (8)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBELERER (&)
Company Vi |
2012
20125
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
Ondemand 3 months 12 months years 5years Total
3EAZE
REX DSHR3ER PR12M8A 125% 5EL E @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARETR ARBTT ARRTR ARET:R

Due to subsidiaries FERTHE A RIFUE 109,330 - - - - 109,330
Other payables HA (IR

and accruals LEstER 1,617 - - - - 1,617

110,947 - - - - 110,947

2011
20115
Less than 3 to less than 1t0b Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
3EAZE
BER  SR3ER PR121@A 125% 5P F @5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARET:T

Due to subsidiaries [ERTH B A AFUE 119,388 - - - - 119,388
Other payables Hith fEfT50E
and accruals LIEEtER 622 = = = - 622

120,010 = = = = 120,010
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 0. MERBREEHEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (48)
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management (e) EXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

AEEEAEENTIEBNEERE
REERAFELERBIFERNE
AL E - A EEBRERREE
RAIE

REBEBTEEENERE - WIREBEE
AR 5 O B B 0 AR B B 2 A R B R A
HHEHIEHFAE - B ARE AL
T REEA AR TREAR
B BEXRRETFRFERBETHR
2 o BZE2012F K 201141231 H
IEFE - AEBREREREERENE
2 BORSAR P EH R E -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 0. MERBREEHEEREBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Capital management (continued) (e) EAXEM (M)
AEBEREEGFL REITER
ZEAEBBLERAFEREKRAEARM
FEHE  FEEETERITERR
HER - EMNEZRAREMERSR
FUEHEER  BREMREEE
) o BRI A RIREE(ER - 1
ZHREHARNEESFLLROT ¢

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade payables
and other payables and accruals, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

Group rEE
2012 2011
20124 20114
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Interest-bearing bank and STESRITER R H M ERK
other borrowings 4,232,167 3,055,381
Trade payables B E SRR 1,513,439 1,423,408
Other payables and accruals E b fE T FE KBS B 662,943 670,731
Less: Cash and cash equivalents J& : 3& RIREEEY (1,119,515) (412,508)
Net debt R EIR 5,289,034 4,737,012
Equity attributable to S ARER AEGER
owners of the parent 5,397,221 5,062,708
Capital and net debt BRI FEE 10,686,255 9,799,720
Gearing ratio BEAMELX 49% 48%

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

the board of directors on 13 March 2013.

41. BERROTR

ZEEEN2013F3 A 13HBATBERERL

B BT -
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As at 31 December 2012 742012412 831 H

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA attributable to Lease term
31 December 2012 sq- m. the Group of land
Address R20124F BEEE AKEEMN bl
3k 12 31 HWAZ F5K EENESHE KHARR
1. Basement 1 to Level 15, Guomao Building, Shops and serviced 12,225 90% Medium (Note)
No. 93 Shixin Road, Chengxiang Town, apartments
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC
NI AN TR LR AEET O 935 REMMRERAE 12,225  90% R AR (B EE)
BEANEMEIEEFE15E
2. A retail shop unit on L1, Shanghai La Vie, No. Shop 341 90% Medium
433 Chang Le Road, Xuhui District, Shanghai,
the PRC
PE EETIRER R 433 5% B RRET  pHi 341 90% H AR
E1 N1 EREH
gl Portion of Level 1, the whole of Level 2 to Shops and portion of 5,913 90% Medium
Level 4, Integrated Service Center, East it is vacant
Xiaoran Road and Jinjiagiao Road, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the
PRC
PENNTEMMNTRILRBRARBRERE BHNHBNEE 5913  90% A
RS RBROENEHLOME2EE4[E
4, Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 5 in Shops and portion of 60,014 90% Medium
Block 2 to Block 5 of Highlong Plaza, Shanyin it is vacant
Road and Gongren Road, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
RENT AN HRLRILBERMTARKE &5 60,014  90% H A
BESE2IREESR2E1EESENHH
5. Office units in Block 2 of Highlong Plaza, Office and portion of 24,491 90% Medium
Shanyin Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, it is vacant
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
RENINIEMMNTRILERILBRERESSE HABNBHEE 24,491 90% HHA
2R P NE BT
6. Serviced apartment units in Block 3 and 4 of ~ Serviced apartments 21,094 90% Medium
Highlong Plaza, Shanyin Road and Gongren
Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC
REDNTEMNTRELRILBEMTARE REXLE 21,094  90% ]

EESFEIREFARZBREARE
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As at 31 December 2012 72201212 A31 H

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA attributable to Lease term
31 December 2012 sq. m. the Group of land
Address R20124F BEEE AKEEN T H9FE
ok 12 A 31 HW A% T 75K fEENESE QHR
7. Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 2 (Phase Shops and portion of 10,885 90% Medium
1) and the whole No.43 commercial building it is vacant
(Phase 2), Landscape Garden, Shushan
Road and Panshui Road, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
REUINI AN TR RS LEFEKEL  BEHNEHO=E 10,885  90% H AR
IKFEEE 1 BRI = 2 [E 5 R 5 2 BiE IR 43
R
8. Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 2 in Phase Shops and portion of 5,309 100% Medium
| of Vancouver City, Jinhua Yuan, Remin it is vacant
Road, Huaibei, Anhui Province, the PRC
PRZEEEILTARBABTERFE 18 BENHOEE 5,309 100% H AR
EIHE1EE 2 EmH

Note: Medium is defined as the term of land use rights granted remaining unexpired at the Mt : REAER RN EEREARE - B#tH L AEEN
end of the financial year is less than 50 years but not less than 10 years. i AIEFAF R A NR 50 F - BT/ NR104F ©
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

HERRE,REEHNE

% of

interest

Land Cost attributable
per sq.m. (RMB) Land Cost  to the Group Site Area
BEHE  (RMBI00) 558 (squm,)

Project City/District Location Project Type (AR®T/  tH#HAK FEfbER wEEE  Total GFA*
EE4R /B BRI NEREME ¥ix)  (AR¥TT) HEDL (PAR)  SpEER
Zhejiang Province
HiTE
1 Landscape Bay Xiaoshan, Centre of new Residential 621 145,367 92.70% 52,000 233,978
Sige Hangzhou districtin Tier 2ty £
fiMl/ &l AR
2 Hidden Dragon Land Xiaoshan, Centre of new Residential/retail/office 1,488 360,360 94.50% 89,173 242,138
Bee Hangzhou districtin Tier 2city  £%/J8%,/H1
fiM/&l -
3 Huifeng Plaza (A) Xiaoshan, Town centre of Tier  Residential/retall 147 5490 90.00% 13910 37,320
ELES( Hangzhou 2city fE/H%
fiMl/ &l IR
4 Huifeng Plaza (B) Xiaoshan, Town centre of Tier - Commercal 675 8,500 90.00% 11,340 12,600
ELE50B Hangzhou 2clty [
fiM/&l ZRBERD
5 Phase A, International Office ~ Xiaoshan, Tier 2 city with high -~ Commercial 265 215,246 100.00% 92610 843,018
Centre Hangzhou gowth potential 7%
BRHARLAS fiMl/ &l “heER
6 Phase B & C, Interational Office - Xiaoshan, Tier 2 city with high ~ Commercal 348 502,512 100.00% 211,200 1,626,8%
Centre Hangzhou gowthpotential %
BRH#ARLBCH iil/& ZhEER
7 White Horse Manor Xiaoheshan, Tier 2 city with high ~ Residential 2,269 550,000 90.00% 145,265 243,497
SEAIIE Hangzhou gowthpotentil ~~ FE
fiMl/ KRR
8 Shanshui Yiyuan Qiandeo Lake, Tier 2 ity with high  Residential/hotel 6,212 215,000 100.00% 112,598 34,608
ks Hangzhou gowthpotentel ~ £%//Ef&
i/ Toi ZhEER
9 [deal Bay Yuhang, Hangzhou  Town centre of Tier  Residential/retail 1,048 834,000 45.90% 168,743 538,856
aee i/ 2cly /5
ZHERRD
Subtotal for Hangzhou 764 2,836,475 866,834 3,712,910
UMbt
10 Dragon Bay Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier  Residential 9,130 2,139,000 90.00% 330,185 196,809
i3 2 /40 2cly frz
ZHEERD
il Jade Mansion Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier  Residential 3713 1,410,168 93.00% 262,221 292,808
FRRE 2/ Rk 2cly iz
ZHBRRD
12 Times Square Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier  Residential/office/hotel 1,089 136,678 640,281
BRER 2 /40 2cly e/ 80/ B
ZHEERD
Subtotal for Ningbo 314 3,549,168 729,034 1,129,898
BRG
Subtotal for Zhejiang 1,319 6,385,643 1,615,868 4,842,808

R
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERRR HHENWE

Land Bank (sq.m.)
TG (TAk)
Development Phases Types
Including GEE REKE
Planned GFA* investment Hold for
(sq.m.) properties  Completed for Under future  Residential & Commercial &

Address aRaREmE En@f sale” development? development®  Facilities| Hotel Office Il
it (FAR) REME  RIRE BEm? GHAREES  HEREEI BEI EERBAN
Ningwei Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang 101,271 101,271 101,271
Province
HIEmNTRIEZER
Wenxing Road, Wenyan Town, Xiaoshan District, 242,138 26,516 242,138 215,622 26,516
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
LANTRILEERERAR
Yucai Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang 37,320 37,320 31,320
Province
HIEmNTRLEET%
Yucal Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejlang 12,600 12,600 12,600 12,600
Province
MIANTRILEET %
Qlanjiang Gentury Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, 843,018 544,333 328,376 514,642 298,685 60,000 484,333
Zhejiang Province
HIEmNTBLES TN
Qlanjiang Gentury Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, 1,626,895 1,626,8% 1,626,8%
Zhejiang Province
LATNTRILES TR
Liuhe Road, Xianlin Town, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, 243497 243,497 237,498 5999
Zhejiang Province
AN H AR R AR
Southwest of Qiandaohu Town, Chunan, Hangzhou, 34,608 34,608 34,608 10,800 23,808
Zhejiang Province
MLAMNTER TS HEER
Yuhang Economic Development Zone, Hangzhou, Zhejang 538,856 16,208 538,806 522,648 16,208
Province
HANmRTEERER

3,580,203 634,265 101,211 1,387,475 2,091,457 2,950,739 83,808 545,656
Xinjtan North Road, Yuyao, Znejiang Province 80,476 80476 80,476
LA AkmATRLH
Xinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 292,808 292,808 292,808
IHTA RT3
Xinjtan North Road, Yuyao, Znhejiang Province 640,281 313,315 640,281 326,966 74,041 239,274
LA AkmATELH

1,013,565 313,315 80476 933,089 700,250 74,041 200,274

4,593,768 947,580 181,747 2,320,564 2,091,467 3,650,089 157,849 784,930
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FEBRRRRHENTE

% of

interest

Land Cost attributable
per sq.m. (RMB) Land Cost  to the Group Site Area
BEHE  (RMBI00) 558 (squm,)

Project City/District Location Project Type (AR®T/  tH#HAK FEfbER wEEE  Total GFA*
HRER /B B S5 NERENE ¥5%)  (AR¥TRT) ERL (Bhk)  HBEERE
Anhui Province
7HE
13 Phase 1B, Green Herbour Hefel, Anhui Centre of new Residential 266 11,645 84.15% 64,376 43718
REFEE 1B /A distictin Ter 2clty £
AL
14 Phase 1C, Green Harbour Hefel, Anhui Centre of new Residential 302 27,356 84.15% 58723 90,453
GEEEZ1CH ZH/AK distictinTer2ctty £
k57 T
15 Phase 2, Green Harbour Hefel, Anhui Centre of new Residential 376 40,708 84.15% 269,000 108,200
R BV /A districtin Tier 2city £
AL
16 Phases 3-6, Green Harbour Hefel, Anhui Centre of new Residential 532 298,100 84.15% 1,395,000 560,300
GEHBEEIZ6H /B distictin Tier 2ty £
A
Subtotal for Hefei 4N 377,809 1,787,099 802,671
AR
17 Phase 1, Vancouver City Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Residential 3 5809 100.00% 197,000 168,088
RIERE1E T/ dstrictin Teer 3ty %
=R
18 South Part of Phase 2, Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Residential 3 3,483 100.00% 151,247 100,779
Vancouver Cty R/ dstrictin Ter 3ctty %
RFEHZ2EH ZHaTRD
19 North Part of Phase 2, Huaiei, Anhui Centre of new Residential 3 2,554 100.00% 84,329 73897
Vancouver Oty o/ dstrictin Tier 3ctty %
i BESEE AL
20 Phase 3A, Vancouver Gty Hualoei, Anhui Centre of new Resioential 3b 4974 100.00% 139,383 143,941
BFEEAE 8/ distrctinTier 3city %
=BT
Al Phase 3B-3D, Vancouver ity Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Residential 3 10,703 100.00% 214,217 309,712
B £ B RS T/ dstrictinTeer 3oty =
AL
22 Phase 4 North, Vancouver City  Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Resioential 3b 10,286 100.00% 296,704 297,636
RFEAZ 45 78/ disrctinTier 3city %
ST
28 Phase 4 South, Vancouver City  Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Residential 31 3,863 100.00% 82,540 111,787
RS 4 o/ dstrictin Teer 3ty =
=L
24 Phase 5 North, Vancouver City  Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Resiential 3 2,336 100.00% 265,310 67,607
RFEHZSE /8 disrctinTier 3city %
=T
25 Phase 5 South, Vancouver City  Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Residential 31 1,228 100.00% 81,511 35,521
B2 R/ dstrictin Teer 3oty %
AL
26 Phase 6, Vancouver City Hualoei, Anhui Centre of new Resioential 31 1,952 100.00% 35,386 56470
BFEAE6H /8 distrctinTier 3city %

=&AL
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BFERRR SHENYE
Land Bank (sq.m.)
TG (TAk)
Development Phases Types
Planned GFA* investment Hold for
(sq.m.) properties  Completed for Under future  Residential & Commercial &
Address aRaREmE En@f sale® development® development®  Facilities| Hotel Office II
it (FAR) REME  RIRE BEm? GHAREES  HEREEI BEI EERBAN
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 25,096 25,09 25,09
2R e ATRRER
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 90,453 90,453 90,453
ZRASETRTRRER
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 108,200 108,200 108,200
ZHAEETATRRER
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefel, Anhui Province 560,300 560,300 560,300
ZRAETRTRRER
784,049 25,09 90,453 668,500 784,049
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibel, Anhui Province 10,658 10,658 10,658
REB R TRLRARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 8,554 8,554 8,554
BRI TRLEARSE
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibel, Anhui Province 10429 10429 10429
RE® R TRLEARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 8,185 8,185 8,185 8,185
BRI TRLEARS
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibel, Anhui Province 309,712 7,651 309,712 302,061 7,651
REB R TRLRARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 198,250 198,250 198,250
BRI TRLEARS
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibel, Anhui Province 11,787 11,787 111,787
REB R TRLRARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 66,024 65,024 65,024
BRI TRLEARSE
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibel, Anhui Province 35,521 35,521 35,521
REE R TRLRARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 56,470 26,560 56,470 30,910 26,560

ZREELTRLEARS
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERRR NHENWE

% of

interest

Land Cost attributable
per sq.m. (RMB) Land Cost  to the Group Site Area
BEHE  (RMBI00) 158 (squm,)

Project City/District Location Project Type (AR®T/  tH#HAK FEfbRR wEEE  Total GFA*
AR /B BRI NEREME ¥5%)  (AR¥T7) HEA (Frk)  HBREER*
2 Phase 6D, Vancouver City Hualoei, Anhui Centre of new Hotel 31 2,025 100.00% 60,768 58,696
B A0S L/ distictin Ter 3¢ty JEJ&
=D
28 Phase 7, Vancouver City Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new Residential 31 4721 100.00% 80,291 136,772
BFENETH 28/ districtin Ter Sty £
=R
29 Southwest of Times Square, ~ Huaibel, Anhui Centre of new Residential
Vancouver Cty R/ districtinTier 3ctty %
RFER (BRERER) =L
30 Northeast of Times Square, Huaioei, Anhi Centre of new Residential 3 2,862 100.00% 87,012 82,815
Vancouver City 28/ distrctinTier 3city £
RN (BREGEL) =R
Subtotal of Huaibei 35 56,802 1,835,758 1,643,621
N
Subtotal of Anhui 178 434,611 3,622,857 2,446,292
R
Jiangsu Province
THE
31 Suzhou Industrial Park Suzhou,Jiangsu  Tier 2 city with high  Residential/commercial 1,640 363,240 44.10% 21,367 221,500
HNILER Th /&M gowthpotental  FZ/FE
“hEER
Subtotal of Jiangsu 1,640 363,240 21,367 221,500
/J\'ﬁ-
Total 956 7,183,494 5,260,092 7,510,600
&t
* inculding those with certificates of land use right and the land purchase contracts
. including those with construction being completed but not sold and delivered
O+@+Q@ =1+1+1I

* BIECEUS L EAREE A RER &S 2 it
- BIEERTEREE RRFHZEDS
D+Q+@=1+1+11



mrEEgRAR @ —=——#ap 207

Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BFERRR SHENYE
Land Bank (sq.m.)
TG (TAk)
Development Phases Types
Including LECE REER
Planned GFA* investment Hold for

(sq.m.) properties  Completed for Under future  Residential & Commercial &
Address aRaREmE En@f sale® development® development®  Facilities| Hotel Office II
it (FAR) REnz RIHE" BEm? GHAREES  HEREEI BEI EERBAN
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 58,596 58,596 58,596 58,596
ZESRITRLEARS
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 136,772 136,772 136,772
ZHAEL ML AR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province
RES R TRLEARS
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 82,815 82,815 82815 82,815
ZHAEL ML AR

1,092,773 182,807 301,100 58,596 733,071 890,754 58,596 143,423

1,876,822 182,807 326,196 149,049 1,401,577 1,674,803 58,596 143,423
Suzhou Indlustrial Park, Jiangsu Province 221,500 132,900 221,500 94,500 37,000 90,000
RN TEER

221,500 132,900 221,500 94,500 37,000 90,000

6,692,090% 1,263,287 507,943 2,691,113 3,493,034 5,420,292 253,445 1,018,353
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Summary of Financial Information

MBENME

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controling ~ AN&EE A B A EEZM B REN TR
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the (BB FEEXENREE - BE R IFIEIRRE S HHL
published audited financial statements. ZHIWT :

Results ¥iE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLEEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
20124 20114 20104 2009 & 2008
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥TR

Revenue A 2,395,625 1,688,699 1,243,871 1,624,476 1,437,841

Profit before tax IR 696,831 687,238 640,483 670,240 442175
Income Tax FriS#i 306,778 (308,671) (227,223) (227,975) (159,860)
Profit for the year FERFIE 390,053 378,567 413,260 442 265 282,315

Attributable to: AR FEA -

Owners of the parent BARIER A 336,228 351,391 379,759 408,917 253,986

Non-controlling interests JEFE A = 53,825 27,176 33,501 33,348 28,329

390,053 378,567 413,260 442 265 282,315

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests ¥&E - &R FZRER

31 December

128318
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
20125 20114 20104 20094 2008 F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARETE ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Total Assets WA E 14,885,603 13,648,782 11,139,299 7,266,226 6,326,363
Total Liabilities RN (9,184,457)  (8,380,674) (6,324,956) (2,841,786)  (2,283,911)
Non-controlling Interests FEIZERR A A (303,925) (205,400) (178,224) (144,411) (110,573)

5,397,221 5,062,708 4,636,119 4,280,029 3,931,879
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